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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011

Commission file number: 001-16123

NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

New York 11-350463¢€

(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer

incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
212 West 3t Street, 2nd Floor New York, New York 10123
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area codg212) 356-9500

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) tifie Act: None
Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) tife Act:

Common Shares, par value $0.02 per share
(Title of class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405co8#turities Act. Yes™ No x
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®acl5(d) of the Act. Yes™ No x

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@g filed all reports required to be filed by Sewtl3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the past 12 months (or for suchtengeriod that the registrant was required todileh reports) and (2) has been subject to
filing requirements for the past 90 days. Ygs No ~

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant liésnitted electronically and posted on its corpovegbsite, if any, every Interactive Data |
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te R of Regulation $-(Section 232.405 of this chapter) during the pdéng 12 months (i
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files). Ya&s No ~

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquitlerrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K ($@tt229.405 of this chapter) is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, toltest of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive pyax information statements incorporated by
reference in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any arderent to this Form 10-K. x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company (all as defined in Rule -2 of the Exchange Act



Large accelerated file ~ Accelerated file

Non-accelerated file ~ Smaller reporting compar  x
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgje Act). Yes™ No X

The aggregate market value of the voting and ndmga@ommon equity held by non-affiliates of thgistrant was approximately $45,231,000
as of the last business day of the registrant’srsfiscal quarter of 2011.

As of March 13, 2012 there were 36,966,672 shamsged and outstanding of the registrant's Commamesh par value $0.02 per share.

Documents incorporated by reference:

Portions of the Proxy Statement to be filed for @@npany’s 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholdersiacerporated by reference into Part Il
of this Form 10-K.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

Newtek Business Services, I. (“we,” the “Company” or “Newtek”), ‘The Small Business Authorit®, provides financial and business
services to the small- and medium-sized busineskeahaur new website, www.thesba.com, and ourhiteited branding strategy enable us to
offer small businesses the ability to grow and pessy obtaining:

. Electronic Payment ProcessingCredit card, debit card, check conversion and A@bt@ssing solution

. Ecommerce ServicesCombinations of payment processing, online shoppargtools, web site design, web hosting and veddted
services which enable businesses to establishsapre and commercial capability on the Internetguick and simple fashic

. Managed Technology SolutionsFull service web hosting, including domain registna and online shopping cart tools; cloud compy
plans and customized web design and developmerites

. Data Backup, Storage and RetrievalFast, secure, ¢site data backup, storage and retrie

. Business Lending:Business loans to start up, acquire or expand indss

. Accounts Receivable FinancingReceivable financing and management sen

. Insurance ServicesNationwide commercial, health and benefits, and@eal lines of insuranc
. Payroll: Payroll management processing and employee tagf

During 2011 we derived revenue through the sakelmiisiness service or product to over 100,000 basiaccounts. We use state of the art,
web-based proprietary technology to provide lowt poeducts and services to our small- and mediwaesbusiness clients. We acquire our
customers through internal and independent sad@ss@nd referrals through alliances with Fortur@®&€ompanies, community banks, credit
unions and others, all of whom have elected toraffee or more of our business services and findpomlucts rather than try to provide them
directly for their customers or members. Our allieupartners have historically interfaced with Néwtteough their use of our patented,
proprietary NewTracke? referral and tracking systehich enables complete transparency in the rdfprazess. The year 2011 represented a
new change for Newtek in that we have placed mejgphasis and resources behind the developmentarrdinated marketing and media
program focused on our branding strategy featufimg Small Business Authorityebsite, all intended to present the Company as the
authoritative presence in the small- and mediuraeskausiness space across many areas of operations.

History

Newtek is a corporation formed under the laws ofvN®rk that serves as a holding company for sewgrallly- and majority-owned
subsidiaries. We were founded in 1998 to providat ded equity financing to small- and medium-sibedinesses. We have since developed
our branded line of business and financial prodantsservices for the small- and medium-sized lessimarket. At December 31, 2011, we
had 36 subsidiaries most of which are direct prergdf financial and business services.

Initially, Newtek was the sponsor of a total of détified capital companies, which we call Capcusy reduced to 12. We have not created
new Capcos since 2005, although we continue to rimdestments in and loans to small businesses ghrour existing Capcos and meet the
goals of the Capco programs. We are now concemgratir efforts on becoming “The Small Business Auth” by creating a distribution
channel for business and financial services pravldeour subsidiaries, affiliates or marketing pars for the small- and medium-sized
business market supported by the media attentinargeed by our monthly small business index, smadiness market sentiment survey,
monthly small business radio show on 77WABC, thethly small business newsletter distributed freetafrge to visitors to our website, and
other advertising.

Business Strategy
Key elements of our strategy to grow our business:

. Continue to focus our business model to serve thraB- and mediun-sized business markeWe are focused on developing ¢
marketing business and financial products and sesv@imed at the small- and medium-sized businaskeatn Our target market
represents a very significant marketplace in th#ddrStates based on non-farm private gross domesiduct (“GDP”). According to
statistics published by the U.S. Small Business ixtstration (the*SBA”),
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approximately 51% of the GDP in the United Statm®ses from small businesses and approximately 99Btisihesses in the Unit
States which have one or more employees fit in®rtarket segment. Our business model is to gétthaket to view us as “The Small
Business Authority” and come to depend on us s soerce for business and financial services dsasehe business information they
need. We intend to continue to leverage the Newteid The Small Business Authority brands as a cog-sthop provider for the
smal- and medium sized business mar

. Continue to implement a strategy of acquiring custers and processing their business at low cWe seek to acquire customers at a
low cost through a national strategy centered aratiance partners, internet marketing, coordidaterketing, social media and our
NewTracker technology. Our alliance partners ugepooprietary NewTracker referral system to refestomers to us for sales a
customer tracking and processing. NewTracker Oisteis the referral to our appropriate business sagor segments for fulfillment
while keeping our alliance partners up to datehendustomer’s progress in real time with detailedutnentation. We use the same
proprietary system as our gateway for direct sddemigh our websites and our BizExec program. biitaeh, during 2011 we placed
significant resources into direct media advertiginger the banner of olihe Small Business Authorityark. This was formally rolled o
in January 2011 and ties together significant mationedia exposure through television and radi@gbing, design and production of
our “Small Business Index”™ and “SB Market Sentit8orveys” ™ reflecting our polling and assessnuéitusiness conditions for
smal- and mediur-sized businesses, the active use of social mediketitag, and website (www.thesba.col

. Continue to develop our ste-of-the-art technology to process business applications #indncial transactions.We are updating our
proprietary systems to take advantage of technoébgidvances that provide state of the art enhasieenin client service and process
controls which lead to lower cos

. Continue our focus on the Internet and The Small Bimess Authority markOur major goal for 2012 and the future is to fothes Smal
Business Authority branding strategy is to estabfiresba.com as the online destination spot fotldmsiness. During 2011 we built out
this website to include current state-of-the arakfousiness news, monthly measurement of the dsoalhess economy, monthly
measurement of small business owners’ market sentimmonthly tips for business owners, cost savargsdiscounts on small business
products and services and views on the latest netvaf Washington, D.C. or state government affecthdependent business owners.
Features of thesba.com that have impact on smsithéss owners includ

. Free monthly newsletters designed and writtenrfdependent, small business owr

. The Small Business Authority Index

. The Small Business Authority Market Sentiment Swr

. Regular news reports and updates about the ecofartiye small business own

. Informative and engaging SB authority informationialeos

. Pertinent information on acquiring products andisess for independent business owners to prc

. Continue to fulfill our obligations under the currat Capco programsOur emphasis is on continuing our exemplary regujat
compliance program in order to complete successt# investment cycles for all Capcos. At Decen83r2011, we had reached the
final minimum investment requirements in all Capcograms in which we participated. We believe #risures that 100% of the tax
credits related to the programs are beyond rigke@dpture. In addition, as of that date, all of¢ash payments required to be made to the
investors have been made. As the Capcos reachet®@rm investment we will seek to decertify thenCapcos, liquidate their remaining
assets and thereby reduce our operational costgyparly the legal and accounting costs assodiatith compliance. Five of our origin
Capcos have reached this ste

Principal Business Segments

Overview

The Companys principal business segments, which we operatecivordinated manner in order to provide busineddiaancial services to tl
small- and medium-sized business market, are:

Electronic Payment ProcessingMarketing third party credit card processing andathapproval services to the small- and mediumdsize
business market under the name of Newtek Merchaloti8ns.
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Managed Technology SolutionsCrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc., d/b/a/ Newtek Tedbgp Services (“NTS”), offers shared and dedicated
web hosting, data storage and backup services] domputing plan and related services to the sraatk-medium-sized business market.

Small Business FinanceThe segment is comprised of Newtek Small Businézari€e, Inc. (‘NSBF”), a nationally licensed, SBetler that
originates, sells and services loans to qualifwnmll businesses, which are partially guaranteetthéyBBA, and CDS Business Services, Inc.
d/b/a Newtek Business Credit (“NBC”), which provédeceivable financing and management services.

All Other: Businesses formed from investments made througledCapgrams and others which cannot be aggregathdther operating
segments, including insurance and payroll procgssin

Corporate Activities: Corporate implements business strategy, direct&etiag, provides technology oversight and guidacoerdinates and
integrates activities of the segments, contracts alliance partners, acquirers customer oppoigsénd owns our proprietary NewTracker
referral system. This segment includes revenuesapdnses not allocated to other segments, includtagest income, Capco management fee
income and corporate operations expenses.

Capcos:Twelve certified capital companies which invessinall- and medium-sized businesses. They geneoateash income from tax
credits and non-cash interest and insurance expémseldition to cash management fees.

Financial information for each segment can be faundanagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Resafl@perations and Financial
Condition, Segment Results and Note 24-Segment®egdo the Consolidated Financial Statementuel

Electronic Payment Processir

Newtek Merchant Solution“NMS”) markets credit and debit card processiny®ers, check approval services and ancillary preiogs
equipment and software to merchants who accepitaadis, debit cards, checks and other non-cashsfof payment. New merchants are
acquired through several sales channels. Our pyifoaus is on developing new merchant sales leadsrasult of internal sales efforts and our
direct marketing under The Small Business Authorityprand. NMS has targeted the marketing of itsyaofservices under agreements with
alliance partners, which are principally finandrgtitutions, including banks, credit unions andestrelated businesses that are able to refer
potential customers to NMS through Newtek's NewKkeaaeferral system. In addition, we enter intoesgnents with independent sales agents
throughout the country. These referring organizetiand associations are typically paid a percerdégee processing revenue derived from
respective merchants that they successfully refest In 2011, we processed merchant transactidhsavgales volume exceeding $3.8 billion
including merchant portfolios operated by our othgnsidiaries which are serviced by NMS. Our custobase and the related sales volume
processed by us has grown significantly during easer of operations since 2002 through a combinaifmrganic growth in customers as v

as selective merchant portfolio acquisitions. Oerchant base has grown from approximately 1,20€hagts at the end of 2002 to
approximately 14,200 merchants at the end of 28irilarly, total sales volume in 2011 exceeded $81®n, up over $200 million from the
previous year.

We maintain two main customer service and salepatipffices in Milwaukee, Wisconsin and BrownswjllTexas with additional specialists
located in Phoenix, Arizona and New York. Our parss at these locations assist merchants withalniistallation of equipment and on-going
service, as well as any other special processiegsthat they may have.

Because we are not a bank, we are unable to b&dosngd directly access the Viga and Master@ard dmdkassociations and we must be
sponsored by a bank in order to process bankcanddctions. We are currently registered with Wisad asterCard® through the sponsorst

of two banks that are members of the card assongtPrior to October 2009 our entire portfolio faeén with NCMIC Financial Corporation
(“NCMIC"). In October 2009 we moved a significardartion of our merchant portfolio from NCMIC to WelFargo Bank, and in January 2011
we moved the remainder of our portfolio to Redwdelchant Services, a division of Westamerica Bank.

Our electronic payment processing businesses retyuo ability to obtain data processing servicdeer€ are two aspects to the processing: the
initial authorization of a payment (referred totlas “front-end processing”) and the merchant cradi cardholder charge transaction (the
“back end processing”). In 2009, we signed agred¢sneith Wells Fargo Bank to diversify our procegsoperations and with First Data
Corporation to reduce our costs. We contract weétresal large-scale data processing companies taderthe front-end and back-end
processing (Chase Paymentech Solutions, LLC, Bata Merchant Services Corporation (multiple platfs), Total Systems Services, Inc.
(TSYS), and National Processing Company (NPC)kefraultiple platforms allow us to compete moreaftely, reduce our risk of reliance

on any one source, and give us the option of intgizlifferent processors to match the needs ofqaar merchants or situations. As our
merchant base has grown, we believe that we haae &fgle to achieve greater economies of scalerimstef negotiating the cost structure for
providing such settlement services.
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During 2011 we made an investment in Secure Gat&eayices, LLC, which has the software and expegen provide a processing gateway
facility for our payment processing business, amlitd lead to reduced processing costs.

As a result of our exposure to liability for merobh&aud, charge-backs and other losses inhergheimerchant payment processing business,
we have developed practices and policies whichmgdtéo assess and reduce these risks. Activitigghinoh we engage in order to mitigate such
risks are:

. underwriting the initial application of a merchaatidentify unusual risks, structuring the relasbip in a manner consistent with
acceptable risks and, where possible, obtainingregmal or parent corporation guarantee from thenaat;

. monitoring the daily and monthly activity of eaclerchant to identify any departures from normatikrarging behavior of each merchi
and monitoring the largest of our merchants andehwith high levels of refunds or charge-backsasto ensure an opportunity to
address any credit or cha-back liability problems at the earliest possibledj anc

. requiring high-risk merchants to agree to the distament of cash reserves to protect us againstimet failures to pay for charge-backs
and other fees, and making adjustments in theseves as merchant experience indice

Our development and growth is focused on sellingseuvices to internally generated referrals, mantheferrals identified for us by our
alliance partners, and by our independent salesseptatives. We are different than most electrpaijenent processing companies who
acquire their clients primarily through independagénts. We believe that our business model previdevith a competitive advantage by
enabling us to acquire new electronic payment @siog merchants at a lower cost level for thirdypaommissions than the industry average.
Our business model allows us to own the customeredisas the stream of residual payments, as ogptmsmodels which rely more heavily on
independent sales agents. We also believe thaharetcobtained as a result of our alliance refeaat internal sales efforts are more directly
loyal to Newtek than those of competitors that palynarily on independent sales agents to bringchants to them.

Managed Technology Solution

Through our subsidiary, CrystalTech Web Hosting, bilb/a Newtek Technology Services (“NTS), we jlewebsite hosting, dedicated
server hosting, cloud hosting, web design and deveént, internet marketing, ecommerce, data staaadebackup, and other related services
to more than 144,000 customer accounts in overcbliftries.

NTS provides a full suite of outsourced IT infrastiure services, including shared server hostiadicdted server hosting, and cloud se
(virtual) instances under the Newtek Technologwiges® , Newtek Web Servic€s , Newtek Web Hostimgl, @rystalTecl® brands, for
which it receives recurring monthly fees, as wslb¢her fees such as set-up fees, consulting deesain name registration, among others.
Ninety percent of all fees are paid in advancereglit card.

With the launch of our cloud server offering, NT&tbroadened its hosting services to include aurnpson-based hosting model that allows
customers to pay only for the resources they nghith not only saves them money compared to tkauidi server hosting, but also enables
them to scale larger or smaller on demand.

NTS delivers services not just to customers seehkagging, but also to wholesalers, resellers, aeld gdevelopers by offering a range of tc

for them to build, resell, and deliver their welntant. NTS primarily uses the Microsoft Windows®080R2 platform to power its technology.
Microsoft has described NTS as one of the largestilng services in the world providing Microsoft Mdbws hosting. NTS also offers Linux-
based web hosting services. NTS currently opeet800 square foot fortress-strength data ceatatéd in Scottsdale, Arizona, utilizing
redundant networking, electrical and back-up systeaffording customers what management believes @ state-of-the-art level of
performance and security. NTS is PCI certified vi&er Organization Control 1 (“SOC1") audited, ascturrently completing a SASE 16 audit,
all of which mean that it meets the highest industandards for data security.

Throughout its operations as a Newtek company, seeenty percent of new NTS customers have corag@sult of referrals without material
expenditures by the Company for marketing or aésiag. Many of NTS'’s competitors are very price Sigwne, offering minimal services at
cut-rate pricing. While being cost competitive wittost Linux- and Windows-based web hosting seryibdsS has emphasized higher quality
uptime, service and support.

NTS has diversified its product offerings to si- and medium-sized businesses under different kraalbunder Newtek Technology Services,
including Newtek Web Services, Newtek Data Storaged Newtek Web Design and Development . NTS focsgesifically on select
markets such as restaurants, financial institutioredical practices, law firms, accountants, retad technology service providers for channel
business and reselling.
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NTS has also launched a turnkey hosting serviceeet financial institution needs for dedicated sesyhosting and/or data storage, enak
these entities to comply with strict regulatoryuiggments that demand very high security protoaals$ practices be in place.

Small Business Financt

We originate SBA loans and offer accounts recediblancing and other lending products essentiasfioall- and mediunsized businesses.
addition, we provide small business loan servi@ng consulting to the Federal Deposit Insurance C&DIC”).

Newtek Small Business Finance, In“NSBF”) specializes in originating, servicing anellsng small business loans guaranteed by the SBA f
the purpose of acquiring commercial real estatehin@ry, equipment and inventory and to refinanelet éind fund franchises, working capital
and business acquisitions. NSBF is one of 14 SBénked Small Business Lending Corporations thatigedoans nationwide under the
federal Section 7(a) loan program (“SBA 7(a) 10gnBISBF has received preferred lender program (RBt&ys, a designation whereby the
SBA authorizes the most experienced SBA lendepdatce SBA guarantees on loans without seeking @A review and approval. Being a
national lender, PLP status allows NSBF to semwvelients in an expedited manner since it is nguired to present applications to the SBA for
concurrent review and approval. In December 201@n@&rd & Poor’s (“S&P”) Ratings Services added W38 their Select Servicer List
which has been helpful to the Company in obtaimidditional outside servicing contracts.

We originate loans ranging from $50,000 to $5,000,® both startup and existing businesses, whahesinds for a wide range of business
needs including:

. opening, expanding or acquiring a business or frisec $50,000 to $5,000,0C
. financing working capital
. SBA term loans: at least $50,0
. Purchase equipment: $25,000 to $5,000
. purchasing ownw-occupied commercial real estate and leasehold wepnents: up to $5,000,000; a
. refinancing existing nc-rea-estate business debt: $25,000 to $5,000,

Late in 2009, we were selected by the FDIC asdtdractor to manage and service portfolios of SB&) Toans acquired by the FDIC from
failed financial institutions. At such time as we airected to do so, we will assist in the packggif these loans for sale by the FDIC. Our
existing servicing facilities and personnel willfoem these activities supplemented by contractkers as needed. The eventual size of the
portfolio we will service for the FDIC will deperah the level of bank failures and the needs oHR&C in managing portfolios acquired from
those banks. As of December 31, 2011, we wereadegvapproximately $136,000,000 in loans under ¢bistract.

In December 2010 and December 2011, NSBF strucaussturitization transaction which enabled itetlh approximately $43,500,000 of the
unguaranteed portions of loans it has originate2Dihl and previous years. The securities sold vetesl AA by S&P. NSBF typically retains
the unguaranteed portions of the loans it origmated incurs related warehouse financing costsh Wé sale, NSBF was able to create
significant liquidity which was used to pay dowr tivarehouse line and to fund new loans.

We also offer accounts receivable financing andagament services through CDS Business Servicesiinia Newtek Business Credit
(“NBC"). Through this service, small- and mediunzesi businesses can obtain $10,000 to $1,000,00G@eth through the sale of their trade
receivables. In addition, NBC offers back officeewables services for small businesses, suchlagytzind cash collections.

In addition, we offer merchant cash advance sesvic®ur small business customers, under whichmaats obtain cash by selling future cr
card receivables at a discount. Under this progtaenmerchant receives the purchase amount ugdrahtigrees to have a set percentage of the
credit card sales deducted from its daily dep@sits remitted back until the purchase amount isidejramost cases we process the payment
streams. We offer these services as an agentifdrgarty providers and are not taking on credik iin connection with these services.

All Other: Insurance and Payroll Processing Servie

We offer small business insurance products andcgsrthrough Newtek Insurance Agency, LLC (“NIA®hich is licensed in 50 states.
We serve as a retail and wholesale agency speogliz the sale of personal, commercial and hdadtheéfits lines insurance products to
customers of all our affiliated companies as welbar alliance partners. We offer insurance praifrotm multiple insurance carriers providi
a wide range of choice for our customers. We haveéd a strategic alliance with Chartis (formerl\GASmall Business) to provide agent
services to small business clients. We are continaur efforts to implement programs with alliapegtners to market commercial and
personal insurance.
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During 2011 we placed significant emphasis on depiah the business conducted by our majority-owaéfiiated company operating under
the trade name of “Newtek Payroll Services.” Thigeistment was originally made in 2010, and enable€ompany to offer an array of
industry standard and very competitively pricedrpdynanagement, payment and tax reporting senticesnall- and mediursized businesse¢
Based in New York, Newtek Payroll Services hasthuplits business to approximately 72 customegbistates with total payroll under
management of approximately 700 employees. Thegelpaervices are being marketed through all af aailable channels including the
alliance partnerships and our direct marketing cEgns.

Corporate Activities

Corporate implements business strategy, direct&etiag, provides technology oversight and guidacoeydinates and integrates activities of
the segments, contracts with alliance partnergjieesgcustomer opportunities and owns our propwdieewTracker referral system and all
other intellectual property rights. This segmerrludes revenue and expenses not allocated to stigenents, including interest income, Capco
management fee income and corporate operationaisgpe

Certified Capital Companies

We have deemphasized our Capco business in faxgrowafing our operating businesses and do not gatieicreating any new Capcos. While
observing all requirements of the Capco progranas @nparticular, financing qualified businessestirgy applicable state requirements as to
limitations on the proportion of ownership of qtialil businesses, we have been able to use thignfyisdurce as a means to facilitate the
growth of our businesses, which are strategicaltyi$ed on providing goods and services to smalhbgases such as those in which our Ca
invest. We continue to invest in and lend to srhallinesses through our existing Capcos and megptiis of the Capco programs.

Marketing
Overview

We position ourselves as a provider of businesdiaadcial services to the small to medium busire=or in the United States. Through
integrated marketing and sales of each serviceAmeontrol our customer’s experience in orderrtavjgle high quality service to both our
marketing partners and potential customers. Wehrpatential customers through our multi-channelrapph featuring direct, indirect and
indirect outbound solicitation efforts.

Although we continue to utilize and grow our corarketing channel of strategic alliance partnershese initiated a direct marketing strategy
to the small- and medium-sized business custorhessigh our new “go to market” brand, “The Small Biess Authority.” Through this brand
we are establishing ourselves as the authoritadh @f the service lines we provide through a cioattéd radio and television advertising
campaign built around our new web presence, wwsttheom. We continue to market through our bilih@4d7 call center which we believe

is a valuable feature for most small business osvtieat need help during non-business hours andeekends. We use web-based applications
as an in-house tool to help our employees and &deedo be efficient, smart and productive. Indtetusing expensive, six-figured salaried
employees that a typical bank or an insurance agenald use to market financial products and bussreervices to small- and medium-sized
business customers, we use technology and dedilcgtgichon-executive-salary-plus-bonus employeé® dddition of the direct to market
strategy through promotion of our new web site sufspour goal to maintain costs and retain greagegin on each transaction as well as
providing our competent in house business senyeeialists the ability to create a second and thémdice opportunity.

We believe that our business service specialis@lgroduct lines understand the needs of theldmiginess owner. Each business service
specialists in the enterprise has recently comglete “Newtek University” which provides in depttaining and techniques in identifying
qualified opportunities across all of Newtslgervice offerings. We conduct telephone intersiewd targeted surveys with our customers a

all product lines to deepen our understanding eif theeds. We have tailored our procedures sornalsand medium-sized business
customers do not have to fill out multiple handteritforms or type multiple data entry screens, Wwhie believe is the most aggravating factor
facing our customers. We have modeled our backetind business operations after customer cenpeydtional models. We stress our
responsive customer service and we endeavor td ixaddressing and resolving issues and probléaisdur customers may face. We are
providing our 24/7 customer service functions im&ph as well as English to service the growingpHiigc-owned andoperated small busine
customer base in the United States.
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We also market our services through referrals foumalliance partners such as Chartis, Credit UNational Association, Pershing, New
York Community Bank, and Morgan Stanley Smith Bgrnesing our proprietary NewTracker referral systesmwell as direct referrals from
our new web presence, www.thesba.com. Additiorfatrals are obtained from individual professiorialgeographic markets that have signed
up to provide referrals and earn commissions thmaug BizExec and TechExec Programs. These indisdare traditionally information
technology professionals, CPA’s, independent instgaagents and sales and/or marketing professidnasdition, electronic payment
processing services are marketed through indepésdiss representatives and web technology andraeore services are marketed through
internet-based marketing and thiperty resellers. A common thread across all busifiess relates to acquiring customers at low dd&t.seel

to bundle our marketing efforts through our bramat, portal, our proprietary NewTracker technologyr new web presence &ke Small
Business Authoritand one easy entry point of contact.

We have implemented a multi-channel marketing enathat consists of:

Direct: In 2011, the Company consolidated and increaseadirgst marketing efforts throughhe Small Business Authortiyand relying on a
new relationship with the Rubenstein Public Relaifirm. The new website, www.thesba.com, laundhekhnuary 2011, created a mechar
to focus business opportunity directly from thelimils of small businesses in the United Statesnvdde a commitment to a $1,000,000
advertising investment focused on the New Yorkaegl ABC radio affiliate WABC. This year long protian with radio station 77WABC
includes the broadcast of its talk programs “Likai the 77 WABC and The Small Business AuthoritydBis” and involvement of the
station’s well know radio personalities. The Compeeceives over 750 on-air mentions and 60 secontwercials each month. In addition,
the Company produces and hosts a monthly, hourradig program, “The Small Business Howrith national business personalities provic
advice and analysis of topical small business msliee Small Business Authority also receives & sanificant presence on
WABCRadio.com with a variety of helpful links fomsll business owners to financial services to iaseetheir sales, reduce costs and
minimize business risk. Our agreement with 77WABZZIiR also provides for exposure on its co-branéiffigrt with both Fox business news
and the Imus in the Morning Show nationally. Weided that this advertising program, the first utaleen by the Company, is delivering
meaningful levels of leads for each of the Compsausgrvice lines.

To supplement further our direct marketing effonts, have developed two proprietary vehicles to aobdhe visibility and credibility ofhe
Small Business Authorignd the related websiteesba.comThe Small Business Index was developed internaity/teademarked during 2011.
It is a monthly assessment of various factors eilie of business conditions in the small busimeasket. Since its introduction, it has recei'
a great deal of publicity and is now quoted in ntoms national publications. In addition, we alstvdduced in 2011 our internally developed
SB Market Sentiment Survewhich captures responses from our website visibortopics of significant importance to our snibalsiness
customers. This survey has also gained much natdtestion. We believe that both of these effadd significantly to our marketing efforts
and further support our efforts to become the dop-shop for all small businesses.

A final addition to our direct marketing effortsasir effort to giveThe Small Business Authoraysocial media presence. We have dedicated
staff familiar with the latest developments in sbenedia and we have been active in placing bltigles, videos and special promotions on
numerous social media sites. We distribute thig tyfpcontent multiple times daily and attempt tgage with customers and others on a sir
basis. Our staff follows numerous blog sites reldateour businesses and attempts to post relevatarials and information that both addresses
small and medium sized business needs and intenedtilentifies the ways in which The Small Busin&sthority can address many of those
needs.

Indirect: Our alliance partners market one or more of owises to their customer base or members, and efNiewTracker to submit
referrals to Newtek from either their website aedtly by their staff. Through our BizExec and TEgkRc Programs, we are recruiting
individual professionals such as insurance agéawsjers and accountants, or website designersfowa@ developers, who utilize NewTrac
through a link to NewTracker from their own sitetbe establishment of a new website.

Direct Outbound: We combined all data assets into a seamless, estefpide, accessible master database in ordexctiitéite cross
marketing, selling and servicing, real-time dataimgy and business intelligence. We have establishgedicated team to use our master
database for cross marketing, selling and servicing

The Newtek Referral System

Our proprietary NewTracker referral system, on whagpatent is pending, allows us to process newess utilizing a welibased, centralize
processing point. In-bound referrals from alliapegtners, our website and other sources are tréeshtd our businesses to provide the service
or services our customers need. Our trained repiabees use these web-based applications as a tool
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to acquire and process data through telephonicvietgs, eliminating the need for face-to-face cohtand the requirement that a customer
complete multiple paper forms or data entry fortiplé product lines. This approach is customemfillg, allows us to process applications \
efficiently and allows us to store client informatifor further processing and cross-selling effartsle offering what we believe to be the
highest level of customer service. It also assatgsalliance partners full transaction transparefitys system permits our alliance partners to
have a window to our back office processing 24 f@uday, 7 days a week, to see every communicatidrinteraction between our sales and
processing representatives and their referred mestowhile still preserving the privacy of custoroealliance partner sensitive data on the
application. NewTracker enables the processingti@uting of services in a manner similar to the dzade system used by overnight delivery
services. We believe that NewTracker is a key thffiating component of our business. It enable® ggale our business services rapidly to
meet the demands of our customers. NewTracker enalir alliance partners to offer our services idliately, without having to invest in
marketing materials, sales and marketing persoinadhing, licensing or office space. Because thegtomers or members are driven by our
technology to our processing centers, which camllleaincreased volume of transactions without havingdd specialized staff or
infrastructure, there is no need for additionakistment by our alliance partners. NewTracker amfutitiy provides direct interface to business
owners/operators accessing our new web site agptiosyde basic information regarding their needtsd our Business Service Specialists can
immediately respond to inquiry for any of our seevofferings.

Alliances

Each of the operating businesses benefit fromebeipt of significant numbers of customer referfaden our alliance partners, pursuant to
agreements negotiated and structured by our holdingpany management and staff. We are focuseding ssategic business affiliations to
identify likely small- to medium-sized business tomsers and others to be serviced by our operatisinbsses. We seek to ally Newtek with
companies and organizations that wish to offerammore of our principal business lines to thestomers or members. We provide one-stop
shopping for alliance partners that want to lauoicexpand their business services. For exampley mait unions are serving small business
owners with consumer lending applications, butase our alliance with Credit Union National Asseéicia and scores of small to large credit
unions and community banks to expand their offedhgervices. We are also able to private labelafrgur business services for any alliance
partner.

These alliance partners are able to provide greatsice to their customers and members and darsteady flow of referral payments from

On the other hand, our operating companies aréviegesignificant numbers of referrals for our sees in the areas of small business loans,
insurance and electronic payment processing anthaseacquiring customers at a low cost. NewTraaker proprietary, internally developed
referral system technology, facilitates this trangff information and also permits our customeviserrepresentatives, their supervisors anc
referring alliance partners to observe the reaktprocessing of each referral, from intake to catigh. For example, an alliance partner
financial advisor who refers a brokerage custoraeefectronic payment processing, can track oucgssing of their client and know when
decisions are made, what they are, when the réfega are earned, as well as observe and ovdrsemerational performance of our customer
service representatives. The process is analogahe tar code system used by overnight delivemyices to track the movement of a packe
where critical processing points are input andciiigtomer is able to access the company’s passwotdeped web site and monitor the
movement of the package from pick-up to delivery.

We have entered into agreements to provide oneooe fiusiness services with numerous national agidmal businesses or organizations
including, but not limited to:

. Chartis, Inc. (formerly AIG Small Busines
. Morgan Stanley Smith Barne

. New York Community Banl

. Credit Union National Association (CUN/
. Microsoft

. Pershincg

. Members ItFederal Credit Unio

. Ent Federal Credit Unio

. NCMIC Financial, Inc

. Bellco Credit Unior

. The Latino Coalitior

. Wright Patt Credit Uniol

. SpaceCoast Credit Unic

. General Motors Minority Dealers Associati

Intellectual Property

Newtek has developed software which is the coliesdflewTracker referral system and in Septembef2D€d a patent application with ti
United States Patent and Trademark Office coveiegTracker.



NTS uses specialized software to conduct its bgsimeder a perpetual, roye«free license from its developer, the former owoier
CrystalTech, acquired at the time of our acquisitid the business.

We have several trademarks and service marksf athich are of material importance to us. The falilog trademarks and service marks are
the subject of trademark registrations issued bylthited States Patent Trademark Office:

AT NEWTEK, WE DO IT BETTER

BIZEXEC

CRYSTALTECH

CRYSTALTECH WEB HOSTINGC

CT & Design

NEWTEK

NEWTEK BIZEXEC

NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICE:

NEWTEK BUSINESS SOLUTIONS

10. NEWTEK + NEWT LOGO

11. NEWTEK REFERRAL SYSTEN

12. NEWTEK TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

13. NEWTEK WEB SERVICES

14. NEWTRACKER

15. WEBCONTROLCENTEFR

16. NEWTEK BUSINESS CREDI1

17. NEWTEK DATA STORAGE

18. NEWTEK WEB DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT1

19. NEWTEK WEB HOSTING

20. WE DO IT BETTER

21. ANEW WAY TO THINK ABOUT SMALL-BUSINESS IT
22. THE CLOUD AUTHORITY

23. THESBA.COM THE SMALL AUTHORITY POWERED BY NEWTEF
24. THE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY

25. THE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY HOUF

26. NEWTPAY PRO

27. NEWTPAY

28. NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. + NEWT LOG

©CoNoh~wWNE

The following trademarks and service marks aresthigect of pending trademark applications filedwiite United States Patent and Trader
Office:

THESBA.COM THE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY
THESBA

THE SBAUTHORITY INDEX

THE SBA MARKET SENTIMENT SURVEY
NEWTEK BUSINESS PARTNER:!

THE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY INDEX
THESBA INDEX

NEWTEK SITECENTER

T1SBA

10. THE 1 SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY

11. THE ONE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY

12. TSBA

13. NEWTEK INSURED CLOUD COMPUTINC

14. NEWTEK INSURED HOSTING

15. NEWTEK PAYROLL

16. CAAS

17. CONTINUOUS CYBER SECURITY SCANNING CERTIFICATIOI
18. CCSS CERTIFICATION

19. CONTINUOUS CYBER SECURITY SCANNINC
20. CCSS

21. THE BUSINESS AUTHORITY

22. INSURED CLOUD COMPUTINC

23. NEWTEK INSURED WEB SERVICE!

24. NEWTEK INSURED MERCHANT PROCESSIN!
25. NEWTEK INSURED PAYROLL

26. NEWTEK PAYROLL IN THE CLOUD

27. CLOUD COMPUTING AUTHORITY

28. CLOUD AUTHORITY

29. NEWTEK PAYROLL SERVICES

30. NEWTEK CLOUD PAYROLL

©CoNoO~WNE



31. COMMERCE-AS-A-SERVICE
32. COMMERCE AS A SERVICE
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Competition

We compete in a large number of markets for the shbervices to small- and medium-sized busine&ssh of our principal operating
companies competes not only against suppliers ipdtticular state or region of the country bud @gainst suppliers operating on a national or
even a multi-national scale. None of the marketsthith our companies compete are dominated by d somaber of companies that could
materially alter the terms of the competition.

Our Electronic payment processing segment compéthentities including Heartland Payment SysteRisst National Bank of Omaha and
Paymentech, L.P. Our Web hosting segment compétesl&1, Hosting.com, Discount ASP, Maxum ASP, Galdg® , Yahoo'® , BlueHost

®, iPowerWel® and Microsoft Live among others. OuaBiBusiness Finance segment competes with regamédhational banks and non-
bank lenders. Intuit is bundling electronic paymgicessing, web hosting and payroll services aintd ours in offerings that compete in the
same small- to midsize-business market.

In many cases, the competitors of our companies@tras able as we are to take advantage of chémgesiness practices due to technolog
developments and, for those with a larger sizeuneble to offer the personalized service that nangll business owners and operators seem
to want.

While we compete with many different providers ur @arious businesses, we have been unable tdfidant direct and comprehensive
competitors that deliver the same broad suite nfiges focused on the needs of the small- and medized business market with the same
marketing strategy as we do. Some of our competédiWwantages include:

. Our compatible products such as o-commerce offerings that we are able to bundle ¢cemse sales, reduce costs and reduce ris
our customers and enable us to sell two, threfuwrproducts at the same tirr

. Our proprietary NewTracker referral system, whiltbves us to process new business utilizing a wetebacentralized processing point
and provides back end scalabili

. Our focus on developing and marketing businesd@Enand financial products and services aimeldeasinall- and medium-sized
business marke

. Our scalability, which allows us to size our busiservices capabilities very quickly to meet comgioand market neec
. Our ability to offer personalized service and cotiijwe rates;

. A strategy of multiple channel distribution, whiglves us maximum exposure in the marketpl.

. High quality customer service 24x7x365 across adlitess lines, with a focus primarily on absolutstomer service

. Our telephonic interview process, as opposed toirag handwritten or data-typing processes, whiltbws us to offer high levels of
customer service and satisfaction, particularlysimall business owners who do not get this seifriza our competitors; an

. Our NewTracker Portal, which allows our alliancetpars to offer a centralized access point forrtegial- to mediun-sized busines
clients as part of their larger strategic appraacmarketing and allows such partners to demorestrett they are focused on providing a
suite of services to the small business marketidit@n to their core servici

Government Regulation
Overview

Newtel's electronic payment processing, lending, insueaaad Capco operations are subject to regulatidaderal, state and professional
governing bodies. In addition, our financial instibn customers, which include commercial banks @edit unions, operate in markets that are
subject to rigorous regulatory oversight and suigéra. The compliance of our products and servieitis these requirements depends on a
variety of factors including the particular functadity, the interactive design and the charteiiaarise of the financial institution. Our financial
services customers must independently assess &minitee what is required of them under these regula and are responsible for ensuring
that our systems and the design of their websiagoem to their regulatory obligations. New lawsregulations are frequently adopted in tt
areas that require constant compliance and coutéase our costs.

Certified Capital Companies

In return for the Capcos making investments inténgeted companies, the states provide tax creghtgerally equal to funds invested in the
Capco by the insurance companies that provideuth@sfto the Capcos. In order to maintain its statua Capco and to avoid recapture or
forfeiture of the tax credits, each Capco must raeaimber of specific investment requirements idiclg a minimum investment schedule all
of which have been met prior to required dateslbgfaour Capcos. As a result, we believe themeddasis for a loss of tax credits.

Each of the state Capco programs has a requiretimere Capco, in order to maintain its certifiestisé, must meet certain investment
requirements, both qualitative and quantitativeesghinclude limitations on the initial size of tieeipients of the Capco funds, including the
number of their employees, the location within tbgpective state of the recipients and the redipieommitment to remain therein for a
specified period of time, the types of businessgdaated by the recipients, and the terms of thestments in the recipients.

The states of Louisiana, Colorado and Texas andttie of New York, for our two most recent New K programs (out of the five in which
we have participated), have had or recently addékdir Capco programs limitations on the equityestment Capcos can make in qualil



businesses. These programs or program changesosgedclude a Capco from owning all or a majorityhe voting equity of the invested
business. While Newtek has made profitable majantyied investments in the past, we have also maderity or passive investments in
qualified businesses. Newtek’s Capcos are in falhgliance with all investment limitations, and mgement foresees no significant difficulty
in continuing to remain in compliance.

When each of Newtek’s Capcos has invested in gedlfusinesses an amount equal to 100% of italmiértified capital, it is able to decertify
(terminate its status as a Capco) and no longsubgect to any state Capco regulation. Upon volyrdacertification, the programs in about
half of the states require that a Capco share mtylditions to its equity holders with the stap@ssoring the Capco. For those states that
require a share of distributions, the sharing paegges vary, but are generally from 10 to 30%, lisoa distributions above a specified
internal rate of return for the equity owners & tbapco. States not requiring distributions area¥eand New York (Programs 1, 2 and 3). At
this time, Newtek does not believe that the shargagirements will have a material impact on thepany’s financial condition or operations.
Three of Newtek’s Capcos have reached the 100%iment level and a fourth, our Wisconsin based Gapet its statutory requirements and
voluntarily decertified and was subsequently dissdl

Employees

As of December 31, 2011, we and the companies iohwlie hold a controlling interest had a total 693mployees, of which 300 were full-
time employees. We believe our labor relationsga@d and none of our employees are covered bylectiok bargaining agreement.

Confidentiality Agreements

All our employees have signed confidentiality agneats, and it is our standard practice to requesgly hired employees and, when
appropriate, independent consultants, to executBdemtiality agreements. These agreements prdahigethe employee or consultant may not
use or disclose confidential information excepthi@ performance of his or her duties for the Congpanin other limited circumstances. The
steps taken by us may not, however, be adequatevent the misappropriation of our proprietanhtgor technology.

Revenues and Assets by Geographic Area

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012@04, virtually all of our revenue was derived froostomers in the United States,
although we provide pre-paid web site hosting sewio customers in approximately 120 countries.

Available Information

We are subject to the informational requirementthefSecurities Exchange Commission and in accesdatith those requirements file repo
proxy statements and other information with theuiies and Exchange Commission. You may read apg the reports, proxy statements
and other information that we file with the Comnessunder the informational requirements of theusiéies Exchange Act at the
Commission’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifte&tN.W., Washington, DC 20549. Please call 1-8BG-8339 for information about the
Commission’s Public Reference Room. The Commisalsa maintains a web site that contains reportsgypand information statements and
other information regarding registrants that fikectronically with the Commission. The addresshaf Commission’s web site is
http://www.sec.gov Our principal offices are located at 212 WesthSreet, 21d Floor, New York, NY, 10001 and our telepé number is
(212) 356-9500. Our websites are http://www.thesira.and_http://www.newtekbusinessservices.coie make available through our
websites, free of charge, our Annual Reports omFbd-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Currentd&tepon Form 8-K and amendments to
those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Secti®(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act@84, as amended, as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file such matkwith, or furnish it to, the Commission. Thesecdments may be directly accessed at
http://investor.newtekbusinessservices.daformation contained on our website is not a péthis report.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following is a summary of the risk factors theg believe are most relevant to our business. & hesfactors that, individually or in the
aggregate, we think could cause our actual resultéffer significantly from anticipated or histodl resultsif any of the following risks occur,
our business, financial condition and results ofigtions could be materially and adversely affectadhat case, the value of our common
shares could decline and stockholders may losergilrt of their investmen¥ou should understand that it is not possible tdjmt or identify
all such factors. Consequently, you should not iciemghe following to be a complete discussionlbpatential risks or uncertainties. We
undertake no obligation to publicly update forwéwdking statements, whether as a result of newimétion, future events, or otherwise,
unless required by law.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS GENERALLY
Our success depends on our ability to compete effaely in the highly competitive and highly regulaed industries in which we operate.

We face intense competition in providing web hagservices, processing electronic payments anéhatigg SBA loans, as well as in the
other industries in which we or our affiliated coemges operate. Low barriers to entry often resuét steady stream of new competitors
entering certain of these businesses. Current atahfial competitors are or may be better estabtiseubstantially larger and have more
capital and other resources than we do. If we exjirsto additional geographical markets, we willdaompetition from others in those mark
as well. In addition, some of the industries in e¥hive operate are highly regulated and we canmsotr@asou that we will continue to be in full
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regalai Failure to maintain full compliance or if nws limit or eliminate some of the bene
of our business lines, our financial conditionutesof operations and cash flows could be matgradversely affected.
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Our success depends upon our ability to enforce andaintain our intellectual property rights.

Our success depends, in significant part, on thprptary nature of our technology, including bptitentable and non-patentable intellectual
property related to our NewTracker referral systée. have filed one patent application with the BdiStates Patent office but there can be no
assurance that such patent will be granted. Textent that a competitor is able to reproduce bewtise capitalize on our technology, it may
be difficult, expensive or impossible for us toahtnecessary legal protection. In addition to piapeotection of intellectual property rights,
consider elements of our product designs and psesas be proprietary and confidential. We relyrupmployee, consultant and vendor non-
disclosure agreements and contractual provisiodsaaystem of internal safeguards to protect oopnpetary information. However, any of ¢
registered or unregistered intellectual propemgts may be challenged or exploited by otherseénitidustry, which might harm our operating
results. We have several trademarks and servicksmdrich are of material importance to us. Litigatiwhich could result in substantial cost
to and diversion of our efforts, may be necessanforce our trademarks or to determine the eafditity, scope and validity of the
proprietary rights of others. Adverse determinaionany litigation or interference proceeding cbsilibject us to costs related to changing
brand names and a loss of established brand reogni

Our businesses depend on our ability to attract andetain key personnel and any loss of ability to atact these personnel could
adversely affect us.

Our success depends upon the ability of our affilacompanies and other companies in which we frieesttract and retain qualified persor
and our ability to supplement those capabilitiehwur senior management personnel. Competitioqdalified employees is intense. If our
affiliated companies lose the services of key pamed or are unable to attract additional qualifiedsonnel, the business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of us or anmaare of our affiliated companies could be matbriadversely affected. It can take a
significant period of time to identify and hire pennel with the combination of skills and attritaitequired in carrying out our strategy.

Our business relies heavily on the expertise ofsemior management. The loss of the services séthelividuals could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows, and it is likely tiatill be difficult to find adequate
replacements.

Our businesses depend upon the ability to utilizene Internet for the conduct of a significant portian of their business; disruption to that
system could make it impossible for them to contineito conduct their current businesses.

Possible disruption to the normal functioning af thternet through, for example, power failureerdrist sabotage, could make it impossible
for aspects of the lending, electronic payment @ssing, web hosting and in fact our referral sydtefanction. In the event of a major
disruption, and assuming that such disruptions dbel long-lived, we would be required to make esitenchanges in the way these
companies do business. There is no assurance ¢hatlihave the time and resources to make theaagss.

Our success depends on our ability to use effectiyeour electronic referral and information processing systems.

We have developed an electronic referral and peicgsystem for the applications necessary fosttes of each of our business lines other
than web site hosting. This system is critical tio ability to process such business with a low eglstantage and to obtain referrals from our
alliance partners. In particular, the ability tacass the referral system and to track the progresseferred customer is a major feature of the
perceived attractiveness of our system. If thisnrad system should develop problems which we caaddress, it would have a material
negative impact on our business strategy. In augitur ability to provide business services insiregly depends on our capacity to store,
retrieve, process and manage significant amourdsiaf. Interruption or loss of our information peesing capabilities through loss of stored
data, breakdown or malfunctioning of computer emeépt and software systems, telecommunicationsréadu damage caused by acts of ne
or other disruption, could have a material advefgect on our business, financial condition, resoltoperations and cash flows.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR ELECTRONIC PAYMENT PROCESSING BUSINESS

NMS relies on two bank sponsors, which have substfal discretion with respect to certain elements obur business practices, in order
to process bankcard transactions. If either sponsahip is terminated, and we are not able to secure transfer the respective merchant
portfolios to new bank sponsors, the business, finaial condition, results of operations and cash fles of electronic payment processing
business could be materially adversely affected. Hoth sponsorships are terminated, and we are nobée to secure or transfer the
merchant portfolios to new bank sponsors, we will ot be able to conduct our electronic payment procsgg business. We also rely on
service providers who are critical to our business.
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Because we are not a bank, we are unable to b&dosnyd directly access the Viga and Master@ard dmdkassociations. The Visa and
MasterCard® operating regulations require us topo@sored by a bank in order to process bankcandddions. We are currently sponsored
by two banks. If either sponsorship is terminated we are unable to secure a bank sponsor foepactive merchant portfolios, we will not
be able to process bankcard transactions for feetatl portfolios. If both sponsorships are terngdaand we are unable to secure a bank
sponsor for the merchant portfolios, we will notdi®e to process bankcard transactions. Conseguérglloss of either or both of our
sponsorships would have a material adverse effeouo business. Furthermore, our agreement witlsponsoring bank gives the sponsoring
bank substantial discretion in approving certagmednts of our business practices, including oucisation, application and qualification
procedures for merchants, the terms of our agretsméth merchants, the processing fees that wegehaur customer service levels and our
use of independent sales organizations and indepésdles agents. We cannot guarantee that ousaiog bank’s actions under these
agreements will not be detrimental to us. Otheviserproviders, some of whom are our competitars necessary for the conduct of our
business. The termination by our service providéthese arrangements with us or their failuregfgrm these services efficiently and
effectively may adversely affect our relationshiyith the merchants whose accounts we serve andcengse those merchants to terminate
processing agreements with us.

If NMS or its processors or bank sponsor fail to atlere to the standards of the Vis&® and MasterCar@ hakcard associations, our
registrations with these associations could be terimated and we could be required to stop providing ayment processing services for
Visa ® and MasterCard® .

Substantially all of the transactions NMS processeslve Visa® or MasterCarél . If we, our bank spmnsr our processors fail to comply
with the applicable requirements of the Visa andtdeCard® bankcard associations, Visa or Master€eodld suspend or terminate our
registration. The termination of our registratiaraoy changes in the Visa or MasterCard ruleswioatd impair our registration could
require us to stop providing payment processingises, which would have a material adverse effaabar business.

On occasion, NMS experiences increases in interchg@mand sponsorship fees. If we cannot pass along#ie increases to our merchants,
our profit margins will be reduced.

Our electronic payment processing subsidiary patgséhange fees or assessments to bankcard agstifar each transaction we process
using their credit, debit and gift cards. From titog¢ime, the bankcard associations increase teecimange fees that they charge processor
the sponsoring banks, who generally pass on suchdses to us. From time to time, our sponsorimgdbancrease their fees as well. If we are
not able to pass these fee increases along to argecthrough corresponding increases in our progg$ses, our profit margins in this line of
business will be reduced.

Unauthorized disclosure of merchant or cardholder dta, whether through breach of our computer systemer otherwise, could expose
us to liability and business losses.

Through our electronic payment processing subgidiae collect and store sensitive data about metshend cardholders, and we maintain a
database of cardholder data relating to spec#iesactions, including payment, card numbers anthoédter addresses, in order to process the
transactions and for fraud prevention and otheriral processes. If anyone penetrates our netveatkrity or otherwise misappropriates
sensitive merchant or cardholder data, we coulsulgect to liability or business interruption. Wéhilke subject these systems to periodic
independent testing and review, we cannot guardhggeur systems will not be penetrated in tharkutlf a breach of our system occurs, we
may be subject to liability, including claims fonauthorized purchases with misappropriated caatimdition, impersonation or other similar
fraud claims. Similar risks exist with regard te ttorage and transmission of such data by ouepsots. In the event of any such a breach, we
may also be subject to a class action lawsuit. Houainesses are less prepared for the complexitisafeguarding cardholder data than their
larger counterparts. In the event of noncomplidnca customer of card industry rules, we could fages from payment card networks. There
can be no assurance that we would be able to reeayesuch fines from such customer.

NMS is liable if our processing merchants refuse ocannot reimburse charge-backs resolved in favor dheir customers.

If a billing dispute between a merchant and a oald#r is not ultimately resolved in favor of the neleant, the disputed transaction is “charged
back” to the merchant’s bank and credited to tlemawt of the cardholder. If we or our processingKsaare unable to collect the charge-back

from the merchant’s account, or if the merchanise$ or is financially unable due to bankruptcegtber reasons to reimburse the merchant’s
bank for the charge-back, we bear the loss foatheunt of the refund paid to the
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cardholder’s bank. Most of our merchants delivexdpicts or services when purchased, so a contitigéility for charge-backs is unlikely to
arise, and credits are issued on returned itemaeMer, some of our merchants do not provide seswvicdil sometime after a purchase, which
increases the potential for contingent liabilitydahe reserves we require of the merchants mabesufficient to cover the liability or may not
even be available to us in the event of a bankyuptc

NMS has potential liability for customer or merchart fraud.

Credit card fraud occurs when a merchant’s custarees a stolen card (or a stolen card number andxrot-present transaction) to purchase
merchandise or services. In a traditional cardgmegansaction, if the merchant swipes the caekives authorization for the transaction from
the card issuing bank and verifies the signaturtherback of the card against the paper receipesidpy the customer, the card issuing bank
remains liable for any loss. In a fraudulent caotHoresent transaction, even if the merchant reseauthorization for the transaction, the
merchant is liable for any loss arising from thenaction. Many of our business customers are smdltransact a substantial percentage of
their sales over the Internet or by telephone df anders. Because their sales are card-not-preésmmgactions, these merchants are more
vulnerable to customer fraud than larger merchamd,we could experience charge-backs arising frardholder fraud more frequently with
these merchants.

Merchant fraud occurs when a merchant, rather gheurstomer, knowingly uses a stolen or countecteil or card number to record a false
sales transaction or intentionally fails to delitee merchandise or services sold in an othervafid transaction. Anytime a merchant is une

to satisfy a charge-back, we are responsible fr¢hargehack. We cannot assure that the systems and pnasede have established to de
and reduce the impact of merchant fraud are orheiléffective. Failure to effectively manage riskl grevent fraud could increase our charge-
back liability.

Our payment processing systems may fail due to famts beyond our control, which could interrupt our business or cause us to lose
business and likely increase our costs.

We depend on the uninterrupted operations of oopeder network systems, software and our processata centers. Defects in these
systems or damage to them due to factors beyondamtrol could cause severe disruption to our lmssrand other material adverse effects on
our payment processing businesses.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS OF WEBSITE HOSTING
NTS operates in a highly competitive industry in wich technological change can be rapid.

The information technology business and its rel&etinology involve a broad range of rapidly chaggiechnologies. Our equipment and the
technologies on which it is based may not remamptitive over time, and others may develop supegichnologies that render our products
non-competitive without significant additional cegpiexpenditures. Some of our competitors are Baanitly larger and have substantially
greater market presence as well as greater finateiqnical, operational, marketing and other veses and experience than we do. In the
event that such a competitor expends significaessand marketing resources in one or several ngnke may not be able to compete
successfully in such markets. We believe that cditipe will continue to increase, placing downwamekssure on prices. Such pressure could
adversely affect our gross margins if we are nég &breduce our costs commensurate with such peections. There can be no assurances
that we will remain competitive.

Our website hosting business depends on the effinteand uninterrupted operation of its computer andcommunications hardware
systems and infrastructure.

Despite precautions taken by NTS against posséileré of its systems, interruptions could restdtd natural disasters, power loss, the
inability to acquire fuel for our backup generatgedecommunications failure, terrorist attacks aimdilar events. NTS also leases
telecommunications lines from local, regional aational carriers whose service may be interrup@rd. business, financial condition and
results of operations could be harmed by any daroaéglure that interrupts or delays our operagiofhere can be no assurance that our
insurance will cover all of the losses or compeadiES for the possible loss of clients occurringmtyiany period that NTS is unable to
provide service.

Our inability to maintain the integrity of our infr astructure and the privacy of confidential information would materially affect our
business.

The NTS infrastructure is potentially vulnerableptoysical or electronic break-ins, viruses or samproblems. If our security measures are
circumvented, it could jeopardize the security affidential information stored on NTS’s systemssapipropriate proprietary information or
cause interruptions in NTS'’s operations. We mayegiired to make significant additional investmeartd efforts to protect against or remedy
security breaches. Security breaches that resaltéess to confidential information
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could damage our reputation and expose us to afildss or liability. The security services that 8loffers in connection with customers’
networks cannot assure complete protection frompeder viruses, break-ins and other disruptive mid. The occurrence of these problems
may result in claims against NTS or us or liabibty our part. These claims, regardless of theimalte outcome, could result in costly litigati
and could harm our business and reputation andiifdes’s ability to attract and retain customers.

Our business depends on Microsoft Corporation andtbers for the licenses to use software as well ather intellectual property in the
website hosting business.

NTS's managed technology business is built on techyicdd platforms relying on the Microsoft Windows ogucts and other intellectual
property that NTS currently licenses. As a restitie are unable to continue to have the benefthoge licensing arrangements or if the
products upon which NTS’s platform is built becoaisolete, our business could be materially andraéiyeaffected.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR SMALL BUSINESS FINANCE BUSINE SSES
We depend on outside financing.

Our SBA lending and receivables financing busingeslemend on outside financing to support their lmaking and acquisition of receivables.
Termination of the credit lines for any reason vaolidve a material adverse effect on our busineskiding but not limited to, the liquidation
of the guaranteed loan and receivables portfotiggaly down the lines. If funds from such sale wasafficient to completely pay down the |i
of credit, the holding company and certain of itbsidiaries would be responsible for any short falDecember 2010 and again in December
2011, the Company securitized a portion of its wamgnteed, retained loan portions of its SBA 7(ahk) the Company anticipates using
securitizations to ultimately fund future loan diena, assuming the market for such securitizatimmgtinues to exist and future securitizations
can be executed on an economic basis beneficihet@ompany. Although a securitization potentighigvides a long term funding source for
the Company’s SBA lender, it does not provide lififyi in the short term for funding SBA loans. Besalts resources will be insufficient to
maintain current SBA loan originations, failureafr SBA lender to arrange a line to fund and wawskdhe origination of unguaranteed,
retained loan portions would materially impact business. In addition, our receivables financinggany depends on a line of credit which
matures in February 2014. Loss of this line andioalility to replace it would materially impactetousiness.

We have specific risks associated with Small Busisg Administration (SBA) loans.

We have generally sold the guaranteed portion & BBns in the secondary market. Such sales hausdteel in our earning premiums and
creating a stream of servicing income. There candassurance that we will be able to continueimaiing these loans, or that a secondary
market will exist for, or that we will continue tealize premiums upon the sale of the guarantedtpse of the SBA 7(a) loans.

Since we sell the guaranteed portion of substdytalr entire SBA 7(a) loan portfolio, we incur ditrisk on the non-guaranteed portion of the
SBA loans. We share pro rata with the SBA in arppveries. In the event of default on an SBA loam,mursuit of remedies against a borro

is subject to SBA approval, and where the SBA distads that its loss is attributable to deficiesdiethe manner in which the loan application
has been prepared and submitted, the SBA may éddlihonor its guarantee with respect to our SBksoor it may seek the recovery of
damages from us. If we should experience signifipaoblems with our underwriting of SBA loans, sdaflure to honor a guarantee or the «

to correct the problems could have a material asdveffect on us. Although the SBA has never dedltoehonor its guarantees with respect to
SBA loans made by us since our acquisition of émglér in 2003, no assurance can be given thatBAew®uld not attempt to do so in the
future.

Curtailment of the government-guaranteed loan progams could cut off an important segment of our busiess.

Although the program has been in existence siné8 1 ere can be no assurance that the federatrgoneat will maintain the SBA program,

or that it will continue to guarantee loans at eatrevels. If we cannot continue making and sgliovernment-guaranteed loans, we will
generate fewer origination fees and our abilitgemerate gains on sale of loans will decrease. Frogto-time, the government agencies that
guarantee these loans reach their internal buddjetéd and cease to guarantee loans for a statedigeriod. In addition, these agencies may
change their rules for loans. Also, Congress maytktgislation that would have the effect of disibouing or changing the programs. Non-
governmental programs could replace governmentramg for some borrowers, but the terms might natdueally acceptable. If these changes
occur, the volume of loans to small business addstrial borrowers of the types that now qualify government-guaranteed loans could
decline, as could the profitability of these loans.
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An increase in non-performing assets would reduceun income and increase our expenses.

If our level of non-performing assets in our SBAdang and receivable financing businesses riskearfuture, it could adversely affect our
revenue and earnings. Non-performing assets areaply loans on which borrowers are not makingrthegquired payments or receivables for
which the customer has not made timely payment-performing assets also include loans that hava bestructured to permit the borrower
to have smaller payments and real estate thatdes dicquired through foreclosure of unpaid loapgh€ extent that our financial assets are
non-performing, we will have less cash availableléading and other activities.

Our reserve for credit losses may not be sufficiertb cover unexpected losses.

Our business depends on the behavior of our cussotmeaddition to our credit practices and proceduwe maintain a reserve for credit lo:
on our SBA loans and accounts receivable portfalitich management has judged to be adequate diedioans we originate and receivables
we purchase. We periodically review our reserveaftgquacy considering current economic conditionkteends, collateral values, charge-off
experience, levels of past due loans and non-paifigr assets, and we adjust our reserve accordifigiywever, because of the poor current
economic conditions caused by the recession, @erves may prove inadequate, which could have arrabadverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

We could be adversely affected by weakness in thesidential housing and commercial real estate marke

Continued weakness in residential home and comalerzl estate values could impair our ability édlect on defaulted SBA loans as real
estate is pledged in many of our SBA loans asqfatte collateral package.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR INSURANCE AGENCY BUSINESS
We depend on third parties, particularly property and casualty insurance companies, to supply the preatts marketed by our agents.

Our contracts with property and casualty insurazarapanies typically provide that the contracts lsaterminated by the supplier without
cause. Our inability to enter into satisfactoryaagements with these suppliers or the loss of tredagonships for any reason would adversely
affect the results of our new insurance businetso,fur inability to obtain these products at cetitive prices could make it difficult for us to
compete with larger and better capitalized prowdsrsuch insurance services.

If we fail to comply with government regulations, air insurance agency business could be adversely efted.

Our insurance agency business is subject to corapsafe regulation in the various states in whichple® to conduct business. Our success
will depend in part upon our ability to satisfy sieeregulations and to obtain and maintain all megulicenses and permits. Our failure to
comply with any statutes and regulations could reweaterial adverse effect on us. Furthermoreattoption of additional statutes and
regulations, changes in the interpretation andreafoent of current statutes and regulations oexpansion of our business into jurisdictions
that have adopted more stringent regulatory remergs than those in which we currently conductress could have a material adverse e
on us.

We do not have any control over the commissions olimsurance agency expects to earn on the sale o$imance products which are
based on premiums and commission rates set by in®rs and the conditions prevalent in the insurance arket.

Our insurance agency earns commissions on thegaisurance products. Commission rates and presitan change based on the prevailing
economic and competitive factors that affect insaeaunderwriters. In addition, the insurance inguisas been characterized by periods of
intense price competition due to excessive undéngrcapacity and periods of favorable premium Igdeie to shortages of capacity. We
cannot predict the timing or extent of future ches\gh commission rates or premiums or the effegtadinhese changes will have on the
operations of our insurance agency.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR PAYROLL PROCESSING BUSINESS

Unauthorized disclosure of employee data, whethehtough breach of our computer systems or otherwisesould expose us to liability
and business losses.

Through our payroll processing subsidiary, we alend store sensitive data about individuals rédepto process the transactions and for «
internal processes. If anyone penetrates our nktsexurity or otherwise misappropriates sensitiaividual data, we could be subject to
liability or business interruption. While we sulfj¢itese systems to periodic independent testingeridw,
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we cannot guarantee that our systems will not betpated in the future. If a breach of our syst&cues, we may be subject to liability,
including claims for impersonation or other simifeaud claims. In the event of any such a breaghmay also be subject to a class action
lawsuit. Any significant violations of data privacguld result in the loss of business, litigationl aegulatory investigations and penalties that
could damage our reputation, and the growth ofomsiness could be adversely affected.

Our systems may be subject to disruptions that codladversely affect our business and reputation.

Our payroll business relies heavily on our payfilancial, accounting and other data processisgesys. If any of these systems fails to
operate properly or becomes disabled even fored period of time, we could suffer financial lossdisruption of our business, liability to
clients, regulatory intervention or damage to ajputation. We have disaster recovery plans in glageotect our businesses against natural
disasters, security breaches, military or terratttons, power or communication failures or sim@aents. Despite our preparations, our
disaster recovery plans may not be successfuldngmting the loss of client data, service intelinns, and disruptions to our operations or
damage to our important facilities.

If we fail to adapt our technology to meet client peds and preferences, the demand for our servicesagndiminish.

Our businesses operate in industries that are cutojeapid technological advances and changirentheeds and preferences. In order to
remain competitive and responsive to client demawdscontinually upgrade, enhance and expand datigx solutions and services. If we f
to respond successfully to technology challendesdemand for our services may diminish.

Our payroll business could incur unreimbursed cost®r damages due to delays in processing inherent the banking system.

Our payroll processing business generally detersiihe availability of customer (employer) fundsoptio making payments to employees or
taxing authorities, and such employer funds areegaly transferred in to our accounts prior to mgkpayments out. Due to the structure of

banking system however, there are times when wemake payroll or tax payments and not immediateteive the funds to do so from the

employer. There can be no assurance that the proeede have in place to prevent these occurresramdtigate the damages will be suffici

to prevent loss to our business.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR CAPCO BUSINESS

The Capco programs and the tax credits they providare created by state legislation and implementedhtough regulation, and such
laws and rules are subject to possible action to peal or retroactively revise the programs for politcal, economic or other reasons. Such
an attempted repeal or revision would create substdial difficulty for the Capco programs and could, if ultimately successful, cause us
material financial harm.

The tax credits associated with the Capco progeamdsprovided to our Capcos’ investors are to deetl by the investors over a period of
time, which is typically ten years. Much can chadgeng such a period and it is possible that anmare states may revise or eliminate the
credits. Any such revision or repeal could haveagemal adverse economic impact on our Capcosereitinectly or as a result of the Capco’s
insurer’s actions. Any such final state action fleapardizes the tax credits could result in thevjgter of our Capco insurance assuming partial
of full control of the particular Capco in orderrtanimize its liability under the Capco insuranadigies issued to our investors.

During 2002, a single legislator in Louisiana imtmeed such a proposed bill, on which no action taksn, and in Colorado in 2003 and 2004
bills to modify (not repeal) its Capco program wareoduced; the 2003 Colorado legislation was diefe in a legislative committee. The 2004
Colorado legislation was adopted but implementemutations made clear the application of the ndesranly to investments made after
passage. There can be no assurance that we wiensiibject to further legislative or regulatorfi@t which might adversely impact our Ca|
business, or that we will be able to successfuigilenge any such action.

Because our Capcos are subject to requirements undstate law, a failure of any of them to meet theseequirements could subject the
Capco and our stockholders to the loss of one or m®Capcos.

Despite the fact that we have met all applicableimim requirements of the Capco programs in whietstill participate, each Capco remains
subject to state regulation until it has invest@é@ fercent of its funds and otherwise remainedllindgal compliance. There can be no
assurance that we will continue to be able to dAsmajor regulatory violation, while not fatal tar Capco business, would materially
increase the cost of operating the Capcos.
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RISKS RELATING TO OUR COMMON SHARES
Our shares may be delisted.

If we do not continue to meet the requirementstortinued listing on the NASDAQ Capital Market @ammon shares could be delisted. One
such requirement is maintaining a minimum bid pfareshares of $1.00. As compliance with the mimmiuading price for common shares is
beyond our control, there can be no assurancetteatrice will remain above $1.00 indefinitely atiigrefore, no assurance that the threat of
delisting can be avoided. In the event that thernomshares are delisted, there can be no assutatan active public market for our shares
can be sustained or that current trading levelsbeasustained or not diminished.

The application of the “penny stock” rules to our @mmon shares if we are no longer listed on the NAST) Capital Market could limit
the trading and liquidity of the common shares, adersely affect the market price of our Common Shareand increase your transaction
costs to sell those shares.

If we are no longer listed on the NASDAQ Capitalrkit, as long as the trading price of our commaretis below $5.00 per share, open-
market trading will be subject to the “penny stocdldes, which impose additional sales practice ireguents on broker-dealers who sell
securities to persons other than established cestoand accredited investors and otherwise haveftéet of limiting the trading activity of tt
common shares, reducing the liquidity of an invesitrin the common shares and increasing the traasamsts for their sales and purchases.

Two of our stockholders, one a current and one a fmer executive officer, beneficially own approximaely 24% of our common shares,
and are able to exercise significant influence oveéhe outcome of most stockholder actions.

Although there is no agreement or understandingéost them, because of their ownership of our shsfessrs. Sloane and Rubin will be a
to have significant influence over actions requjrgtockholder approval, including the election iméctors, the adoption of amendments to the
certificate of incorporation, approval of stockémtive plans and approval of major transactions sisca merger or sale of assets. This could
delay or prevent a change in control of our compaeyrive our stockholders of an opportunity toeiee a premium for their common shares
as part of a change in control and have a negaffeet on the market price of our common shares.

Future issuances of our common shares or other seties, including preferred shares, may dilute theper share book value of our
common shares or have other adverse consequence®tw common stockholders.

Our board of directors has the authority, withdg &ction or vote of our stockholders, to issue@rflart of the approximately 19,000,000
authorized but unissued shares of our common s€@gkbusiness strategy relies upon investmentadnaaquisitions of businesses using the
resources available to us, including our commomeshaVe have made acquisitions during each of ¢glaesyfrom 2002 to 2005 involving the
issuance of our common shares and we expect to gutitonal acquisitions in the future using oumeoon shares. Additionally, we
anticipate granting additional options or restiics¢ock awards to our employees and directorsdritture. We may also issue additional
securities, through public or private offeringspnaler to raise capital to support our growth, uidithg in connection with possible acquisitions
or in connection with purchases of minority intésda affiliated companies or Capcos. Future issaarof our common shares will dilute the
percentage of ownership interest of current stolddre and could decrease the per share book valme @ommon shares. In addition, option
holders may exercise their options at a time whemwuld otherwise be able to obtain additional gocapital on more favorable terms.

Pursuant to our certificate of incorporation, ooatdl of directors is authorized to issue, withatiica or vote of our stockholders, up to
1,000,000 shares of “blank check” preferred shanesning that our board of directors may, in isctition, cause the issuance of one or more
series of preferred shares and fix the designatmeserences, powers and relative participatipgiooal and other rights, qualifications,
limitations and restrictions thereof, including tieidend rate, conversion rights, voting righesdemption rights and liquidation preference,
and to fix the number of shares to be includedchinsuch series. The preferred shares so issuedank&ysuperior to the common shares with
respect to the payment of dividends or amounts Uigaidation, dissolution or winding-up, or botim &ddition, the shares of preferred stock
may have class or series voting rights.

The authorization and issuance of “blank check” préerred shares could have an anti-takeover effect démental to the interests of our
stockholders.

Our certificate of incorporation allows our boaiffdd@ectors to issue preferred shares with righis preferences set by the board without
further stockholder approval. The issuance of ttiblmk check” preferred shares could have an @kiover effect detrimental to the interests
of our stockholders. For example, in the event bbstile takeover attempt, it may be possible for
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management and the board to impede the attemgsshing the preferred shares, thereby diluting gaiining the voting power of the other
outstanding common shares and increasing the paltensts to acquire control of us. Our board Inasright to issue any new shares, including
preferred shares, without first offering them te ttolders of common shares, as they have no preemmijghts.

We know of no other publicly-held company that sposors and operates Capcos as a material part of iisiness. As such, there are, to
our knowledge, no other companies against which imstors may compare our Capco business segment, atgloperations, results of
operations and financial and accounting structures.

In the absence of any meaningful peer group corepasi for our Capco business, investors may hafieutl time understanding and judging
the strength of our business. This, in turn, mayehadepressing effect on the value of our shares.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation andNew York law place restrictions on our stockholdersability to recover from our
directors for breaches of their duties.

As permitted by New York law, our amended and testaertificate of incorporation limits the lialtyliof our directors for monetary damages
for breach of a director’s fiduciary duty except ability in certain instances. As a result oéfie provisions and New York law, stockholders
have restrictions and limitations upon their rigtatsecover from directors for breaches of thetietu In addition, our certificate of
incorporation provides that we must indemnify omectors and officers to the fullest extent peradtby law.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
Not applicable

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We conduct our principal business activities irilfaes leased from unrelated parties at markedsaOur headquarters are located in New \
New York. Our operating subsidiaries have propentiich are material to the conduct of their bussnas noted below. In addition, our Caj
maintain offices in each of the states in whichytbperate.

Below is a list of our leased offices and spacefd3ecember 31, 2011 which are material to the aohdf our business:

Location Lease expiration Purpose Approx. sq. ft
1125 W. Pinnacle Pe: Managed technology solutiol
Phoenix, AZ 8502 January 2012 offices 15,000
744 North 4 St. - Electronic payment processing WI
Milwaukee, WI 5320 March 2012 offices 14,300
8521 E. Princess Drive Managed technology solutions data
Phoenix, AZ 8525! June 2014 center 6,000
Lease of principal executive offic:
ﬁgvvxﬁi 331\( fgle; October 201 (Corporate activities and SBA 5,700
' - lending)

1440 Broadway . Sublet - former principal
New York, New York 1001t October 201% executive office: 23,000

. . Newtek Insurance Agency, custon
S(r)gwl\glg\);:ﬁg STt)r<e%58216|te H3-A June 201° service and sales support offices 17,500

' (All Other segment
Newtek Small Business Financ

60 Hempstead Avenue April 2019 Newtek Business Credit Offices 11,000

West Hempstead, NY 11552

(Lending segment) and NY Capco
offices
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* Lease expired January 31, 2012, and was extendeuagth March 15, 2012. A new thryear lease became effective March 1, 201:
approximately 11,000 square feet, and is locatd®@4 West Parkside Drive in Phoenix, #
**  Lease expires March 31, 2012. The Company is ctlyrerploring alternative location

We believe that our leased facilities are adegtateeet our current needs and that additionalifeslare available to meet our development
and expansion needs in existing and projected ttangekets.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company firwaiy time to time be party to lawsuits and claifilke Company evaluates such matters on
a case by case basis and its policy is to contgstausly any claims it believes are without confipglmerit. The Company is currently

involved in various litigation matters. Managemkas reviewed all legal claims against the Compaitly gounsel and has taken into
consideration the views of such counsel, as tmtheome of the claims. In management’s opiniorglftfisposition of all such claims will not
have a material adverse effect on the results efatjpns, cash flows or financial position of thengpany.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.
None.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

(a) Market Information: Our common stock is tradedthe NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “NEWHigh and low prices for the
common stock over the previous two years are st felow, based on the highest and lowest dadlgint price during that period.

Period

First Quarter: January 1, 2010 Through March 310
Second Quarter: April 1, 2010 Through June 30, z

Third Quarter: July 1, 2010 Through September 800
Fourth Quarter: October 1, 2010 Through Decembef310
First Quarter: January 1, 2011 Through March 31,2
Second Quarter: April 1, 2011 Through June 30, 2

Third Quarter: July 1, 2011 Through September 80,1
Fourth Quarter: October 1, 2011 Through Decembef311

High
$1.34
$1.54
$1.45
$1.7¢
$1.9C
$1.6¢€
$1.5¢
$1.32

(b) Holders: As of March 13, 2012 there were appnaely 192 holders of record of our common stock.

Low
$0.92
$1.24
$1.07
$1.32
$1.6C
$1.2C
$1.2¢
$1.0€

(c) Dividends: In November 2009 the Company deda&0.02 dividend per share. Any future deternomatd pay cash and stock dividends
will be at the discretion of our board of directared will be dependent upon our financial conditioperating results, capital requirements and
other factors that our board of directors considgzropriate. No dividends were declared or pa@0ih0 or 2011.

(d) Securities authorized for issuance under equitgpensation plans:

@
Number of securities
to
be issued upon exercis

of outstanding options

Plan Category warrants and rights

(b)
Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options

warrants and rights

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holder: 2,023,550 share

Equity compensation plans not appro
by security holder None

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.
Not applicable
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
Introduction and Certain Cautionary Statements

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations is intendedssist in the understanding and
assessment of significant changes and trends rketatéhe results of operations and financial pasitof the Company together with its
subsidiaries. This discussion and analysis shoslddad in conjunction with the consolidated finahatatements and the accompanying notes.

The statements in this Annual Report may contaimdial-looking statements relating to such mattessaaticipated future financial
performance, business prospects, legislative dewedmts and similar matters. The Private Securltiigation Reform Act of 1995 provides
safe harbor for forward-looking statements. In arttecomply with the terms of the safe harbor, wterthat a variety of factors could cause
our actual results to differ materially from thetaipated results expressed in the forward looksteggements such as intensified competition
and/or operating problems in its operating businpsgjects and their impact on revenues and profitgims or additional factors as described
under “Risk Factors” above.

We also need to point out that our Capcos operatieta different set of rules in each of the shsglictions and that these place varying
requirements on the structure of our investmemtsome cases, particularly in Louisiana, we dogwttrol the equity or management of a
qualified business but that cannot always be preskarally or in written presentations.

Executive Overview

The Company is pleased to report continued prafitaliin 2011 due to its efforts to increase sadesl the expansion of lending to small
businesses.

For the year ended December 31, 2011 we recordddamene of $3,481,000 on revenues of $125,339,0086.net income improved
$2,042,000 over the net income of $1,439,000 ir02Ptetax income was $2,272,000, a $1,395,000 imgnent over the $877,000 pretax
income in 2010. Total revenues increased by $120880 or 11.2%, from $112,719,000 for the year dridecember 31, 2010 principally due
to increased revenues in the Electronic paymertgsging, and Small business finance segmentsipeadffset by decreases in revenues from
the Corporate and Capco segments. The Small bsdimesice segment recorded a $5,493,000 fair @akse of which $3,366,000 was related
to the guaranteed portions of SBA 7(a) loans temnafl in secondary market transactions during 2Bd0achieved sales status in 2011 and for
which a corresponding fair value gain had beenrdsmbpreviously. Total expenses increased $2,00a®$117,443,000 for the year ended
2011 from $115,374,000 for 2010: increases in sdadt payment processing costs, salaries and lisnlefase restructuring charges, and other
general and administrative costs were offset byedees in interest, depreciation and amortizatiod,provision for loan losses.

The net income in 2011 was positively impacted bgxabenefit for the year of $1,097,000. The effectate, or (48)%, is comprised of a net
deferred tax benefit and a current tax provisiolth@ugh the Company had consolidated pretax incahgeincome from NSBF was offset by
the available net operating losses (“NOL”") at NSBifich had a previous valuation allowance. In additithe remaining valuation allowance
on the NSBF deferred tax asset was released bageast and future performance of the entity. Then@any used its remaining passive losses
and NOLs in 2011 to offset taxable income primagiénerated by the Capcos. Based on the timingmbadeary differences related to the
Capco entities, the Company will experience sigatiiit taxable income in 2011 and future years. Sge B9 for a full discussion.

Contributing to the pretax income of $2,272,00Q@11, were improvements in pretax income for thec&bnic payment processing, Managed
technology solutions, Small business finance, CapabAll other segments, which were offset by amdased loss in the Corporate segment.
Electronic payment processing segment gross margirased on a percentage basis due to the intiodwaf new, higher margin products &
services in both 2010 and 2011 as well as redulesttenic payment processing costs. The improvetbgrincome in the Managed technology
solutions segment resulted from increased saldsdimgy fees from web design and reduced expens@sanply a reduction in depreciation and
amortization.

One of the primary drivers for Newtek’s continugdffiability was the operation of the Small busisdéimance segment which generated an
increase in pretax income of $2,090,000 to $4,1B5iA 2011 as compared to $2,045,000 in 2010. The
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Small business finance segment utilized the Compdnysiness model to capitalize on a positive dpeganvironment due to improved
pricing in the secondary market for guaranteed kalas, and demand for loans from borrowers dtieetshortage of loans provided by
conventional lenders, to increase loan originatitwen servicing and receivables financing. Therssg originated $97,129,000 of SBA 7(a)
loans during 2011 as opposed to $65,655,000 otginduring 2010. In addition, the segment continteeoenefit from a contract with the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation to provideis@g in connection with failures of banks holdi8BA guaranteed loans. In 2010, the
segment’s lender, Newtek Small Business Financejved a “select servicer” rating from S&P for deivg small business loans.

The lending operations of the Small business firaaegment materially affected all aspects of Ne\wteksh flows in 2011. Net cash provided
by the Company’s operations totaled $11,405,00@Heryear ended December 31, 2011. The amountdoetrokers decreased by
$7,148,000, and the segment’s receivables finaremngpany increased receivable purchases whichibated a $3,633,000 increase over the
year ended December 31, 2010. Investing activiteesl $17,648,000 primarily to fund $22,269,000BAS (a) unguaranteed portior
Financing activities generated $7,224,000 primaeRecting proceeds from the Company’s secondritezation of additional unguaranteed
portions of SBA 7(a) loans, the proceeds of whigrewsed to restructure a term loan from Capita Bank, and the use of the new Capital
One bank revolving facility to fund guaranteed for$ of SBA 7(a) loans. As a result of these atiéigj cash and cash equivalents increased
$981,000 from $10,382,000 on December 31, 201019363,000 on December 31, 2011.

In December 2010, the Company established a sizetidin trust and issued notes in the amount of IG000. A second securitization, an

amendment to the original transaction, was comglgtéecember 2011, and resulted in an additiohd|$00,000 notes being issued. The !

lender used the cash generated from these tramssdt retire its outstanding term loan from Cdpitae, N.A. and to fund an account with a
combined total of $8,000,000 which was used to lpase unguaranteed portions originated subsequéme &ecuritization

transactions. Although the success of the secatiitiz provides a long term funding source for tlemPany’s SBA lender, the securitization

mechanism itself does not provide liquidity in #fert term for funding SBA loans.

In 2010, ASC Topic 860, “Transfers and Servicingguired for the guaranteed portions transferratittite Company, due to the premium
warranty formerly incorporated in SBA Form 1086g(¢ee discussion above), establish a new ass#tdelathe guaranteed portion of SBA 7
(a) loans contractually sold but subject to premmagourse and a matching liability until the endref warranty period. Contemporaneous with
the adoption of this new accounting standard then@my elected the fair value option for valuingsthew liability, which is captioned in the
consolidated financial statements as “Liability®BA loans transferred, subject to premium recolisethe time, management elected to
adopt the fair value option election because itaramrcurately reflected the economics of the traimacAfter February 7, 2011, the new SBA
Form 1086 allowed the Company to recognize premigame concurrent with the date of transfer, as awaege prior to January 1, 2010. As a
result, the balances in the “SBA loans transferse@ject to premium recourse” and “Liability on SBAans transferred, subject to premium
recourse” steadily decreased throughout 2010 aedteslly reached zero by December 31, 2011.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Companycated its corporate and lending facility to two #erespaces in order to reduce its expense
and improve its cash flows. Concurrent with thigcation, the Company entered into a sublease agneeof the previous office space located
at 1440 Broadway, New York, NY. The present valtithe differential of the remaining obligation diet original lease, which expires in
October 2015, reduced by the estimated rent callesunder the sublet resulted in a $990,000 Idgsiwthe Company recorded as a pretax
charge to earnings.

Finally, during the course of 2010, Wilshire Alabafartners, LLC reached the 100% investment thigsand in 2011 received official
confirmation that it had completed all investmemd &ther requirements under the CAPCO program.
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Business Segment Results:
The results of the Company’s reportable businegmeats are discussed below.

Electronic Payment Processing

% Change

(In thousands): 2011 2010 2009 2011 201C
Revenue

Electronic payment processi $82,47t  $80,92(  $69,65: 2% 16%

Interest incom 11 16 37  (31%) (57%)

Total revenu 82,48¢ 80,93¢ 69,68¢ 2% 16%

Expenses

Electronic payment processing cc 69,14 68,17: 58,29¢ 1% 17%

Salaries and benefi 3,99t 4,101 4,09/ (3%) 0%

Professional fee 27C 34¢€ 267  (22%) 30%

Depreciation and amortizatic 1,41¢ 1,632 1,75¢ (13%) (7%)

Other general and administrative cc 1,20¢ 962 921 25% 5%
Total expense 76,03t 75,21¢ 65,33¢ 1% 15%
Income before income tax $ 6451 $571¢ $435 13% 31%
2011

Electronic payment processing revenue increaségb$100 or 2% between years due to organic grow#® Revenue from acquired
portfolios decreased overall revenue growth by feas 1% due to merchant attrition and other factBevenue from organic growth increased
due to a combination of growth in processing volanselective fee increases and additions to seryimavided to our merchants. Processing
volumes were favorably impacted by an increas@eratverage number of processing merchants undeacbhetween periods of 6%. In
addition, organic growth in revenue between perindeeased due to an increase of approximatelyr2éta average monthly processing
volume per merchant. The increase in the averagehtyoprocessing volume per merchant is due in foattte addition of several larger
volume processing merchants as well as year-ovargmwth in processing volumes from existing marah. Total revenue from nacquirec
business in 2011 was adversely impacted by appaiein6% due to the overall pricing mix of merchaakes volumes realized between
periods as well as price decreases under certaichamg processing contracts.

Electronic payment processing costs increased $06&)r 1% between years. Electronic payment praogs®sts resulting from acquired
portfolios had the overall effect of decreasinghsaasts by less than 1% between years. Electr@yimpnt processing costs associated with
non-acquired business had the effect of increasiegfronic payment processing costs by less thabh@¥een years. Beginning in the fourth
quarter of 2011, the EPP Segment began experiefmivey EPP Costs as interchange costs on debittardactions were reduced for
interchange plus priced merchants as well as atReogessing revenues less electronic payment gsimgecosts (“margin”) increased from
15.7% in 2010 to 16.2% in 2011. The effect of adomargin from acquired portfolios decreased tlesgmargin percentage by 0.3%. The
introduction of new, higher margin products and/ees in both 2010 and 2011 and the impact on nee®@and EPP Costs as a result of the
debit card pricing and interchange cost changesdnabove, more than offset the impact in 2011 wklomargins realized due to a change in
the mix of merchants and their related transagtimeessing activity between years. The increaseargin dollars was $587,000 between
years.

Excluding electronic payment processing costs,rathsts decreased $151,000 or 2% between yearse@aion and amortization decreased
$213,000 between periods as the result of prewaajuired portfolio intangible assets becomindyfamortized between periods. Remaining
costs increased $62,000 as an increase in markefitgd costs of $169,000 was partially offsetbgt reductions in salaries and wages and
professional fees between years. Marketing exp@gseased in conjunction with the launchTdfe Small Business Authoriggnew marketing
campaign initiated by the Company beginning in dan2011.
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Income before income taxes increased $733,000,45$00 in 2011 from $5,718,000 in 2010. The iaseein income before income taxes
was due to the increase in the dollar margin ofaip®g revenues less electronic payment processiats of $587,000 due to the reasons noted
above and the decrease in other expenses betwaen ye

2010

Electronic payment processing revenue increase@62000 or 16% between periods due to the impagtoavth in organic revenue of 17%
while revenues from acquired portfolios decreaseatal growth in revenues by 1% between periodstduserchant attrition and other factc
The growth in organic revenue was due to a comionatf growth in processing volumes, selectiveifegeases and additional fee-based
services provided to our merchants. Processingweduwere favorably impacted by an increase in tieesge number of merchants under
contract between periods of 7%. In addition, orgaaivenue between periods increased due to arese approximately 6% in the average
monthly processing volume per merchant. The ineréashe average monthly processing volume per naetcis due in part to the addition of
several larger volume processing merchants asasgikeriod-oveperiod growth in processing volumes from existingramants. The remainil
increase in organic revenue is due to selectivén@eases, principally reflecting the pass throafjbct to merchants of corresponding fee
increases by both VISA and Master Card , and theahservices provided to our merchants.

Electronic payment processing costs increased 8380 or 17% between years. Electronic paymentgssing costs resulting from acquired
portfolios had the overall effect of decreasinghsoasts by approximately 1% between periods dumeichant attrition and other factors.
Organic electronic payment processing costs hadfflet of increasing electronic payment processiogt by 18% between periods.
Processing revenues less electronic payment piingessst (“margin”) decreased approximately .6%frd6.3% in 2009 to 15.7% in 2010. A
lower contribution to margin from acquired portédicontributed .6% to the decline in margin. Amr@ase in residual payments made to ce
high volume third-party sales referral sources tedgrowth of such third-party sales on a saleshmsbis resulted in a reduction of the margin
by 1.0%. Partially offsetting the aforementionedtéas were margin improvements totaling approxitysted%. Such margin improvements
included negotiated cost reductions with the Corgisaprincipal transaction processor, the introductdf new, higher margin products and
services, as well as rate increases for certaioggsing services. The increase in margin dollass$12391,000 between periods.

Excluding electronic payment processing costs,rathsts increased $5,000 or .1% between periodsddmtion and amortization costs
decreased $122,000 between periods as the requkvibusly acquired portfolio intangible assetsdraing fully amortized between periods.
Remaining costs increased $127,000 or 2.4% pritigipesulting from efforts to identify customer s&re improvement opportunities and to
support the growth in the number of merchants sebetween periods.

Income before income taxes increased $1,365,08Q%rto $5,718,000 in 2010 from $4,353,000 in 200¥increase in the dollar margin of
operating revenues less EPP processing costs dine teasons noted above coupled with a lowerofatecrease in other expenses resulted in
the increase in income before income taxes betywesdnds.
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Managed Technology Solutions

% Change
(In thousands): 2011 2010 2009 2011 201C
Revenue
Web hosting and desic $19,18: $19,16¢ $18,84¢ 0% 2%
Interest incom 1 4 12 (75%) (67%)
Total revenu 19,18 19,16¢ 18,85¢ 0% 2%
Expenses
Salaries and benefi 4,75k 4,91( 5,04z (3%) (3%)
Interest 104 107 122 (B%) (13%)
Professional fee 692 551 28( 26% 97%
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,387 1,82¢ 2578 (24%) (29%)
Other general and administrative cc 7,408 7,04z 6,91: 5% 2%
Total expense 14,34: 14,43¢ 14,93: (1%) (3%)
Income before income tax $4841 $473C $3928 2% @ 21%
2011

Revenue is derived primarily from recurring feemfrhosting websites, including monthly contractssteared hosting, dedicated servers, and
cloud instances (the “plans”). In addition, revemaee derived from contracted services to designsites. Revenue between years increased
$19,000, or less than 1%, to $19,183,000 in 20he.ificrease in revenues included an increase indesign revenues of $177,000 to
$532,000 in 2011 and offset by a decrease in wsbrigprevenue of $158,000. The decrease in welingostvenue is the result of a decreas
the average monthly number of total plans by 4&78% between years to 56,351 plans in 2011 frof@@®plans in 2010. Partially offsetting
the decrease in web hosting revenue resulting fhendecline in such plans was an increase in theage revenue per plan of 7% to $330.98
from $308.73. The increase in the average reveauelpn reflects a growth in cloud instances arsdaroers purchasing higher-cost plans
including additional options and services. The agernumber of cloud instances increased by 1790%r, to an average of 367 from 193 for
2010 reflecting the Company’s introduction of atonger scalable cloud offering in 2011. The decréaske average total plans is mainly
reflected in the shared and dedicated segmentsavdrage monthly number of dedicated server plan20d11, which generate a higher
monthly fee versus shared hosting plans, decrdas806 between periods, or 14%, to an average8dflfrom an average of 2,146 for 2010.
The average monthly number of shared hosting gar2011 decreased by 4,444, or 8%, to an averb§é,b43 from 58,587 for 2011.
Competition from other web hosting providers ashaglalternative website services continues to laavegative effect on web hosting plan
count and revenue growth.

Customer service and competitive pricing by NTSdoed the rate of attrition between years, but sahelsmarketing efforts have yet to prov
sufficient new accounts to keep the overall planntdrom declining. It is management’s intent torgase revenues and margin per plan
through higher service offerings to customers,calth this may result in a lower number of planplace overall.

Total expenses decreased by 1% or $95,000 in 26hpared to 2010. The decrease in total expenskalesa decrease in salaries and
benefits between years of $155,000 and a $441,66@dse in depreciation and amortization due toced capital expenditures in recent ye
as a result of lower replacement costs for newpqgant overall, more efficient use of existing eequgnt within the data center for shared and
dedicated plans and the utilization of cloud aesttitre to more efficiently provide services to oustrs. The $155,000 decrease in salaries anc
benefits was principally due to an increase intediped wages for internally used software of $68,and an additional amount charged to
other Newtek segments ($114,000) between yeardwiieflected as a reduction of salaries and wigesegment reporting purposes. The
increase of $141,000 in professional fees was pilyndue to an increase in audit fees for a SO@dagement and an increase in web design
costs in direct connection with the additional sewoffering to customers for custom website depelent. The $363,000 increase in other
general and administrative costs is primarily dua bne-time expense of $190,000 as a result ae@ution of a licensing dispute and an
increase of $136,000 in marketing expense. Margetipense increased in conjunction with the lawfcrhe Small Business Authorigynew
marketing campaign initiated by the Company in dap2011.

26



Table of Contents

Income before income taxes increased 2% or $111@®®8,841,000 for 2011 from $4,730,000 for 2018e Tmprovement in profitability
resulted primarily from the decrease in salaries lzenefits and depreciation and amortization.

2010

This segment derives revenue primarily from recgrifees from hosting websites, including monthigteacts for shared hosting, dedicated
servers, and virtual instances (the “plangVeb hosting revenue between periods increased @308pr 2%, to $19,164,000 for 2010 over 2
due to improved revenue per plan (see below), acggrowth of hosted virtual instances, and an iaseein the sales of custom website
development services. NTS sales promotions andcgeand plan enhancements failed to prevent Idssglan counts but did help to maintain
revenue. Web design revenue grew approximately $2P0o $356,000 for 2010 from $136,000 for 200@nlslgement’s intent is to grow
revenues through higher service offerings to custsro drive greater revenue and margin per plgmwgh this may result in a lower number
of plans sold overall.

The increase in revenue reflects an increase irageaevenue per plan of 9% to $314.55 from $286ffiset by a decrease in the average
monthly number of total plans by 4,258 for 201@aspared to 2009, or 7%, to 60,926 from 65,184.rawgment in revenue per plan
primarily reflects the growth in virtual instancesistomers purchasing higher-cost plans, and intijiadditional options and services. The
average monthly number of dedicated server plan2G0, which generate a higher monthly fee vestiased hosting plans, decreased by 29
between periods, or 1%, to an average of 2,146 #dm5 for 2009. The average monthly number ofesth&aosting plans for 2010 decrease
4,278, or 7%, to an average of 58,587 from 62,882009. The average monthly number of virtualdnst plans increased by 46, or 31%, to
an average of 193 from 147 for 2009. Increased etitigm from other web hosting providers as welb#srnative website services continue to
have a negative effect on plan count growth whictuin limits revenue growth.

Total segment expenses decreased by 3%, or $49m00® year ended 2010 over the prior year. Thgrity of the decrease between peri
reflects a decrease in salaries and benefits d? $08, a decrease in depreciation and amortizafi®747,000 and a decrease in interest
expense of $16,000 partially offset by an incraassher general and administrative costs of $1@9,@nainly due to an increase in utility
costs, and an increase in professional fees of #2091 The $174,000 decrease in salaries and bemedit primarily due to a reduction of
headcount between years offset slightly by an ae®en health insurance premiums. The $747,00@®dserin depreciation and amortization
was primarily due approximately $439,000 of amatian expense in the prior year that did not reo@c2010 relating to the intangible assets
(the customer account and non-compete covenanttfrertime of acquisition) being fully amortizedJaine 30, 2009 and the slowing of capital
expenditures as a result of more efficient uséefaxisting equipment within the datacenter. ThEI$200 increase in professional fees is
primarily due to the increase in web design castdiiect connection with the additional serviceesofig to customers for custom website
development.

Income before income taxes increased 21% or $805@®®4,730,000 for 2010 from $3,925,000 for 2008 improvement in profitability
primarily resulted from the increase in web hostmgl web related services revenue combined witceedse in total expenses. The increa
the sales of custom website development servicegalith the slowing of capital expenditures anglititangible assets having been fully
amortized in the prior year contributed to the ioy@ment in income in 2010.
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Small Business Finance

% Change
(In thousands): 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
Revenue
Premium on loan sale $12,46¢ $ 2,42¢ $ 1,652 414% 47%
Servicing fee 3,09¢ 2,56¢ 1,62¢ 21% 58%
Interest incom: 2,54t 1,745 1,50¢ 46% 16%
Management fee 58E 58t 58E — % — %
Other income 2,32¢ 2,04 1,94: 14% 5%
Total revenu 21,02t 9,371 7,30¢ 124% 28%
Net change in fair value ¢
SBA loans transferred, subject to premium reco (3,36¢€) 3,36¢ — 200% — %
SBA loans held for sal 26E 41% — Be)% — %
SBA loans held for investme (2,397) (28E) — (739% — %
Total net change in fair valt (5,499 3,494 — (250% — %
Expenses
Salaries and benefi 4,68¢ 3,62( 2,92( 30% 24%
Interest 2,03( 1,91¢ 1,48¢ 6% 29%
Management fee — 46C 46C (100% — %
Professional fee 474 45C 364 5% 24%
Depreciation and amortizatic 893 79C 931 13% (15)%
Provision for loan los 751 1,84¢ 1,83¢ (59)% 1%
Other general and administrative cc 2,56( 1,73¢ 1,61( 48% 8%
Total expense 11,39 10,82( 9,60: 5% 13%
Income (loss) before income tax $ 4,13t $ 2,045 $(2,295) 102%  18%%

2011

Revenue is derived primarily from premium incomeerated by the sale of the guaranteed and ungeapbrtions of SBA loans.
Additionally, the Company derives revenue fromiiag income on SBA loans held for investment arld for sale, servicing fee income on
the guaranteed portions of SBA loans previousld,s&rvicing income for loans originated by ottesrders for which NSBF is the servicer,
financing and billing services, classified as otileome above, provided by NBC. Most SBA loansioated by NSBF charge an interest rate
equal to the Prime rate plus an additional pergengéamount; the interest rate resets to the cufemte rate on a monthly or quarterly basis,
which will result in changes to the amount of ietraccrued for that month and going forward aret@mortization of a loan’s payment
amount until maturity.

The implementation of ASC Topic 860 “Transfers &mvicing,” which became effective January 1, 2@Hayed the recognition of premium
income for sales of the guaranteed portions of &#s. In 2010 and prior, SBA Form 1086 requiredpart of the transferor’s representations
and warranties, that the transferor repay any premmeceived from the transferee if either the SE#) Toan borrower prepays the loan within
90 days of the transfer settlement date or failnase one of its first three loan payments afterséttiement date in a timely fashion and then
proceeds to default within 275 days of the settletndate. Under ASC Topic 860, such recourse presisdle treatment of the transferred
guaranteed portions during this warranty periotheaNSBF was required to account for this as anfaing arrangement with the

transferee. Until the warranty period expired striahsferred loans were classified as “SBA loansdfierred, subject to premium recourséth

a matching liability “Liability on SBA loans trarefred, subject to premium recourse.” In Januaryl2€ie SBA issued a notice stating that
Form 1086 would be revised to remove all referéncwarranty period for loans sold in the secopdaarket. This change became effective
February 7, 2011 and allowed the Company to rezegmiemium income concurrent with the date of fiemas was done prior to January 1,
2010.
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In 2010, the Company elected the fair value optisrvaluing “Liability on SBA loans transferred,lgect to premium recourse,” and also
elected to utilize the fair value option for SBAaYy(oans funded on or after that date. As a rehdtCompany recorded changes in the fair
value for the guaranteed portions that were notsfeared at period end (“SBA loans held for sakefyl for loans transferred in the secondary
market that did not achieve sale status under AGGCIB60 (“SBA loans transferred, subject to reselly. At the expiration of the warranty
period, the sale of the guaranteed portions ofethesns as well as the corresponding gain was rezed) into premium income, and the asset
and liability eliminated.

On October 1, 2010, the Company elected to utitizefair value option for SBA 7(a) loans fundedasrafter that date. For loans funded on or
after October 1, 2010, the income statement segmthé revenue and expense components mixed maiymn on loan sales: premium on loan
sales equals the cash premium and servicing aagkeby purchaser in the secondary market, the digtocreated on the unguaranteed portic
included in the fair value line item, and by nopitalizing various transaction expenses the salarybenefit and loan processing costs expense
lines portray a value closer to the cash cost &ratp the lending business.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Compagipated 104 loans totaling $97,129,000 and rezegh$9,272,000 of premium income
from 102 loans sold aggregating $73,871,000 whietevnot subject to the premium warranty and $3(#bin premium income associated
with 47 loans aggregating $30,783,000 which welgesu to the premium warranty and previously transfd, and achieved sale status during
2011. Because of the premium warranty in existelwweng 2010 that delayed sale recognition, the Camgprecorded premium income for the
year ended December 31, 2010 for 54 of the 10$26r965,000 of the $57,517,000 guaranteed loansfeaed, representing the $2,428,00
premium income and a corresponding fair value gaidiscussed below. Premiums on guaranteed loas feeilthe twelve months averaged
111.35% with 1% servicing in 2011 compared with.BB% with 1% servicing in 2010.

Servicing fee income increased by $534,000 dueaiiynto revenue generated by the FDIC servicingt@aet, which totaled $1,389,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2011 compared with,8@84or the year ended December 31, 2010; the FkDI@racts, for both servicing and
consulting, run through December 2014. The revdouthe latter is included in other income. In adudi, the average NSBF originated
serviced portfolio increased from $142,719,000thar year ended December 31, 2010 to $192,126,00G8dasame period in 2011. This
improvement was the direct result of an increadedn originations which began at the end of 2008s increase was partially offset by a
$174,000 reduction in servicing fee income relateduaranteed loan repurchases by the SBA.

Interest income increased by $798,000 due prim#gilpterest on SBA loans, which increased by 3892 as a result of the growth and
positive performance of the portfolio; the averagéstanding performing portfolio of SBA loans hébl investment increased from
$21,504,000 to $29,649,000 for the year ended Dbee®il, 2010 and 2011, respectively. In additioteriest earned from SBA loans
transferred, subject to premium recourse, decrelap&®6,000 for the year ended December 31, 201Laf the transferred loans which had
been subject to premium warranty achieved saléssstand interest earned from SBA loans transfeseaded during the fourth quarter of 2(

Other income increased by $282,000 primarily duartdncrease in revenue earned by Newtek BusinesiitCFees earned on receivables
purchased and billing services increased by $184@0the year ended December 31, 2011 as compéatiedhe year ended December 31,
2010, which was primarily attributable to an in@ean the number of clients serviced as well amamase in the amount of receivables
purchased from existing clients. Additionally, $J8®0 of packaging fee income, which had previobglgn capitalized at NSBF, is now
recognized upfront as a result of the adoptioraofifalue accounting for loans funded on or aftetober 1, 2010. NSBF also realized an
increase of $58,000 in other loan related revenah ss late fees and recoveries year over yeaselihereases were partially offset by a
$132,000 reduction in income earned under the FEIGSulting contract in the current year.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Compmoyded a net fair value gain of $3,366,000 rel&detD1 guaranteed loans transferred
aggregating $56,735,000, of which 54 achieved Saliis during the year. During the same period 284 & result of the elimination of the
premium warranty, all remaining loans transferradriy 2010 achieved sale status in 2011, therelgrsing the corresponding fair value
adjustment by a net amount of $3,366,000. In aaltiihe Company recorded a fair value gain of $X85bfor “SBA loans held for sale.” For
the year ended December 31, 2011, loans origireatddheld for investment aggregated $22,308,000tiegin a corresponding fair value loss
of $2,392,000.

Salaries and benefits increased by $1,069,000 piijnthue to the addition of staff in the originaginservicing and liquidation departments, as
well as an increase in staff to service outsidaraots. Combined headcount increased by 18.6% &omverage of
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43 for the year ended December 31, 2010 to an geerB51 for the year ended December 31, 2011.thubdilly, prior to October 1, 2010,
certain direct salary and benefit costs to origgnains were deferred and amortized over the ocdntblife of the SBA loan using a method
that approximated the effective interest method.tke year ended December 31, 2010, this equat$alb,000 of expense being deferred.
Subsequent to September 30, 2010, the Company begamling the origination of loans based on tlevia@ue method which requires the
upfront expensing of such direct costs.

Interest expense increased by $114,000 for thegreded December 31, 2011 compared with the sandgar2010, due primarily to an
increase of $318,000 of interest expense assoaitedNSBF financing agreements with Capital OnelBand the securitization of
$27,779,000 comprising a $16,000,000 transactidieicember 2010, and a second in December 201intptd 1,779,000, which increased
the average debt outstanding from $12,156,000 199%8,000 for the years ended December 31, 201@@ht, respectively. Interest expense
on NSBF debt increased from $748,000 to $1,0650@0d over period, while the average interest detereased from 6.40% to 4.74%. The
average debt outstanding at NBC increased fronb830D0 to $4,560,000 for the years ended Decembhe2®.0 and 2011 resulting in an
increase to interest expense of $32,000, whilatleeage interest rate decreased from 7.33% to 6d26¥tg the same period. Additionally, the
amortization of deferred financing costs by NSBErdased by $167,000 for the year ended Decemb&031, when compared with the prior
year. The decrease in amortized of deferred fimancosts for 2011 was due to the acceleration @irézation in connection with th
repayment of the term loan with Capital One infthath quarter of 2010. The amortization of defdrfimancing costs associated with the line
of credit held by NBC increased by $33,000 forykar ended December 31, 2011 as compared wittridreperiod. This increase was due to
the acceleration of amortization in connection wfith refinancing of the term loan with Wells Fargod the securing of a new term loan with
Sterling National Bank in the first quarter 2014 addition, interest expense on SBA loans transfiesubject to premium recourse, decreased
by $96,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Consideration in arriving at the provision for ldass includes past and current loss experiencegruportfolio composition, future estimated
cash flows, and the evaluation of real estate dnelr@ollateral as well as current economic coadgi For all loans originated on or prior to
September 30, 2010, management performed a lodoabyreview for the estimated uncollectible portafmon-performing loans. Subsequent
to September 30, 2010, management began recodiliogm originations on a fair value basis whickjugres a valuation reduction of the
unguaranteed portion of loans held for investmerat kevel that takes into consideration futuredgsd his valuation reduction is reflected in
line item above: Net Change in Fair Value of SBAahs Held for Investment.

The decrease in the loan loss provision of $1,@Bftom $1,849,000 in 2010 to $751,000 in 2011 wféset by a $2,107,000 increase in the
net change in fair value of SBA loans held for istmeent for loans originated subsequent to SepteBe2010. The combined provision for
loan loss and net change in fair value of SBA Idagls for investment increased from $2,135,00GHeryear ended December 31, 2010 to
$3,144,000 for the corresponding period in 2011s Tiet increase of $1,009,000 period over periamissistent with the expansion of the
unguaranteed portfolio during 2011. The allowararddan loss including the net change in fair vahaeased from $3,845,000 or 12.1% of
the gross portfolio balance of $31,759,000 at Ddam31, 2010 to $5,567,000 or 11.8% of the grossgdm balance of $47,030,000 at
December 31, 2011. This decrease as a percentalge gfoss portfolio balance reflects the posifiegformance of the portfolio, resulting in a
return to more historical levels of reserves. Totglaired non-accrual loans decreased from $7,298000 26.3% of the total portfolio at
December 31, 2010 to $6,766,000 or 15% at DeceBihe2011 with $2,516,000 or 31.5% and $2,417,008607% of the allowance for loan
losses being allocated against such impaired noruakloans, respectively. The year over year rédnén non-performing loans results from
an improvement in the overall economic climate kg delinquent loans in the portfolio. The yeagroxear reduction in the specific reserve
reflects both the overall collateralization on tiwn-performing portfolio as well as the increaséhia portion of that portfolio making periodic
payments pending return to performing status redyttie need for a specific reserve at this time.

Other general and administrative costs increasepB,000 due primarily to the Company recordiranleelated expenses based on the fair
value method which requires the upfront expensirguoh direct costs as well as an increase in BRahprocessing and servicing costs as a
result of the increase in loans originated durlmgdurrent year. Additionally, marketing costs @ased by $194,000 primarily in conjunction
with the launch offhe Small Business Authoritynew marketing campaign initiated by the Companjainuary 2011.

The increase in premium income combined with imprognts in servicing, interest, and other incomesgaad by the addition to and
enhanced performance of the portfolio, were sudfitito offset an increase in compensation and ekgenses, and resulted in an improver
to income before income taxes of $2,090,000 forytres ended December 31, 2011, when compared &athe period of 2010.
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2010

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Compiédgipated 107 loans totaling $65,655,000 and rezegh$2,428,000 in premium income
as a result the expiration of the warranty permds4 guaranteed loan sales totaling $25,965,06@ during this period, the Company
transferred 47 guaranteed loans aggregating $3083;7however, as discussed above, the recogrifitine premium revenue from these
transfers is delayed into future periods untilshée can be recognized. The Company expects tgmexnthe premium income on these
transfers in 2011, offset by a fair value loss mbraximately the same amount. Of these, 31 loaiaéirig $21,212,000 transferred subseque
September 30, 2010 were measured at fair value.

Premium income for the year ended December 31, gfiafd $1,652,000, resulting from 33 guarantead Isales aggregating $19,941,000.
As a result of the dislocation in the secondaryketduring 2009, the premium on the guaranteedsisald dropped to par and the servicing
component increased to over 4.2% during the yedegdDecember 31, 2009. In order to more approfyiatdue the servicing asset, in 2009
the Company applied a discounted cash flow modeichwuses valuation techniques to convert futurewats to a single present amount ar
based on the value indicated by current marketaagiens about those future amounts. The premiumeeladuring 2009 is reflective of this
valuation method of the newly created servicinggtsdn 2010 the Company reverted back to the sttifliple method for loans that achieved
sale status.

Servicing fee income related to SBA loans incredse#i939,000 for the year ended December 31, 20&Qdmarily to the addition $784,000
of servicing income associated with loans servicedthers under a new contract entered into aettteof 2009. Additionally, the average
NSBF servicing portfolio increased from $125,290,66r the twelve months ended December 31, 2009eoed to $142,719,000 for t
current period resulting in an additional $281,@08ervicing income and reflecting NSBF’s reneweal originations starting in the fourth
quarter of 2009. These increases were partiallsedtdy a decrease of $126,000 related to servioingnother financial institution that
terminated their contract with NSBF in November 200

Interest income increased by $244,000 due to ttegrétion of $440,000 of interest earned from SBAns transferred, subject to recourse
during the twelve months ended December 31, 2043. ificrease was partially offset by a reductiomierest income associated with a
decrease in the average outstanding performindgtiorof SBA loans held for investment from $22,28@0 for the year ended December 31,
2009 to $21,753,000 for the year ended Decembe2(BQ: this reduction primarily reflects that ttddaion of loans under the 90% guaranty
program could not offset the normal principal pads of the loan portfolio. In addition, a $70,0@@uction in interest income was
recognized during 2010 as a result of previousgeized interest income being reversed as a rekldaas being transferred into
nonperforming status. Total interest income on $oagld for investment was $1,307,000 and $1,503{@0the years ended December 31, 2
and 2009, respectively.

Prior to September 30, 2010, certain related ditests to originate loans were deferred and anaattier the contractual life of the SBA loan
using a method that approximates the effectiverdstemethod. Subsequent to September 30, 201Cdimpany began recording the
origination of loans based on the fair value metiwbith requires the upfront expensing of such dicests. This change is not expected to
have a material impact on interest income on fupergods.

Other income increased by $104,000 due primarihéoaddition of consulting income associated wh#FDIC contract, which totaled
$128,000 as well as the net addition of ten newofaty clients at NBC resulting in an additionaB32000 of related income. The increases
were predominately offset by a nonrecurring recpwdi$175,000 in 2009 related to the reversal pfeviously recorded liability associated
with the expectation of a settlement for less thaticipated, as well as reductions in late payraedtother loan-related income at NSBF and
NBC of $74,000. Additionally, billing services reuge earned by NBC decreased by $55,000; the avatagber of billing service custome
decreased by 6 from an average of 80 to an avefaggeduring the respective twelve months of 2068 2010.

On January 1, 2010, the Company elected the faiewaption for valuing “Liability on SBA loans traferred, subject to premium recourse.”
On October 1, 2010, the Company elected to utilizefair value option for SBA 7(a) loans fundedasrafter that date and fair valued the
“SBA loans held for sale” and “SBA loans transfelirsubject to recourse” assets created on or ¢ date. The Company recorded a fair
value gain of $3,747,000 related to “SBA loans sfarred, subject to recourse” and “Liability on SBrans transferred, subject to premium
recourse.” At the expiration of the warranty peritte sale of the guaranteed portions of theseslaarwell as the corresponding gain is
recognized into premium income, the asset andiligleliminated and the fair value gain will become equivalent fair value loss. In addition,
the Company recorded a fair value gain of $32,@003$BA loans held for sale.” Changes in loans Hetdnvestment which have been
measured at fair value are represented as “Faievadjustment on SBA loans held for investmentBs&guent to September 30, 2010, loans
originated and held for investment aggregated (8® with a corresponding fair value loss of $288,
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Salaries and benefits increased by $724,000 pryrdue to the addition of staff in the originatirggrvicing and liquidation departments of
NSBF in connection with the resumption of lendihgttbegan in the third quarter of 2009 as wellremearease in staff to service outs
contracts. This increase was patrtially offset liearease in payroll expense at NBC by $24,000 duhia year ended December 31, 2010. The
Company believes it has adequate staff to maimjparations at NBC as well as service its portfala originate loans at NSBF. The combi
average headcount increased from 32 to 43 fomitbl/é months ended December 31, 2009 and 201Csctesply.

Interest expense increased from $1,485,000 foyehe ended December 31, 2009 to $1,916,000 foygheended December 31, 2010 which
included $440,000 of interest expense for Liabildy SBA loans transferred, subject to premium tese. Interest expense includes
amortization of deferred financing costs associatith the lines of credit held by NSBF and NBC 844,000 and $471,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2009 and December 31, 201@atésyly. The increase in amortization of deferfiedncing costs for 2010 was due to
acceleration of amortization in connection with tapayment of the term loan with Capital One infthath quarter. These increases were
offset by a decrease in net interest expense viaaply due to reductions in the average debt aniding by NSBF, which decreased from
$16,187,000 to $11,863,000 for the years endedrbeee31, 2009 and 2010, respectively as well esceedse in the average interest rate
6.4% to 6.1%. Although the average debt outstandingBC increased from $1,787,000 for the year dridecember 31, 2009 to $3,757,000
for the year ended December 31, 2010, the averdgeest rate decreased from 10.49% to 7.33% dtiimgame period.

Professional fees for the year ended December®1) 8s compared with the prior year increased By0E® as a result of an increase in
consulting and accounting expenses, which wasgtlgrtffset by a decrease in legal expense. Thesase in consulting and accounting
expenses was mainly due to obtaining a rating fteenS&P on our loan servicing operations and aoldtti professional fees associated with
the payoff of the line with GE.

Consideration in arriving at the provision for loass includes past and current loss experiencegruportfolio composition, future estimated
cash flows, and the evaluation of real estate dhnerr@ollateral as well as current economic condgi For all loans originated prior to
September 30, 2010, management performed a lodoanyreview for the estimated uncollectible porta@dmon-performing loans; subsequent
to September 30, 2010, management began recoriliograoriginations on a fair value basis whichuées the immediate write down of the
unguaranteed portion of loans held for investmera kevel that takes into consideration futuredsssn the post September 30, 2010 portfolio.
While the provision for loan loss increased by $06, for the twelve month period ended Decembef810, the reserve for loan losses as
compared to the gross portfolio balance decreased $3,985,000 or 13.9% at December 31, 2009 6583000 or 11.2% at December 31,
2010 reflecting the overall growth from new lenditd positive performance of the portfolio. Totapiaired non-accrual loans at

December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2010, decréase$8,234,000 to $7,990,000, respectively, widi0®3,000 or 37.0% and $2,516,000
or 31.5% of the allowance for loan losses beingcalled against such impaired non-accrual loangecotisely. The year over year reduction in
non-performing loans reflects an improvement indfierall economic climate and corresponding impacthe underlying borrowers.

The resumption of loan originations with the 90%ugunty percentage, the additions to servicing am$wlting income from the NSBF
portfolio and the FDIC contracts, and the adoptibfair value accounting for the liability createdaccordance with ASC Topic 860 on
January 1, 2010 and loans funded subsequent terSbpt 30, 2010, resulted in a return to profitapfior the year ended December 31, 2010
from a loss in the same period of 2009.
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All Other
% Change
(In thousands): 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
Revenue
Insurance commissiot $1,071 $ 88 $ 811 21% 9%
Other income 627 40C 1,552 57% (74)%
Interest incom: 10 61 50 (84)% 22%
Total revenu 1,70¢ 1,34 2,41% 27% (44)%
Expenses
Salaries and benefi 1,881 1,56: 1,62¢ 2% (4)%
Other than temporary decline in value of investra — 51C 12t (100%  30&%
Professional fee 181 174 154 4% 13%
Depreciation and amortizatic 80 13t 13C (41)% 4%
Other general and administrative cc 427 567 74¢ (29)% (24)%
Total expense 2,56¢ 2,94¢ 2,781 (13% 6%
Loss before income tax: $ (861) $(1,607) $ (368 (46)%  33t%

The All other segment includes revenues and expamémarily from Newtek Insurance Agency, LLC, NeWwtPayroll Services and qualified
businesses that received investments made thriwegBdmpany’s Capcos which cannot be aggregatedotfithr operating segments.

2011

Total revenue increase of $361,000, or 27% is milgndue to the increase in insurance commissimemee of $185,000, or 21% and other
income $227,000, or 57% offset by a decrease @rést income of $51,000, or 84% for the year ediscember 31, 2011 from the year ended
December 31, 2010. The increase in insurance cosionsin 2011 was due to increases in agencyailifarce placed insurance policy
income. The increase in other income in 2011 wamgrily due to a $337,000 gain on an investmend bglan equity method investee which
was sold in 2011. Interest income decreased in 281d result of a reduction in cash.

Salaries and benefits increased by $318,000 ort®0$2,881,000 for 2011, as compared to $1,563,00Q010 primarily due to the addition of
five employees in our new payroll services enfitgwtek Payroll Services. The $510,000 decreaséhier than temporary decline in value of
investments was related primarily to a cost investmvhich was writteroff in the prior year. Depreciation and amortizatiecreased $55,0(
or 41%, primarily due to fixed assets that haveobse fully depreciated. Other general administratiosts decreased by $140,000 or 25%, to
$427,000 for 2011 as compared to $567,000 for 2E0to decreases in insurance, travel and oth@rgleoifice expenses.

2010

The revenue decrease of $1,066,000 is primarilytdulke decrease in other income of $1,152,00th®year ended December 31, 2010 from
the year ended December 31, 2009: other incom808 Benefited from a ortéme $1,000,000 recovery of an investment previpusitten off
which did not recurred in 2010. Interest income@ased as a result of an increase in cash ancegaslalents. Insurance commissions
increased $75,000 for 2010, or 9%, as compared@8.2

Salaries and benefits decreased by $61,000, oo484,563,000 for 2010, as compared to $1,624,002009, as a result of managemertds
cutting initiatives in the insurance agency anceotmtities mainly during the first quarter 201@h€¥ than temporary decline in value of
investments increased by $385,000, or 308%, to $800or 2010 as compared to $125,000 for 2009amily due to a $500,000 write-down
of a qualified investment that management deterchiveed zero value based on its impairment tester@tbneral and administrative costs
decreased by $181,000, or 24% to $567,000 for 284 8pmpared to $748,000 for 2009, primarily dua tme-time expense adjustment and a
reduction in software maintenance costs in therarsze agency as a result of a software conversion.

Loss before income taxes increased by $1,234,000¢i2010, as compared to 2009, due to the $1,006j@crease in revenue as a result of a
onetime $1,000,000 recovery that occurred in 2009roingestment previously written off and an increesttal expenses of $168,000, wh
was primarily driven by a $510,000 other than terappdecline in value of investments in 2010.

33



Table of Contents

Corporate activities

% Change
(In thousands): 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
Revenue
Management fee $ 1,067 $2217 $3,16¢ (52% (30)%
Interest incom 21 24 32 13% (25%
Other income 4 16 14 (75)% 14%
Total revenu 1,092 2,251 3,21( 52% (30)%
Expenses
Salaries and benefi 5,69t 5,17¢ 4,68: 10% 11%
Professional fee 1,19:¢ 1,165 1,49t 2% (22)%
Depreciation and amortizatic 163 312 437 (48)% (29)%
Lease restructuring charg 99C — — 10(% — %
Other general and administrative cc 3,14¢ 2,41¢ 2,53¢ 30% B)%
Total expense 11,18¢ 9,07: 9,15( 23% ()%
Loss before income tax: $(10,097) $(6,816 $(5,940 48%  15%

The Corporate activities segment implements busiagategy, directs marketing, provides technolmggrsight and guidance, coordinates and
integrates activities of the other segments, cotgraith alliance partners, acquires customer dppdies, and owns our proprietary
NewTracker™ referral system and all other intellatiproperty rights. This segment includes reveanek expenses not allocated to of
segments, including interest income, Capco managef@ae income, and corporate operating expenseseTbperating expenses consist
primarily of internal and external public accoungtiexpenses, internal and external corporate legedreses, corporate officer salaries, sales anc
marketing expense and rent for the principal exeeuffices.

2011

Revenue is derived primarily from management feesexl from the Capcos. Management fee revenuenddchi2% or $1,150,000 to
$1,067,000 for 2011, from $2,217,000 for 2010. Mpmaent fees, which are eliminated upon consolidatidll continue to decline in the
future as the Capcos mature and utilize their déshCapco does not have current or projected saffitient to pay management fees, then
such fees are not accrued.

Total expenses increased $2,116,000, or 23%, fbt 28 compared to 2010. Salaries and benefitsasedeby $517,000 or 10% to $5,695,000
for 2011 as compared to $5,178,000 for 2010 dueci@ased salary costs primarily related to exgewsnd employee stock compensation of
approximately $269,000 in 2011 versus $57,000 it02@nd $276,000 of severance pay related to thartiee of an executive officer
recognized in 2011. As described in Note 20, thedaestructuring charges of $990,000 in 2011 sepits the accrued loss recognized on the
present value of the amount by which the rent ahdradirect costs paid by the Company to the landdéxceeds any rent paid to the Company
by its tenant under the new sublease over the retaadf the lease term, which expires in Octobdi52@s a result of the relocation and
sublease, the Company anticipates reduced renhsepe the future. Other general and administratosts increased $730,000 or 30% to
$3,148,000 for 2011 from 2010 due to several factbhe Company had an increase of $496,000 in riagkeelating to the launch dthe

Small Business Authorignd the WABC radio advertising campaign, experidrac§236,000 bad debt charge related to an untibliedoan, a
well as a $250,000 accrual related to a contrapiude and $86,000 in stock compensation to thedBofDirectors. These increased in
expenses were partially offset by $330,000 of desze in telephone, computer, travel and other egsen

2010

Revenue from management fees earned from the Capctined 30%, or $947,000, to $2,217,000 for 20ath $3,164,000 for 2009.
Management fees, which are eliminated upon coresidid, are expected to continue to decline in theré as the Capcos mature and utilize
their cash. If a Capco does not have current gepted cash sufficient to pay management fees,gbeh fees are not paid or accrued.
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Total expenses decreased by $77,000 or 1%, for @9T@mpared to 2009. Salaries and benefits inete$495,000 or 11% to $5,178,000 for
2010 as compared to $4,683,000 for 2009 mainlytdam increase in headcount. Professional feegdsed $330,000, or 22%, for 2010 from
2009 due to the Company exploring various finaneind restructuring alternatives that resulted gmigicantly higher professional fees for
2009. Other general and administrative costs deerk$117,000 or 5% to $2,418,000 for 2010 as cosap@ar$2,535,000 for 2009 mainly due
to decreases in insurance, maintenance and teleplosts.

Capcos
% Change
(In thousands): 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
Revenue
Income from tax credit $1,39C $2,38 $ 7,83i (42)% (70)%
Interest incom 42 51 10C (18)% (49%
Other income 65 11 46 491% (76)%
Total revenue 1,49; 2,44 7,98:¢ (39% (69)%
Net change in fair value of: Credits in lieu of ls@d Notes payable in credits
lieu of casl (131) 38 90C (445)% (96)%
Expenses
Interest expens 1,28 2,45z 8,731 (48)% (72)%
Management fee 1,65: 2,34z 3,28¢ (29% (29%
Professional fee 43¢ 49¢ 511 (12)% 3%
Other general and administrative cc 19C 38€ 23 (51)% 1,57¢%
Total expense 3,56: 5,67¢ 12,56( (37)% (55)%
Loss before income tax: $(2,197)  $(3,19¢) $(3,677) (31)% (13)%

As described in Note 3 to the consolidated findrat@ements, effective January 1, 2008, the Compadopted fair value accounting for its
financial assets and financial liabilities concuatrevith its election of the fair value option fartsstantially all credits in lieu of cash, notes
payable in credits in lieu of cash and prepaidrasce. These are the financial assets and liagsilassociated with the Company’s Capco notes
that are reported within the Company’s Capco segiédre table above reflects the effects of the &domf fair value measurement on the
income and expense items (income from tax creiditstest expense and insurance expense) relatbd tevalued financial assets and liability
for the years ended 2011, 2010 and 2009. In additiee net change to the revalued financial ags®tdiability for the years ended 2011, 2010
and 2009 is reported in the line “Net change inv¥alue of Credits in lieu of cash and Notes pagablcredits in lieu of cash” on the
consolidated statements of operations.

The Company does not anticipate creating any nepe@ain the foreseeable future and the Capco segmiénontinue to incur losses going
forward. The Capcos will continue to earn cash stweent income on their cash balances and incurmastagement fees and operating
expenses. The amount of cash available for invedtared to pay management fees will be primarilyeshelent upon future returns generated
from investments in qualified businesses. Incornenftax credits will consist solely of accretiontbé discounted value of the declining dollar
amount of tax credits the Capcos will receive i filiture; the Capcos will continue to incur nonkcagerest expense.

2011

Revenue is derived primarily from naash income from tax credits. The decrease in tetednue for 2011 versus 2010 reflects the effetie
declining dollar amount of tax credits remainin2iL1 slightly offset by the recovery of an investrhpreviously written off. The amount of
future income from tax credits revenue will fludiavith future interest rates. However, over futpegiods through 2016, the amount of tax
credits, and therefore the income the Companyresibgnize, will decrease to zero.

Expenses consist primarily of management fees anecash interest expense. Management fees decre@&gdr $689,000, to $1,653,000 for
2011 from $2,342,000 in 2010. Management fees, lwaie eliminated upon consolidation, are expecaietetline in
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the future as the Capcos mature and utilize theshcinterest expense decreased 48%, or $1,17@¢0$0,282,000 for 2011 from $2,452,00
2010 as a result of the declining amount of taxlitsgpayable in 2011 versus 2010. Professionaldeeseased $60,000 as a result of a
reduction in legal and consulting fees. The $198 @€crease in other general and administrativesseas primarily due to a decrease in rent
expenses of $80,000 resulting from income recefk@d a sublease recorded as an offset to the atdoua oneime adjustment for a loan tt
was previously written off and a receivable recdrfte the guaranteed portion of $51,000 and alsotdwa recognition of a loss in 2010 of
approximately $70,000 on the sublease of an egistiasehold which did not recur in 2011, offsetlf§5,000 increase in Salaries and benefits
expenses.

2010

Revenue is derived primarily from non-cash inconoenftax credits. The decrease in income from taxlits revenue for 2010 versus 2009
reflects the effect of the lower interest rate useder fair value accounting. The amount of fuinmme from tax credits revenue will fluctu
with future interest rates. However, over futureiquas through 2016, the amount of tax credits, #nedefore the income the Company will
recognize, will decrease to zero.

Expenses consist primarily of management fees anecash interest expense. Management fees decr2@®gdr $947,000, to $2,342,000 for
2010 from $3,289,000 during 2009. Management febgh are eliminated upon consolidation, are exgretd decline in the future as the
Capcos mature and utilize their cash. Interest esg@eecreased 72%, or $6,285,000, to $2,452,00Df¥ from $8,737,000 during 2009 as a
result of the lower interest rate used under tivevidue accounting for the period. The $363,000@ase in other general and administrative
costs is due to a returned premium on three Capstoance policies totaling $471,000 during 2009cWilid not recur in 2010 and to the
recognition of a $70,000 loss in 2010 on the sddax existing leasehold, offset partially by $3®),@f other reductions in other general and
administrative expenses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

Cash requirements and liquidity needs over the tveative months are anticipated to be funded prilp#nrough operating results, available
cash and cash equivalents, existing credit lineppgsed new credit lines, and additional secutitna of the Company’s SBA lender’s
unguaranteed loan portions. As more fully describeldw, the Company’s SBA lender will require aghitl funding sources to maintain
current SBA loan originations in the latter par6fl3 under anticipated conditions; although tliera to find these sources may require the
reduction in the Company’s SBA lending and relaipdrations, it will not impair the Company’s ovéility to operate.

In order to operate, the Company’s SBA lender ddp@m the continuation of the SBA 7(a) guarantead program of the United States
Government. For 2010 and the first quarter of 20E1Company benefitted from the increase in theéaquae on SBA 7(a) loans to 90% from
75% which effectively reduced the amount of thenld@ Company needs to retain and increased thargrndpremium the Company earned
on a loan sale. The return to the 75% guarantes fexrloans approved after December 31, 2010 reduhe Company to commit greater cash
resources to fund SBA 7(a) loans. The Company’s &Wer depends on the availability of purchaser$SBA loans held for sale transferred
to the secondary markets and the premium earneelith® support its lending operations. At thisaithe secondary market for the SBA loans
held for sale is robust.

The Companys SBA lender has historically financed the operetiof its lending business through loans or creditities from various lendel
and will need to continue to do so in the futungcislenders invariably require a security intereghe SBA loans as collateral which, under
applicable law, requires the prior approval of 8#A. If the Company should ever be unable to ohttaénapproval for its financing
arrangements from the SBA, it would likely be uratad continue to make loans.

As an alternative to holding indefinitely the ports of SBA loans remaining after sale of the guech portions in the SBA supervised
secondary market, the Company has undertaken twisee these unguaranteed portions. In Decemb#® 2he first such securitization trust
established by the Company issued notes to onstimvi the amount of $16,000,000 which receiv&k® rating of AA. A second
securitization, an amendment to the original tratisa, was completed in December 2011, and resuitad additional $14,900,000 of notes
issued to the same investor. The SBA lender usedabh generated from the first transaction toeré@s outstanding term loan from Capital
One, N.A. and to fund a $3,000,000 account whiafinduthe first quarter of 2011 purchased unguarshteortions originated subsequent to
securitization transaction. Similarly, the proce&rdsn the second securitization in 2011 were useubly down its outstanding term loan with
Capital One, N.A., and to fund a $5,000,000 accouie
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used to purchase unguaranteed portions of loatieifirst quarter of 2012. While this securitizatijprocess can provide a long-term funding
source for the SBA lender, there is no certaingt thcan be conducted on an economic basis. litiaddthe securitization mechanism itself
does not provide liquidity in the short term fonfling SBA loans.

In December 2010, the SBA lender entered into ameswlving loan agreement with Capital One, N.A.dip to $12,000,000 to be used to fi
the guaranteed portions of SBA loans and to beidepith the proceeds of the sale in the secondasket of those portions. Also, in June
2011, the SBA lender entered into a new revolvaanlagreement with Capital One, N.A. for up to $06,000 to be used to fund the
unguaranteed portions of SBA loans and to be repaidthe proceeds of loan repayments from thedweers as well as excess cash flow of
NSBF. As a result of these two facilities, the SBBAder was able to increase the amount of loacenifund at any one tim

In April 2010, the Company closed two five yeamdoans aggregating $14,583,000 with Capital Oné, Which refinanced Newtek's SBA
lender’'s $12,500,000 debt to General Electric Gdbrporation (“GE”) as well as the existing $230®0 term loan between Capital One and
NTS. Previously the SBA lender utilized the GE dbbriginate and warehouse the guaranteed andavagieed portions of SBA loans. Un

the Capital One term loan, which was collateralizgdhe unguaranteed, retained loan portions,rgjuaranteed loan repayment proceeds were
used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness argBtAdender funds its cash requirements througlilahla cash and cash equivalents
supplemented as needed by the cash resources oélNew

Through February 28, 2011, the receivables finanaimt, NBC, utilized a $10,000,000 line of creglibvided by Wells Fargo Bank to purch
and warehouse receivables. On February 28, 201C, &igered into a three year line of credit of u$16,000,000 with Sterling National Ba
which replaced the Wells Fargo line. There is rassicollateralization between the Sterling lendawility and the Capital One term loan and
credit facility; however, a default under the Cap®ne term loan or line of credit will create asgibility of default under the Sterling line of
credit. The availability of the Sterling line ofedlit and the performance of the Capital One temmndoare subject to compliance with certain
covenants and collateral requirements as set fiottheir respective agreements, as well as limigstrictions on distributions or loans to the
Company by the respective debtor, none of whichhaaterial to the liquidity of the Company. At Dedeen 31, 2011, the Company and its
subsidiaries were in full compliance with appli@tdan covenants. The Company guarantees theseflmatihe subsidiaries up to the amount
borrowed; in addition, the Company deposited $780 With Sterling to collateralize the guarantee.oA®ecember 31, 2011, the Company’s
unused sources of liquidity consisted of $11,363 @0unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and,808 available through the Sterling
National Bank line of credi

Restricted cash of $14,066,000 as of December@®l], & primarily held in NSBF and the Capcos. Tlaarity, or $9,107,000 of restricted
cash, is related to NSBF, and is comprised of ¥ held in a trust cash reserve in connectidgh thie securitization transactions, of which
$5,000,000, has been allocated to a pre-fundinguatdor unguaranteed portions of SBA 7(a) loanse@dded to the securitization by March
2012, $1,932,000 is set aside as a reserve invie payments are insufficient to cover interest/anprincipal and $177,000 set aside for
servicer and prepaid interest fees. The remainin§3B,000 represents payments collected due tiparits and amounts owed to the SBA.
For the Capcos, restricted cash can be used ingmgnand operating the Capcos, making qualifieé#tments, to repay debt obligations, and
for the payment of taxes on Capco taxable incorhe.Gompany also has $3,501,000 in cash held bgalpeos restricted for use in managing
and operating the Capco, making qualified investsand for the payment of income taxes. The remgibalance includes $750,000 in
connection with the Sterling line of credit, anti&tamounts provided by sponsoring banks in coieaetith credit card processing and by
customers for insurance premiums.

In summary, Newtek generated and used cash asvillo

For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 11,40¢ $(2,20¢) $ 3,12¢
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi (17,649 (6,33€) 3,40(
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 7,224 6,34¢ (10,799
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 981 (2,199 (4,277)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of ' 10,38: 12,58 16,85
Cash and cash equivalents, end of » $ 11,36: $10,38: $ 12,58
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Net cash flows from operating activities increa$&8,613,000 to $11,405,000 for the year ended Dbeefil, 2011 compared to $(2,208,0
used during the year ended December 31, 2010.chihisge primarily reflects the reduction in brokeseivable and reversal of fair value
adjustments on SBA loans recorded in 2010. Foy#ae ended December 31, 2010 the Company origir$8d,000 of SBA loans held for
sale, $30,752,000 of SBA loans transferred sulbgeptemium recourse, and $25,983,000 of SBA loacieving sale status for a total use of
$(57,517,000). Reflecting the effects of ASC Tap® “Transfers and Servicing” which became effextim January 1, 2010 (discussed
above), the Company received proceeds from tra;sfe8BA loans held for sale accounted for as fiivags (“Liability for SBA loans
transferred, subject to premium recourse”) of $34,000 and proceeds from transfers that achievedsttus of $25,983,000, offset by an
increase in the broker receivable of $5,591,000afoet total source of $54,486,000. For the yaded December 31, 2011, the Company
originated $74,546,000 of SBA loans held for saié $274,000 of SBA loans transferred subject tonjuen recourse, for a total use of
$(74,820,000). For the same period, the Companyrret! $30,783,000 from transfers of SBA loans leldale accounted for as financings
(“Liability for SBA loans transferred, subject togmium recourse”), and received proceeds of $730801from the sale of SBA loans,
$27,855,000 from the sale of SBA loans achievirg status, and an increase of $7,148,000 in thieebmeceivable, for a total net source of
$78,091,000. Broker receivables arise from loaadead but not settled before period end and représemmount of cash due from the
purchasing broker; the amount varies dependingan brigination volume and timing of sales at yexad. For the year ended December 31,
2011, net SBA loan activities resulted in a netrsewf $3,271,000. Provision for loan losses desgé#1,146,000 to $763,000 from
$1,909,000 for 2011 which decreased in conjunatiith the adoption of fair value accounting and ith@rovement in the performance of the
overall portfolio. In addition to SBA loan actiws, the Company provided receivables financing wpiovided cash of $1,469,000 in 2011 as
compared to a cash use of $4,697,000 in 2010.

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activipeisarily includes the originations and repaymaegftthe unguaranteed portions of Si

loans, purchase of fixed assets and customer ats;alranges in restricted cash and investmentsadlifigd businesses. Net cash (used in)
provided by investing activities decreased by $12,800 to cash used of $(17,648,000) for the yerde& December 31, 2011 compared to
cash use of $(6,336,000) for the year ended DeceBi)010. The decrease was due primarily to atgremount of SBA loans originated
investment for the year ended $(22,269,000) in 20@&dsus $(8,244,000) in 2010. Payments receive8iB loans increased by $1,460,000 to
$4,672,000 in 2011 from $3,212,000 in 2010 prinyadlile to an improvement in the overall performaoicine portfolio as well as an increase
in the portfolio year over year. The change inrietgd cash provided $1,401,000 of cash flow in20frsus $533,000 of cash flow in 2010.

Net cash flows provided by (used in) financingtigs primarily include the issuance of seniorawin connection with the 2011 securitiza
transaction and repayments on bank notes payabtecd$h flows provided by (used in) financing atiée increased by $879,000 to cash
provided of $7,224,000 for the year ended DecerBlheR011 from cash provided of $6,345,000 for tharyended December 31, 2010. The
primary reason for the increase was the secuiitizairoceeds of $13,513,000, net of issuance @o&811, which were used to repay a por
of securitization notes outstanding from the orgjinansaction, as well as the extinguish the NBGt @utstanding with Wells Fargo, and pay
down a portion of the NTS Capital One term loarstariding. Restricted cash related to the securdizalecreased by $1,207,000, of which
$5,000,000 has been designated as a pre-fundingi@icerhich will be used to purchase future unguieeh potions of SBA 7(a) loans. The
current year provision of $1,033,000 reflects peatsefrom the Company’s new lines with Capital Quretlie origination of the guaranteed
portions of SBA loans, offset by a net reductiothie amount outstanding on CDS credit line witlriBtg, and formerly outstanding with We
Fargo. During the year ended December 31, 2011Ctimepany received $5,076,000 of proceeds from tegiigy term note made to NBC and
used the funds to repay the outstanding amourt@hiMells Fargo line of credit. In addition, the Gmany made principal payments on the
Capital One term note made to NTS of $417,000Hergeriod.

The overall $981,000 increase in cash and caslvaeuis in 2011 primarily reflects the reductiorbioker receivable from the prior period,
proceeds from borrowings on the bank lines of ¢radd the debt issued under the securitizatiors&retion, offset by an increase in SBA loans
originated for investment and payments on senites0

Financing Activities

Newtek historically obtained lorterm financing to fund its investments and operatiprimarily through the issuance of notes toriasce
companies through the Capco programs. Through Dieee81, 2011, Newtek has received in aggregate,$28®00 in proceeds from the
issuance of long-term debt, Capco warrants, andi®leeommon shares through the Capco programs. Kasa@apcos last issued notes in
2005 and the Company does not anticipate partioigpat future Capco programs. In 2004, Newtek @i$20,762,000 (net of related offering
costs) in a secondary public offering. Newtek’spipal funding requirements have been costs relatéite Capco programs ($152,125,000),
the acquisitions of NTS and Vistar (the combinatérvhich totaled $9,836,000), investments in Capealified businesses, SBA 7(a) loans,
receivable purchases, and working capital needstireg from operating
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and business development activities of its conatdid operating entities. In 2010, NTS entered ant@w term loan with Capital One, N.A., |
proceeds of which were used to refinance theepisting term loan between NTS and Capital One,.Ml&o in 2010, NSBF entered into a n
revolving loan agreement with Capital One, N.A. diprto $12,000,000 to be used to fund the guardmiedions of SBA loans and to be reg
with the proceeds of the sale in the secondary etarkthose portions. In June 2011, the SBA lemaered into a new revolving loan
agreement with Capital One, N.A. for up to $15,000,to be used to fund the unguaranteed portio®Béf loans and to be repaid with the
proceeds of loan repayments from the borrowersedisas excess cash flow of NSBF. As a result o$¢hsvo facilities, the SBA lender was
able to increase the amount of loans it can furahgtone time. In February 2011, NBC entered intoree year line of credit of up to
$10,000,000 with Sterling National Bank which regd the Wells Fargo line.

Credit Lines and Term Loans

In April 2010, the Company closed two five-yeamntdbans aggregating $14,583,000 with Capital On@,. Nof which $12,500,000 refinanced
NSBF's pre-existing facility with GE (the “NSBF Portiynand $2,083,000 refinanced the meisting term loan between Capital One and I
In December 2010, the outstanding balance of thBAN®rtion and all accrued interest thereon waaiceim full from the proceeds of a
securitization transaction, discussed below. Ther@st rate on the NTS term loan and on the fol&BF term loan is variable based on the
monthly London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) egplus 4.25% or Prime plus 2.25%, but no lower tha%%, with interest paid in arrears
along with each monthly principal payment due. W& term loan is collateralized by all of NTS’s etssand Newtek guarantees the
repayment obligations. The NSBF term loan was taridized by all of NSBF's assets and Newtek guaeththe repayment obligations. The
agreement includes such financial covenants ailB level with its consolidated subsidiaries of imimum fixed charge coverage ratio,
minimum EBITDA requirements and minimum cash reguients held at Capital One. As of December 31, 20E1Company was in
compliance with the financial covenants set in tims.

Also in December 2010, NSBF closed a credit facilitth Capital One for up to a maximum amount of08),000 initially, expandable to
$12,000,000. The credit facility, often referrecata “wet funding” credit line, is used to fundsle portions of SBA 7(a) loans made by NSBF
that are guaranteed by the SBA, with funds receorethe sale of those guaranteed portions of th& BRB) loans by NSBF reducing the
facility. The outstanding balance of the creditilfgcbears a variable per annum rate of interegta to the rate of interest publicly announced
from time to time by Capital One as its prime naligs 1%. In June 2011, NSBF obtained from Capita¢ N.A. (“Capital One”) an increase in
its total revolving credit facility from $12,000,0@0 $27,000,000. In October 2011, the term ofrévelver was extended by nine months
through September 2013, at which time the outstandalance will be converted into a three year tean. This increase in the line will
enable the Company to finance both the governmeatagteed and non-guaranteed portions of SBA @éasl As of December 31, 2011,
NSBF had $8,364,000 outstanding under the linesadfit. The interest rate on the $12,000,000 pomitthe facility, collateralized by tt
government guaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) loanseisat prime plus 1.00%, and there is a quarfadyity fee equal to 25 basis points on the
unused portion of the revolving credit calculatecathe end of each calendar quarter. The intea¢éston the $15,000,000 portion of the
facility, collateralized by the non-guaranteed mortof SBA 7(a) loans, is set at prime plus 1.878%d there is a quarterly facility fee equal to
25 basis points on the unused portion of the rérgleredit calculated as of the end of each caleqdarter. The agreement includes financial
covenants at the NBS level with its consolidatdosadiaries including a minimum fixed charge coveragtio, minimum EBITDA requiremer
and minimum cash requirements held at Capital @sef December 31, 2011, the Company was in compdavith the financial covenants
set in this line.

In February 2011, NBC entered into a three year dificredit with Sterling National Bank (“Sterling’th an amount up to $10,000,000. This
facility is and will be used to purchase receivaldad for other working capital purposes. The ggerate is set at 5.00% or Prime plus 2.00%,
whichever is higher, with interest on the line togaid monthly in arrears. The line is and willdo#lateralized by the receivables purchased, as
well as all other assets of NBC. The line is gutgad by the Company; in addition, the Company diggab$750,000 with Sterling to
collateralize the guarantee. The agreement incladels financial covenants as minimum tangible rathvand maximum leverage ratio. The
Company is subject to meeting a maximum leveratie test and a future net loss test. As of DecedieR011, the Company was in
compliance with the financial covenants set in tims.

Securitization Transactions

In December 2010, NSBF created a financing chafionehe sale of the unguaranteed portions of SB#) [ans held on its books and finan
by a term loan in the maximum amount of $12,500,80 Capital One, N.A. NSBF transferred the ungnéeed portions of SBA loans of

$19,615,000, and an additional $3,000,000 in léssised subsequent to the transaction, to a sgaaipbse entity created for this purpose,

Newtek Small Business Loan Trust 2-1 (the “Trust”), which in turn issued notes (the
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“securitization notes”) for the par amount of $1@MO0 against the assets in a private placemértTTust is only permitted to purchase the
unguaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) loans, issue dsmeited securities, and make payments on the sesuifhe Trust issued a single series of
securitization notes to pay for the unguaranteetqus it acquired from NSBF and will be dissolweben those securities have been paid in
full. The primary source for repayment of the sé@ation notes is the cash flows generated froethguaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) loans
now owned by the Trust; principal on the securitemanotes will be paid by cash flow in excesstattneeded to pay various fees related to the
operation of the Trust and interest on the debé Jécuritization notes have an expected maturigbofit five years based on the expected
performance of the underlying collateral and strieebf the debt and a legal maturity of 30 yeasafthe date of issuance. The assets of the
Trust are legally isolated and are not availablpap NSBF5 creditors. NSBF continues to retain rights tdhaaserves and all residual intert

in the Trust and will receive servicing income. ¢&eds from this transaction were used to repag#pstal One, N.A. loan and for general
corporate and lending purposes. Because the Congeaymined that as the primary beneficiary ofthest it needed to consolidate the Trust
into its financial statements, it continues to ggwae the securitization notes in Notes payable. ifkiestors and the Trust have no recourse to
any of NSBF'’s other assets for failure of debtorpay when due; however, NSBF's parent, Newtek phagided a limited guaranty to the
investors in the Trust in an amount not to exce@ df the original issuance amount (or $1,600,0f@0he used after all of the assets of the
Trust have been exhausted. The notes were isstle WA rating from S&P based on the underlyingatelral.

In December 2011, NSBF entered into a Supplemémdahture by which the original $16,000,000 of sémation notes were amended to
reflect a new initial principal amount of $12,88000as a result of principal payments made, andiaddi notes were issued in an initial
principal amount of $14,899,000, so that the ihaggregate principal amount of all notes as ofébelger 31, 2011 totaled $27,779,000. The
notes are backed by approximately $40,500,000entittyuaranteed portions of loans originated, adddes an additional $5,000,000 to be
originated and issued to the Trust by NSBF unde!SBA loan program. The notes retained their Afatinder S&P, and the final maturity
date of the amended notes is March 22, 2037. Téwepds of the transaction have been and will beé teseepay debt and originate new loans.

Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

The following chart represents Newtek’s obligati@msl commitments as of December 31, 2011, other@zgco debt repayment discussed
above, for future cash payments under debt, leademployment agreements (in thousands):

Payments due by period

Less More

than 1 3-5 than 5

Contractual Obligations Total year 1-3 years years years

Bank Notes Payable (a) $13,56: $ 417(b) $11,220(b)(c) $1,928(b)(c) $ —
Securitization Notes Payable | 26,36¢ — — — 26,36¢
Operating Lease 11,377 3,81¢ 5,281 1,51¢ 75€&

Employment Agreemen 29E 29t — — —
Totals $51,60F  $4,52¢ $ 16,507 $ 3,44/ $27,12¢

(@) Interest rates range from 4.25% to 5.7!
(b) Includes:

$2,100,000 Capital One note payable over a five pedod commencing 2010. As of December 31, 2€id amount outstanding
was approximately $1,424,000.

(c) Includes:

$12,000,000 Capital One guaranteed line due Segte@i3, and $15,000,000 Capital One unguaranteedwhich in September
2013, converts to 3 year term. Also includes $10,000 Sterling line, which matures in February 204¢l of December 31, 2011,
the combined amount outstanding on the Capitallidee were approximately $8,364,000, and the baautstanding on the
Sterling line was $3,777,000.

(d) Includes:

$27,800,000, or $26,368,000 net of discount, ofisgzation notes with a legal maturity of 30 yeaesaring interest at the rate of
3.95%; actual principal payments will be paid bgltflow in excess of that needed to pay various fekated to the operation of 1
Trust and interest on the debt.
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Financing Activities: Capcos

We have deemphasized our Capco business in faxgrowefing our operating businesses and do not patieicreating any new Capcos in the
foreseeable future.

Overview

A Capco is either a corporation or a limited ligtgicompany established in and chartered by orthehine jurisdictions that currently have
authorizing legislation: Alabama, District of Colbia, Florida, Louisiana, Colorado, New York, Texas Wisconsin (Missouri has an older
program which pre-dates the start of our businedsrawhich we do not participate). Aside from seagital provided by an organizer such as
Newtek, a Capco will issue debt and equity instmimexclusively to insurance companies and the &apre then authorized under
respective state statutes to make targeted equiglt investments in companies. In some statedath permits Capco investments in
majority-owned or primarily controlled companies.dthers, such as Louisiana, Colorado, Texas achtist recent programs in New York,
there are some limitations on the percentage ofeesitip a Capco may acquire in a qualified businessonjunction with the Capcos’
investment in these companies, the Capcos maypatside loans to the companies. In most casegatheredits provided by the states are
equal to the par amount of investment by the instea&ompanies in the securities of the Capcos,iwdaa be utilized by them generally ove
period of four to ten years. These credits arefentdd by the returns or lack of returns on investta made by the Capcos.

Our Capcos had arranged for the repayment of éoparf the Capco notes by The National Union Firgeurance Company of Pittsburgh and
The American International Specialty Lines Insue@ompany, both affiliates of Chartis, Inc. As adfd@mber 31, 2011, all of the required
cash payments have been made by these insurea ééthe Capcos. The balance of the repaymerngatibns for all of our Capcos will result
from the availability to the investors of the sttdr credits.

Income from Capco Tax Cred

In general, the Capcos issue debt and equity im&nts to insurance company investors. For a deggripf the debt and equity instruments
and warrants issued by Newtek’s Capcos, see Nimt¢h2 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statesdrhe Capcos then make targeted
investments, as defined under the respective gtaseliction statutes, with the funds raised. E@etpco has a contractual arrangement with the
particular state/jurisdiction that entitles the €aypo receive (earn) tax credits from the statisfliction upon satisfying quantified, defined
investment percentage thresholds and time requiresmin order for the Capcos to maintain theirestatjurisdiction-issued certifications, the
Capcos must make targeted investments in accordeaitit¢ghese requirements, which requirements ansistent with Newtek’s overall
business strategy. Each Capco statute provide#ispetes and regulations under which the Capcostoperate. For example, the State of
Louisiana program precludes the Capco from makargrolling and majority-owned investments. Accogliy investments made by the
Louisiana Capco are considered portfolio compaaigsare majority-owned operated and controllechieyr thoards of directors and
management. These portfolio companies operate @mtlmtly of Newtek although Newtek participatedtmmboard of directors of these
companies (but in all cases we do not control antgjof the board of director positions unlessréhis a default under the terms of the
investment) and makes available to them technolsgiuices and products to sell.

Each Capco also has separate, contractual arrangemi¢h the insurance company investors obligatigCapco to pay interest on the
aforementioned debt instruments. The Capco magfgdliis interest obligation by delivering the &redits or paying cash. The insurance
company investors have the legal right to recena wse the tax credits and would, in turn, useethas credits to reduce their respective state
tax liabilities in an amount usually equal to 10QP20% in some cases in Louisiana) of their investsié the Capcos. The tax credits
generally can be utilized over a four to ten-yesniqul and in some instances are transferable aneaarried forward. Newtekrevenue frot
tax credits may be used solely for the purposati$fying the Capcos’ obligations to the insuraoempany investors.

A description is set forth above of the manner molt Newtek and its Capcos account for the taxitimedome. See “Critical Accounting
Policies—Revenue Recognition.”

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethie United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfétttae reported amounts of assets, liabilitied disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeamsl reported amounts of revenues and expensegydhs reporting period. The most signific
estimates include:

. allowance for loan losse
. sales and servicing of SBA loar
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. chargeback reserve

. fair value measurement used to value certain fiahassets and financial liabilitie

. valuation of intangible assets and goodwill inchglthe values assigned to acquired intangible s
. stock-based compensation; a

. income tax valuation allowanc

Management continually evaluates its accountingcigs and the estimates it uses to prepare theotidated financial statements. In general,
the estimates are based on historical experiemceformation from thirdearty professionals and on various other sourcdsasumptions th
are believed to be reasonable under the factsiemdstances at the time such estimates are méa#eCdmpany'’s critical accounting policies
are reviewed periodically with the audit committéehe board of directors. Management conside@caounting estimate to be critical if:

. it requires assumptions to be made that were umioeat the time the estimate was made;

. changes in the estimate, or the use of differaithating methods, could have a material impactenG@ompan’s consolidated results
operations or financial conditio

Actual results could differ from those estimategn8icant accounting policies are described inébtto the consolidated financial statements,
which are included in Item 15 in this Form 10-Krfg. In many cases, the accounting treatment @friqoular transaction is specifically
indicated by Accounting Principles Generally Aceepin the United States of America.

Certain of our accounting policies are deemeditaif’ as they require management’s highest degfgedgment, estimates and assumptions.
The following critical accounting policies are riotended to be a comprehensive list of all of cxgoainting policies or estimates.

Fair Value Measurements

As discussed in Item 8. “Financial Statements amgp®mentary Data, Note 3, Fair Value Measurememésadopted fair value accounting
effective January 1, 2008. Fair value is definethasprice that would be received to sell an agsptid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the areasent date (an exit price) and establishes aédire hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs
valuation techniques used to measure fair valuethee levels for disclosure purposes. The Companyes its credits in lieu of cash, prepaid
insurance and notes payable in credits in lieuashat fair value. The Company also carries impdoans, servicing asset and other real estate
owned at fair value. The fair value hierarchy gittes highest priority (Level 1) to quoted pricesative markets for identical assets or
liabilities and gives the lowest priority to unobszble inputs (Level 3). An asset or liability’saskification within the fair value hierarchy is
based on the lowest level of significant inputtovialuation. The levels of the fair value hieragrelne as follows:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities. Level 1 assets and liabilitiesluide debt and equity securities and
derivative contracts that are traded in an actiahange market, as well as certain U.S. TreastimgrdJ.S. Government and agency
mortgagr-backed debt securities that are highly liquid aredatively traded in ov-the-counter markets

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssajuated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggpted prices in markets that are
active; or other inputs that are observable ortEanorroborated by observable market data for anbatly the full term of the assets
or liabilities. Level 2 assets and liabilities inde debt securities with quoted prices that adettdess frequently than exchange-
traded instruments and derivative contracts whaseevis determined using a pricing model with irgptiiiat are observable in the
market or can be derived principally from or cowdted by observable market data. This categorgrgdiy includes certain U.S.
Government and agency mortgage-backed debt sesyigbrporate debt securities, derivative contrastsresidential mortgage
loans hel-for-sale.

Level 2 Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlammarket activity and that are significant to thie value of the assets or liabiliti
Level 3 assets and liabilities include financiagtmments whose value is determined using pricindets, discounted cash flow
methodologies, or similar techniques, as well agriniments for which the determination of fair vatequires significant managem:
judgment or estimation. This category generallyudes certain private equity investments, retaiesitiual interests i
securitizations, residential mortgage servicingptsgand highly structured or lo-term derivative contract
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Revenue Recognition

Electronic payment processing revenLElectronic payment processing and fee income ivei@from the electronic processing of credit and
debit card transactions that are authorized anticeghthrough third-party networks. Typically, meants are charged for these processing
services on a percentage of the dollar amountaf #ansaction plus a flat fee per transactionta®merchant customers are charged
miscellaneous fees, including fees for handlinggbdacks or returns, monthly minimum fees, statdrfees and fees for other miscellaneous
services. Revenues derived from the electronicgasiog of MasterCar®l and Vi8a sourced credit abit dard transactions are reported
gross of amounts paid to sponsor banks.

Web hosting revenuevianaged technology solutions revenue is primardsiveed from monthly recurring service fees for tise of its web
hosting, web design and software support servicastomer setyp fees are billed upon service initiation andraeognized as revenue over
estimated customer relationship period of 2.5 yegayment for web hosting and related servicedudiay cloud plans, is generally received
one month to one year in advance. Deferred reverseesent customer payments for web hosting dateteservices in advance of the
reporting period date. Revenue for cloud relatedises is based on actual consumption used bywaastomer.

Income from tax creditsFollowing an application process, a state will fyodi company that it has been certified as a Caple.state or
jurisdiction then allocates an aggregate dollar amhof tax credits to the Capco. However, such amh@uneither recognized as income
otherwise recorded in the financial statementsesihbas yet to be earned by the Capco. The Capentitled to earn tax credits upon satisfy
defined investment percentage thresholds withigifpd time requirements. Newtek has Capcos in satates and the District of Columbia.
Each statute requires that the Capco invest ahblg percentage of “certified capital” (the fundsyided by the insurance company investors)
in businesses defined as qualified within the tiraenes specified. As the Capco meets these reqgeir=mit avoids grounds under the statute
for its disqualification for continued participatian the Capco program. Such a disqualificatior'decertification” as a Capco results in a
permanent recapture of all or a portion of thecalted tax credits. The proportion of the possibt@apture is reduced over time as the Capco
remains in general compliance with the programsraled meets the progressively increasing investimamthmarks. As the Capco progresses
in its investments in Qualified Businesses andoatingly, places an increasing proportion of thedeedits beyond recapture, it earns an
amount equal to the non-recapturable tax credidlsracords such amount as income, with a correspgrafiset called “credits in lieu of cash”
in the balance sheet.

The amount earned and recorded as income is detedrbly multiplying the total amount of tax creditkdcated to the Capco by the percent

of tax credits immune from recapture (the earnedrme percentage) at that point. To the extenttheinvestment requirements are met ahead
of schedule, and the percentage of non-recaptutakleredits is accelerated, the present valubefdx credit earned is recognized currently
and the asset, credits in lieu of cash, is accnepeth the amount of tax credits deliverable todésified investors. The obligation to deliver tax
credits to the certified investors is recorded ates payable in credits in lieu of cash. On the da¢ tax credits are utilizable by the certified
investors, the Capco decreases credits in lieasl gvith a corresponding decrease to notes payabtedits in lieu of cash.

Interest and SBA Loan Fee: Interest income on loans is recognized as earneghd are placed on non-accrual status if they exg@eealays

past due with respect to principal or interest amdhe opinion of management, interest or prinkcguaindividual loans is not collectible, or at
such earlier time as management determines thabirextability of such principal or interest islikely. Such loans are designated as impaired
non-accrual loans. All other loans are definedexopming loans. When a loan is designated as mensal, the accrual of interest is
discontinued, and any accrued but uncollectedésténcome is reversed and charged against cuspemétions. While a loan is classified as
non-accrual and the future collectability of thearled loan balance is doubtful, collections oéiest and principal are generally applied as a
reduction to principal outstanding.

The Company passes certain expenditures it inoufgetborrower, such as forced placed insuraneeffisient funds fees, or fees it assesses,
such as late fees, with respect to managing thre Ibaese expenditures are recorded when incurred.t®the uncertainty with respect to
collection of these passed through expendituressessed fees, any funds received to reimburgectmpany are recorded on a cash basis as
other income.

Insurance commissionsRevenues are comprised of commissions earned amyres paid for insurance policies and are recoghéethe tim
the commission is earned. At that date, the easnmgcess has been completed and the Company ti@atesthe impact of policy
cancellations for refunds and establish reservies.r&serve for policy cancellations is based ototical cancellation experience adjusted by
known circumstances.
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Other income:Other income represents revenues derived from tipgranits that cannot be aggregated with othemmss segments. In
addition, other income represents one time receset gains on investments. Revenue is recorded Wieee is strong evidence of an
agreement, the related fees are fixed, the searideor product has been delivered, and the calecf the related receivable is assured.

Capco Debt IssuanceThe Capco notes require, as a condition precedehetfunding of the notes, that insurance be @geti to cover the
risks associated with the operation of its Captbss insurance has been purchased from Chartis&yelmsurance Company and National
Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, botissiaries of Chartis, Inc. (“Chartis”), an intetismal insurer. In order to comply with this
condition precedent to the funding, the notes olpss structured as follows: (1) the certified istars wire their funds directly into an escrow
account; (2) the escrow agent, pursuant to theiragents under the note and escrow agreement, atitaity and simultaneously funds the
purchase of the insurance contract from the praceszkived. Newtek’s Capco is not entitled to the and benefit of the net proceeds received
until the escrow agent has completed the purchiagesdnsurance. The Chartis insurance subsidiauiésd above are “A+” credit rated by

S&P.

Under the terms of this insurance, which is forkkeefit of the certified investors, the Capco mesuncurs the primary obligation to repay the
certified investors a substantial portion of thétdgncluding all cash payments) as well as to makapensatory payments in the event of a
of the availability of the related tax credits. Thapco remains secondarily liable for such paymantsmust periodically assess the likelihood
that it will become primarily liable and, if necesg, record a liability at that time. The parentngany, Chartis, has not guaranteed the
obligations of its subsidiary insurers, althoughas committed to move the payment obligationstafiliated company in the event the Ca
insurer is materially downgraded in its creditmgti

Investment Accounting and Valuation: The various interests that the Capcos and Newtgligcas a result of their investments are accal
for under three methods: consolidation, equity métand cost method. The applicable accounting ndeihgenerally determined based on our
voting interest in a company and whether the comp®a variable interest entity where we are thmary beneficiary, and quarterly valuatic
are performed so as to keep our records curraeflecting the operations of all of its investments

Companies in which we directly or indirectly ownsma than 50% of the outstanding voting securitiesse Newtek has effective control over,
or are deemed as a variable interest entity threds1® be consolidated , are generally accounteghider the consolidation method of
accounting. Under this method, an investment'sults of operations are reflected within thesotidated statement of operations. All signific
inter-company accounts and transactions are eltetihd he results of operations and cash flowsafresolidated entity are included through
the latest interim period in which Newtek ownedraager than 50% direct or indirect voting interesiercised control over the entity for the
entire interim period or was otherwise designatetha primary beneficiary. Upon dilution of votiirderest at or below 50%, or upon
occurrence of a triggering event requiring recoasation as to the primary beneficiary of a varidhterest entity, the accounting method is
adjusted to the equity or cost method of accountisgappropriate, for subsequent periods.

Companies that are not consolidated, but over wivielkexercise significant influence, are accountedufider the equity method of accounting.
Whether or not Newtek exercises significant inflceemvith respect to a company depends on an evaituatiseveral factors including, among
others, representation on the board of directodscaynership level, which is generally a 20% to S5@%rest in the voting securities, including
voting rights associated with Newtek’s holdinggémmon, preferred and other convertible instrumeditsler the equity method of
accounting, a company’s accounts are not reflestddn our consolidated statements of operatioasydver, Newtek’s share of the investee’s
earnings or losses are reflected in other inconteérCompany’s consolidated statements of operation

Companies not accounted for under the consolidatidhe equity method of accounting are accountedifider the cost method of accounting,
for which quarterly valuations are performed. Untiés method, our share of the earnings or losésaah companies is not included in the
consolidated statements of operations, but thesinvent is carried at historical cost. In additionst method impairment charges are recog
as necessary, in the consolidated statements odtopes if circumstances suggest that this is dhéiothan temporary decline” in the value of
the investment, particularly due to losses. Subsegimcreases in value, if any, of the underlyinghpanies are not reflected in our financial
statements until realized in cash. We record asnirecamounts previously written off only when andié receive cash in excess of its
remaining investment balance.

On a quarterly basis, the investment committeeaoheCapco meets to evaluate each of our investimidatstek considers several factors in
determining whether an impairment exists on thestment, such as the companies’ net book valub,ftag, revenue growth and net income.
In addition, the investment committee looks atéargariables, such as the economy and the panticalapany’s industry, to determine if an
other than temporary decline in value exists irhd@apco’s and Newtek’s investment.
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Impairment of Goodwill: Management of the Company considers the followinget some examples of important indicators that trigger
an impairment review outside its annual goodwilpairment review: (i) significant under-performarardoss of key contracts acquired in an
acquisition relative to expected historical or paigd future operating results; (ii) significanaoles in the manner or use of the acquired a
or in the Company'’s overall strategy with respedtie manner or use of the acquired assets or esanghe Company’s overall business
strategy; (iii) significant negative industry oromomic trends; (iv) increased competitive pressurgsa significant decline in our stock price
for a sustained period of time; and (vi) regulatomanges. In assessing the recoverability of oodgidl and intangibles, we must make
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flowlsogher factors to determine the fair value ofrémpective assets. The fair value of an ¢
could vary, depending upon the estimating methogleyed, as well as assumptions made. This maytresalpossible impairment of the
intangible assets and/or goodwill, or alternativafiyacceleration in amortization expense. For #as/ended December 31, 2011 and 201(
goodwill was determined to not be impaired.

SBA Loan Held for Investment: For loans that completed funding before Octob&010, Loans receivable held for investment are ntepcat
their outstanding unpaid principal balances adiu&te charge-offs, net deferred loan originatiostsaand the allowance for loan losses. For
loans that completed funding on or after Octob&(ILO, management elected to fair value Loan reté#e held for investment within the fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes observable andbseovable inputs utilizing Level 3 unobservableuispwhich reflect the Company’s own
expectations about the assumptions that markdtipants would use in pricing the asset (includirsgumptions about risk). Because there
currently is no active secondary market for theuamgnteed portions, the Company uses a combinativading information from the
guaranteed sales, as was previously used to deethe discount on the unguaranteed portions,tentistorical performance of NSBHoan:
applied to their outstanding unpaid principal baks If a loan measured at fair value is subsetuiempaired, then the fair value of the loan is
measured based on the present value of expectae ftash flows discounted at the loan’s effectiterest rate, or the fair value of the
collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. 8ese the loans bear interest at a variable ratBFN#®es not have to factor in interest rate risk.

Allowance for SBA Loan LossesFor loans funded before October 1, 2010, the alfmedor loan losses for performing loans is esshield by
management through provisions for loan losses eubagainst income. The amount of the allowancéofor losses is inherently subjective, as
it requires making material estimates which mayJ¥esm actual results. Management'’s ongoing estmaf the allowance for loan losses are
particularly affected by the changing compositiéthe loan portfolio over the last few years aslhaslother portfolio characteristics, such as
industry concentrations and loan collateral. Theqagicy of the allowance for loan losses is revielyethanagement on a monthly basis at a
minimum, and as adjustments become necessaryféeeted in operations during the periods in whtady become known. Considerations in
this evaluation include past and anticipated loggegence, risks inherent in the current portfaia evaluation of real estate collateral as well
as current economic conditions. In the opinion ehagement, the allowance, when taken as a whaeégiguate to absorb estimated loan
losses inherent in the Company’s entire loan phbotfd he allowance consists of specific and geneoahponents. The specific component
relates to loans that are classified as either timgbtful, substandard or special mention. Fohdoans that are also classified as impaired, an
allowance is established when the discounted dasls flor collateral value or observable marketgyiaf the impaired loan is lower than the
carrying value of that loan. The general comporentrs non-classified loans and is based on histiddss experience adjusted for qualitative
factors.

For loans funded on or after October 1, 2010, da lis reported at its fair value. Changes in tlaey of the loan, whether performing or
impaired, are reported as a net change in thedhire of SBA loans held for investment.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on cuindormation and events, it is probable that tteempany will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest whem altcording to the contractual terms of the loaee@gent. Other factors considered by
management in determining impairment include payrstaius and collateral value. Loans that expeédénsignificant payment delays and
payment shortfalls generally are not classifiethgsaired. Management determines the significangeagment delays and payment shortfalls
on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideratlaf the circumstances surrounding the loan &eddorrower, including the length of the
delay, the reasons for the delay, the borroweits prayment record, and the amount of the shoiitialélation to the principal and interest
owed.

Impairment of a loan is measured based on the prea&ue of expected future cash flows discountati@loan’s effective interest rate, or the
fair value of the collateral if the loan is colletbdependent. Impaired loans for which the cagymount is based on fair value of the
underlying collateral are included in assets apdnted at estimated fair value on a mecurring basis, both at initial recognition of iaigment
and on an on-going basis until recovery or chaffefdhe loan amount. The determination of impaémh
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involves management’s judgment in the use of matk& and third party estimates regarding collatextaes. For loans funded before
October 1, 2010, the impairment of a loan resuherianagement establishing an allowance for loasds through provisions for loan losses
charged against income; for subsequent loansratdhie, impairment results in a net change irféiirevalue of SBA loans held for investment.
Amounts deemed to be uncollectible are chargechagtie allowance for loan losses or reduces theditue and subsequent recoveries, if
are credited to the allowance or increases thevédire.

The Company’s charge-off policy is based on a Ibg#lean review for which the estimated uncollecipbrtion of nonperforming loans is
charged off against the corresponding loan recéavaibd the allowance for possible loan losses amatjthe reduction in fair value.

SBA Loans Held for Sale:Prior to October 1, 2010, loans originated andnidésl for sale in the secondary market, that igteanteed
portions of SBA 7(a) loans, were carried at thedowaf aggregate cost or fair value, as determineadgregate outstanding commitments from
investors. For guaranteed portions funded on er &ctober 1, 2010, management elected to fairv@BA loans held for sale within the fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes observable andbseovable inputs utilizing Level 2 assets. Thegeitis include debt securities with quoted
prices that are traded less frequently than exahdregied instruments or have values determinedjuspricing model with inputs that are
observable in the market. The secondary markeh®guaranteed portions is extremely robust witkkér dealers acting as primary dealers.
NSBF sells regularly into the market and can quigkice its loans for sales. The Company valuegtieanteed portion based on mal

prices equal to the guaranteed loan amount plusraipm that includes both an upfront cash paymatiltzing quoted prices) and the value of
a stream of payments representing servicing ina@oeived in excess of NSBF’s servicing cost (valugidg a pricing model with inputs that
are observable in the market).

Loans receivable held for sale are sold with theisieg rights retained by the Company. For loamsdied prior to October 1, 2010, gains on
sales of loans are recognized based on the differbatween the selling price and the carrying vafuee related loans sold. Unamortized net
deferred loan origination costs are recognized @smgponent of gain on sale of loans. For loansddmh or after October 1, 2010, Premiun
loan sales is equal to the cash premium plus ihedfue of the servicing income while extinguishitihe fair value gain previously recorded.

Securitization Activities: NSBF engaged in securitizations of the unguaranpeetions of its SBA 7(a) loans. Because the tramnsf these
assets did not meet the criteria of a sale, thassactions were treated as a secured borrowinBFN8ntinues to recognize the assets of the
secured borrowing in loans held for investment mugnize the associated financing in Bank notgalga.

SBA Loans Transferred, Subject to Premium RecourseEffective January 1, 2010, a new accounting stahdadified into ASC Topic 860,
“Transfers and Servicing,” required for the guaesat portions transferred that the Company, dueg@temium warranty formerly
incorporated in SBA Form 1086, establish a newtamstitled “SBA loans transferred, subject to premirecourse” related to the guaranteed
portion of SBA 7(a) loans contractually sold bubjget to premium recourse and a matching liabiityil the end of the warranty period. Prior
to October 1, 2010, loans transferred in the seagnoharket, that is the guaranteed portions of SB#8 loans, were carried at cost. For
guaranteed portions funded on or after Octobef102management elected to fair value SBA loanssfesred, subject to premium recourse
within the fair value hierarchy that prioritizessasvable and unobservable inputs utilizing Levakgets. These inputs include debt securities
with quoted prices that are traded less frequehtiy exchange-traded instruments or have valuesrdieted using a pricing model with inputs
that are observable in the market. The secondarkenfor the guaranteed portions is extremely rokuith broker dealers acting as primary
dealers. NSBF sells regularly into the market aema quickly price its loans for sales. The Compaalyes the guaranteed portion based on
market prices equal to the guaranteed loan amdustgppremium that includes both an upfront cagimeant (utilizing quoted prices) and the
value of a stream of payments representing sexyicicome received in excess of NSBF's servicing ¢eeued using a pricing model with
inputs that are observable in the market).

Contemporaneous with the adoption of this accogrgtandard the Company elected the fair value ngtiovaluing this new liability, which
captioned in the consolidated financial statemaat4_iability on SBA loans transferred, subjecpr@mium recourse at fair valuéAt the time
management elected to adopt the fair value optieetien because it more accurately reflected tlmmemics of the transaction. For liabilities
created prior to October 1, 2010 and prior to thepsion of fair value for the loans themselveshwitthe fair value hierarchy that prioritizes
observable and unobservable inputs used to metsukalue, the Company utilizes Level 3 unobselgaiputs which reflect the Company’s
own assumptions about the assumptions that maakgtipants would use in pricing the liability (inding assumptions about risk). The
Company valued the liability based on the probghdf payment given the Company’s history of retngipremium: the transferee will receive
100% of the guaranteed portion from either thedoger or the SBA and approximately 3% of the premamount from the Company. The
aforementioned return of premiums is triggered idyee the borrower’s prepayment of the loan witbthdays of the transfer settlement date or
the borrower’s default within 275 days of the ssttent date on loans where any of the borrowess tiiree payments were delinquent.
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For liabilities created on or after October 1, 20th@ fair valuing of the loans themselves provitfeseconomic gain to be recognized from the
transfer. Continuing to value the liability basedtbe likelihood of repaying the premium warrantyuld effectively double count the gain
from creating the loan. As such, the Company charige valuation of the liability for loans issuedrhatch the amount received from the
transfer.

After February 7, 2011, the new SBA Form 1086 a#idwhe Company to recognize premium income conotwih the trade date, as was
done prior to January 1, 2010. As a result, tharzds at December 31, 2010 in “Liability on SBAnsdransferred, subject to premium
recourse” decreased throughout 2011 with the Itgbiéaching zero at December 31, 2011.

Sales and Servicing of SBA LoandNSBF originates loans to customers under the SBnam that generally provides for SBA guarantees of
50% to 85% of each loan, with 90% under a prevgmgernment stimulus program, subject to a maximuargntee amount. This guaranteed
portion is generally sold to a third party via @¥Sregulated secondary market transaction for egpeiqual to the guaranteed loan amount plus
a premium that includes both an upfront cash paymed the fair value of future net servicing incoamel NSBF retains the unguaranteed
principal portion in its own portfolio. Prior to @ber 1, 2010, NSBF recognized the revenue iterarffim on loan sales” net of capitalized
loan expenses and the discount on the retainedanaigieed portion; subsequent to the adoption of/édie of SBA 7(a) loans on October 1,
2010, NSBF recognizes premium on loan sales ad &gtlee cash premium plus the fair value of theviseng income. Revenue is recognized
on the trade date of the guaranteed portion, exasgescribed below.

Prior to February 7, 2011, SBA Form 1086 requiregart of the transferor’s representations andaméies that the transferor repay any
premium received from the transferee if either3iBA 7(a) loan borrower prepays the loan within 89gof the transfer settlement date or 1

to make one of its first three loan payments aftersettlement date in a timely fashion and thecgeds to default within 275 days of the
settlement date. Based on management’s best estandtconsidering historical prepayment performarid¢be loan portfolio, the Company
took the position that the premium was fully recagd at trade date, and a provision against theajpira was not required at the time of the
sale. However, effective January 1, 2010, ASC T8pi@, “Transfers and Servicing,” precludes salattrent of the transferred guaranteed
portions during this warranty period; rather NSB&swequired to account for this as a financingreyeanent with the transferee. Until the
warranty period expires, such transferred loangwkassified as “SBA Loans Transferred, subjegrémium recourse” with a matching
liability “Liability on SBA Loans Transferred, sulgjt to premium recourse.” At the expiration of terranty period, the sale of the guaranteed
portions of these loans as well as the correspgmgiin is recognized, and the asset and liabilitgieated.

Upon recognition of each loan sale, the Comparginstservicing responsibilities and receives sargiéees of a minimum of 1% of the
guaranteed loan portion sold. The Company is redquin estimate its adequate servicing compensatitite calculation of its servicing asset.
The purchasers of the loans have no recourse Gdhgany for failure of customers to pay amountgremtually due. The Company
separately recognizes at fair value any servicgsg or servicing liabilities first, and then alites the previous carrying amount between the
assets sold and the interests that continue teloebly it (the unguaranteed portion of the loargdshon their relative fair values at the date of
transfer. The difference between the proceedsvedeind the allocated carrying value of the finahassets sold is recognized as a gain or

of loans.

Subsequent measurements of each class of sereisgmgs and liabilities may use either the amoitizahethod or the fair value measurement
method. NSBF has chosen to apply the amortizatiethod to its servicing asset, amortizing the aissptoportion to, and over the period of,
the estimated future net servicing income on traedging sold guaranteed portion of the loans askssing the servicing asset for impairn
based on fair value at each reporting date. Iretleat future prepayments are significant or impairta are incurred and future expected cash
flows are inadequate to cover the unamortized siwyiassets, additional amortization or impairnwrerges would be recognized. In
evaluating and measuring impairment of servicirgetss NSBF stratifies its servicing assets basegeanof loan and loan term which are the
key risk characteristics of the underlying loan Iso®he Company uses an independent valuationajgdb estimate the fair value of the
servicing asset by calculating the present valuestimated future net servicing cash flows, usisguanptions of prepayments, defaults,
servicing costs and discount rates that NSBF betiewarket participants would use for similar assENdSBF determines that the impairment
for a stratum is temporary, a valuation allowarsceecognized through a charge to current earnimgth& amount the amortized balance
exceeds the current fair value. If the fair valfi¢he stratum were to later increase, the valuaitowance may be reduced as a recovery.
However, if NSBF determines that impairment fotratsim is other than temporary, the value of theisig asset and any related valuation
allowance is written-down.
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Management’s impairment analysis indicated no wadnaadjustment for 2011 and 2010.

Stock-Based CompensatioriThe Company records all share-based payments ttogegs based on their fair values using an optiacisy
model at the date of grant.

Income TaxesDeferred tax assets and liabilities are computagdbapon the differences between the financiatistant and income tax basis
of assets and liabilities using the enacted teesrat effect for the year in which those tempoudifierences are expected to be realized or
settled. If available evidence suggests thatritdse likely than not that some portion or all of theferred tax assets will not be realized, a
valuation allowance is required to reduce the detetax assets to the amount that is more likedy thot to be realized.

New Accounting Standards

On July 21, 2010, the Financial Standards Accogritinard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdatsU”) No. 2010-20,

“Disclosures about the Credit Quality of FinancReceivables and the Allowance for Credit Lossesith requires significant new

disclosures about the allowance for credit losseisthe credit quality of financing receivables. Thquirements are intended to enhance
transparency regarding credit losses and the ayediity of loan and lease receivables. Underdtagement, allowance for credit losses anc
value are to be disclosed by portfolio segment]evtriedit quality information, impaired financingceivables and nonaccrual status are to be
presented by class of financing receivable. Disgl®®f the nature and extent, the financial im@at segment information of troubled debt
restructurings will also be required. The disclesuare to be presented at the level of disaggoegttat management uses when assessing anc
monitoring the portfolio’s risk and performance.igktandard is effective for interim and annuabréipg periods after December 15, 2010.
The adoption did not have a material impact onGbmpany because the Company already includes tlessary disclosures in its financial
statements.

In January 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-D&férral of the Effective Date of Disclosures abdrdubled Debt Restructurings in
Update No. 2010-20,” which defers the effectiveedaiated to the disclosures required in ASU NA.Q2R0, enabling creditors to provide such
disclosures after the FASB completes their projéatfying the guidance for determining what congéis a troubled debt restructuring. As the
provisions of this ASU only defer the effective elaf disclosure requirements related to troubldat destructurings, the adoption of this ASU
had no impact on the Company’s consolidated stattsra# operations and balance sheets.

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-02, Cheditor’s Determination of Whether a Restructuiig Troubled Debt Restructuring.”
The provisions of ASU No. 2011-02 provide additibgaidance related to determining whether a credits granted a concession, include
factors and examples for creditors to considevalieating whether a restructuring results in a ylélgpayment that is insignificant, prohibit
creditors from using the borrower’s effective ragst to evaluate whether a concession has beetedramthe borrower, and add factors for
creditors to use in determining whether a borrowexperiencing financial difficulties. A provision ASU No. 2011-02 also ends the FASB's
deferral of the additional disclosures about tredhdlebt restructurings as required by ASU No. 220.0Fhis standard became effective for
interim and annual reporting periods beginning pafter June 15, 2011. The Company has adopted R&2011-02 and the adoption did not
have a material impact on its consolidated statésnafroperations and balance sheets.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04nfendments to Achieve Common Fair Value MeasureraedtDisclosure Requirements
U.S. GAAP and IFRSs,” which amends the currentfalue measurement and disclosure guidance of AGficB20 “Fair Value
Measurement” to include increased transparencynarealuation inputs and investment categorizafidre guidance provided in ASU

No. 201:-04 is effective prospectively for interim and anihperiods beginning after December 15, 2011. Ttaadard is not expected to hay
material impact on the Company’s consolidated statés of operations and balance sheets.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 20114a88&ngibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350),” &tlow entities to use a qualitative
approach to test goodwill for impairment and peramitentity to first perform a qualitative assessnemletermine whether it is more likely tt
not that the fair value of a reporting unit is |#san its carrying value. If it is concluded thiaistis the case, it is necessary to perform the
currently prescribed two-step goodwill impairmesdtt Otherwise, the two-step goodwill impairmest is not required. This standard was
effective for interim and annual reporting peridiggyinning on or after December 15, 2011. This steths not expected to have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated statementpefations and balance sheets.

Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated subsequent events thtloeigime of filing these consolidated financiatstnents with the SEC.
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Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
None.

Impact of Inflation
The impact of inflation and changing prices on @msults of operations is not material.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MA RKET RISK.

We consider the principal types of risk in our Imesis activities to be fluctuations in interestsated loan portfolio valuations and the
availability of the secondary market for our SBAhs held for sale. Risk management systems anéguoes are designed to identify and
analyze our risks, to set appropriate policieslanis and to continually monitor these risks aimdils by means of reliable administrative and
information systems and other policies and programs

Our SBA lender primarily lends at an interest m@ft@rime, which resets on a quarterly basis, plfised margin. Our receivable financing
business purchases receivables priced to equatsitoilar prime plus a fixed margin structure. Tapital One term loan and revolver loan,
securitization notes and the new Sterling linereflit are, and the former Wells Fargo line of credis, on a prime plus a fixed factor basis
(although the Company had elected under the Wallgd-line to borrow under a lower cost LIBOR basig) a result the Company believes it
has matched its cost of funds to its interest ine@mits financing activities. However, becauséhef differential between the amount lent and
the smaller amount financed a significant changadnket interest rates will have a material effacbur operating income. In periods of
sharply rising interest rates, our cost of fundl wcrease at a slower rate than the interestrimeearned on the loans we have made; this
should improve our net operating income, holdingtier factors constant. However, a reductiomteriest rates, as has occurred since 2008,
has and will result in the Company experiencingauction in operating income; that is interest meawill decline more quickly than interest
expense resulting in a net reduction of benefigerating income.

Our lender depends on the availability of secondaayket purchasers for the guaranteed portion8#f IBans and the premium received on

such sales to support its lending operations. itttme the secondary market for the guaranteetignsrof SBA loans is robust but during the
2008 and 2009 financial crisis the Company hadadiffy selling it loans for a premium; although rexpected at this time, if such conditions
did recur our SBA lender would most likely ceas&im@ new loans and could experience a substartilation in profitability.

We do not have significant exposure to changingrest rates on invested cash which was approxiyn@dg&,429,000 at December 31,
2011. We do not purchase or hold derivative finahicistruments for trading purposes. All of oumnsactions are conducted in U.S. dollars and
we do not have any foreign currency or foreign exge risk. We do not trade commaodities or havecamymodity price risk.

We believe that we have placed our demand deposaits, investments and their equivalents with higldit-quality financial

institutions. Invested cash is held almost exclelgiat financial institutions with ratings from S& A- or better. The Company invests cash
not held in interest free checking accounts or bhmokey market accounts mainly in U.S. Treasury ombney market instruments or funds i
other investment-grade securities. As of DecemliePB11, cash deposits in excess of FDIC and ShiB@ance totaled approximately
$1,713,000 and funds held in U.S. Treasury only eyanarket funds or equivalents in excess of SIRQrance totaled approximately
$3,448,000.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.
Our consolidated financial statements and relatédsnbegin on Page F-1, which are included inAhisual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

For the two years ended 2010 and 2011, there hes o changes in or disagreements with accourtardscounting and financial
disclosure.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Proceduge

Our management, with the participation of our Cligécutive Officer and Chief Accounting Officer,adwated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the etitegberiod covered by this report. Based on thaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Accounting Officer concluded that our discloes controls and procedures were effective aseétid of the period covered by this report
and provide reasonable assurance that the infaymegiquired to be disclosed by us in reports filader the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pienods specified in the SEC’s rules and formscPisure controls and procedures include,
without limitation, controls and procedures desijt@ensure that information required to be disadoy an issuer in the reports that it files or
submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated andraunicated to the issuer's management includmgrincipal executive and principal
financial officers, or persons performing similan€tions, as appropriate to allow timely decisicggarding required disclosure.

(b) Change in Internal Control over Financial Repting.

No change in our internal control over financiglogting occurred during the quarter ended Decer@lbe011 that has materially affected
is reasonably likely to materially affect, our imal control over financial reporting.

(c) Limitations.

A control system, no matter how well designed apelrated, can provide only reasonable, not absastirances that the control system’s
objectives will be met. Furthermore, the desigia abntrol system must reflect the fact that theeeresource constraints, and the benefits of
controls must be considered relative to their c@¢sause of the inherent limitations in all cohtigstems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control isandsinstances of fraud, if any, within the Comphaye been detected. These inherent
limitations include the realities that judgmentglgcision-making can be faulty, and that breakdogarmsoccur because of simple errors or
mistakes. Controls can also be circumvented byntthieidual acts of some persons, by collusion af tw more people, or by management
override of the controls. The design of any systéiwontrols is based in part upon certain assumptabout the likelihood of future events, |
there can be no assurance that any design wilkgalcim achieving its stated goals under all paaefuture conditions. Over time, controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditiateterioration in the degree of compliance wishpiolicies or procedures. Because of the
inherent limitations in a cost-effective controbsm, misstatements due to error or fraud may camedmot be detected. We periodically
evaluate our internal controls and make changéspoove them.
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MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT TO THE STOCKHOLDERS OF NEWTEK B USINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

As management, we are responsible for establisdmidgmaintaining adequate internal control overrfaial reporting for Newtek Business
Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries. In order @lgate the effectiveness of internal control owearicial reporting, as required by Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we have conduateasaessment, including testing, using the critariaternal Control-Integral Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizasfahe Treadway Commission (COSO). Newtek BusiBmwices, Incs system of intern
control over financial reporting is designed to\pde reasonable assurance regarding the reliabififinancial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atanoce with accounting principles generally acceptatie United States of America. Because
of its inherent limitation, internal control ovénéncial reporting may not prevent or detect missteents.

Based on our assessment, we have concluded thaekBusiness Services, Inc. maintained effectiveriral control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2011, based on criteriatiernal Control-Integrated Framewoiksued by the COSO. As a smaller reporting comptuey,
effectiveness of Newtek Business Services, Inotarial control over financial reporting is notu@gd to be audited by our independent
registered public accounting firm.

This Annual Report does not include an attestatmort of the Company’s independent registeredip@gicounting firm regarding internal
control over financial reporting. Management'’s népeas not subject to attestation by the Compamgspendent registered public accounting
firm pursuant to rules of the Securities and Exglga@ommission that permit the Company to providg oranagement’s report in this Annual
Report.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
None

PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE.

The information required by this Item is incorp@herein by reference to the Company’s definipinexy statement for our 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held later this year.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this Item is incorp@herein by reference to the Company’s definitikeexy statement for our 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held later this year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by this Item is incorp@herein by reference to the Company’s definitikexy statement for our 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held later this year.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by this Item is incorp@herein by reference to the Company’s definipinexy statement for our 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held later this year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

The information required by this Item is incorp@herein by reference to the Company’s definipinexy statement for our 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held later this year.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

@)
@2

Number

3.1
3.2
10.1
10.2
10.3

10.4

10.5.1

10.5.2
10.6.1
10.6.2
10.6.3
10.6.4
10.6.5

10.7.1

10.7.2

10.7.3

Financial Statement
Exhibits.

The following exhibits are filed herewith or arearporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfikdth the Securities ar
Exchange Commissiol

Description

Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioNewtek Business Services, Inc., as amended (pacated by referenc
herein to Exhibit 3.1 to Newt’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Au@@sP010)

Bylaws of Newtek Business Services, Inc. (Incorpeady reference to Exhibit 3.2 to New's Registration Statement on Fori-
4, No. 33115615, filed August 11, 200(

Employment Agreement with Barry Sloane, dated Margh2011, (Incorporated by reference to Exhibitl1Dto Newte’s
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2010, filed Mdr¢h2011)

Employment Agreement with Craig J. Brunet, datedd1dl5, 2011 (Incorporated by reference to ExHibi2.2 to Newtek’s
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2010, filed Mdr¢h2011)

Employment Agreement with Seth A. Cohen, dated Mdass, 2011 (Incorporated by reference to ExhibiB1Dto Newtek’'s
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2010, filed Mdr¢h2011)

Lease and Master Services Agreement dated MarckODg, between CrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc. an®#a Center
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Névg&uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartedexd March 31, 2007, filed
May 15, 2007)

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of AprilZL0, between CrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc., Nev@siall Business
Finance, Inc. and Capital One, N.A. (Incorporatgadierence herein to Exhibit 10.16.1 to Newtekig1@nt Report on Form 8-K,
filed May 4, 2010)

Guaranty of Payment and Performance, dated as mf 3y 2010, between Newtek Business Services,dnd Capital One Ban
N.A. (Incorporated by reference herein to Exhilfit16.2 to Newte's Current Report on Forn-K, filed May 4, 2010)

Newtek Business Services, Inc. 2010 Stock IncerRiaa (Incorporated by reference herein to ExHiBitL7 to Newte’s Current
Report on Form -K, filed June 14, 2010

Form of ISO Stock Option Agreement for Newtek’s @@tock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by referereeim to Exhibit 10.17.2
to Newtel' s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s2010)

Form of Non-ISO Stock Option Agreement for NewteR®10 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refeeemerein to Exhibit
10.17.3 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s2010)

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement for Nek’s 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refeeeherein to Exhik
10.17.4 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Au@@2s2010

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement for Ne's 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refeeeherein to Exhib
10.17.5 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Au@@se010.’

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Decemhe2d10, between Newtek Small Business Finance aim¢ Capital One
Bank, N.A. (Incorporated by reference herein toiBiH0.18.1 to Newtek’s Current Report on Form gfiked December 20,
2010, as amended on March 2, 20:

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2#t@een Newtek Business Services, Inc. and Capital Bank, N.A
(Incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 1®18.Newtek’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed Beter 20, 2010, as
amended on March 2, 201:

Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreematggdas of June 16, 2011, by and between Newtel Boginess Finance,
Inc. and Capital One, N.A. (Incorporated by refeeeherein to Exhibit 10.8.3 to Newtek’s Current &pn Form 8-K, filed
June 21, 2011
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10.7.4 Amended and Restated Guaranty of Payment and Rexfme, dated as of June 16, 2011, by and betweesteN8usiness
Services, Inc., and Capital One, N.A. (Incorpordigaeference herein to Exhibit 10.8.4 to NewteRigrent Report on Form 8-
K, filed June 21, 2011

10.7.5 Amendment to Loan Documents, dated October 6, 200 And among Newtek Small Business Finance, Gapjtal One
Bank, N.A. and each of the guarantors listed orstgeature pages thereto (Incorporated by referbapein to Exhibit 10.8.5
Newtel’ s Current Report on Forn-K, filed October 11, 2011

10.8.1 Newtek Small Business Loan Trust Class A Notesdl&tecember 22, 2010 (Incorporated by referenceihés Exhibit
10.19.1 to Newte's Current Report on Forn-K, filed December 23, 201G

10.8.2 Amended Newtek Small Business Loan Trust Class fedlalated December 29, 2011 (Incorporated byerderherein t
Exhibit 10.19.2 to Newte's Current Report on Forn-K, filed January 5, 2012

10.8.3 Additional Newtek Small Business Loan Trust Clashldtes, dated December 29, 2011 (Incorporated fieyarece herein to
Exhibit 10.19.3 to Newte's Current Report on Forn-K, filed January 5, 2012

10.9.1 Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Februgrg@11, by and between CDS Business ServicesahtcSterling
National Bank (Incorporated by reference hereiisthibit 10.10.1 to Newte's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 3,
2011).

10.9.2 Guaranty, dated as of February 28, 2011, by anddmt Newtek Business Services, Inc. and SterlingpNal Bank
(Incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 1®10.Newtel's Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 3, 2011)

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant filed herew

23.1 Consent of J.H. Cohn LLP filed herewi

311 Certification by Principal Executive Officer reged by Rule 13-14(a) and 15-14(a) under the Exchange Act, as amended
herewith.

31.2 Certification by Principal Financial Officer reqai by Rule 13-14(a) and 15-14(a) under the Exchange Act, as amended
herewith.

32.1 Certification by Principal Executive Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursoadéttion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 filed herewitt

32.2 Certification by Principal Financial Officer pursutao 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursoa®éttion 906 of the

Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 filed herewitt
101.INS* XBRL Instance Documer
101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Docurr
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

XBRL Taxonomy
* XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Languagepiniation is furnished and not filed or a part aégistration statement or prospectus for

purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securitiesofd933, is deemed not filed for purposes of secti8 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, and otherwise is not subjeiibity under these sectior
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

Date: March 19, 201 By: /'s/ BARRY SLOANE
Barry Sloane
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 19, 2012 By: /'s/ JENNIFERE DDELSON
Jennifer Eddelson
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this repostiteen signed below by the following persons oralieti the registrant and in the capacit
and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ BARRY SLOANE Chairman of the Board, Preside March 19, 201:
Barry Sloane Chief Executive Officer and Secrete

(Principal Executive Officer

/'s/ JENNIFERE DDELSON Chief Accounting Office March 19, 201:
Jennifer Eddelson (Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ DaviD C. BEck Director March 19, 2012
David C. Beck
/s/ SALVATORE M ULIA Director March 19, 201:

Salvatore Mulia

/s/ SAMUEL K IRSCHNER Director March 19, 2012
Samuel Kirschner
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Newtek Business Services, Ir

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Newtek Business Services, Inc. andidialies as of December 31, 2011
and 2010, and the related consolidated stateménofseoations, changes in equity and cash flowsé&mh of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2011. These consolidated fialesteitements are the responsibility of the Comjsamanagement. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated finastaéments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBigUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaepferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of Newtek
Business Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Deer31, 2011 and 2010, and their results of ofersand cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended December 31, 2@1dgnformity with accounting principles generaltycapted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 3, in 2010, the Company usedair value option to change its method of actiogrfor valuing its liability on SBA
loans transferred, subject to premium recourse; 8BAs held for investment; SBA loans held for saled SBA loans transferred, subject to
premium recourse.

/s/ J.H. Cohn LLF

Jericho, New Yor}
March 19, 201:
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 20®
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

2011 2010 2009
Operating revenue $125,33¢  $112,71¢ $105,71:
Net change in fair value ¢
SBA loans (5,499 3,49/ —
Credits in lieu of cash and notes payable in csdditieu of casl (131) 38 90C
Total net change in fair valt (5,624 3,532 90C
Operating expense
Electronic payment processing cc 69,14 68,18’ 58,31:
Salaries and benefi 21,04: 19,39: 18,37¢
Interest 3,41¢ 4,47¢ 10,35(
Depreciation and amortizatic 3,95¢ 4,70¢ 5,84
Provision for loan losse 763 1,90¢ 1,83
Lease restructuring charg 99C — —
Other general and administrative cc 18,13: 16,69¢ 15,89¢
Total operating expens 117,44 115,37 110,61:
Income (loss) before income tax 2,27 877 (4,002)
Benefit for income taxe 1,097 41€ 2,59:
Net income (loss 3,36¢ 1,29t (2,409
Net loss attributable to n-controlling interest: 112 144 98(
Net income (loss) attributable to Newtek Business/iges, Inc $ 3481 $ 143¢ $ (429
Weighted average common shares outstan
Basic 35,70¢ 35,65¢ 35,64«
Diluted 36,07 35,80: 35,64«
Basic and diluted income (loss) per sk $ 01C $ 00¢£ $ (0.0

See accompanying notes to these consolidated fadatatements.

F-2



Table of Contents

NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel

Restricted cas

Broker receivablt

SBA loans held for investment, net (includes $18,atd $19,092, respectively related to securitretiust VIE;
net of reserve for loan losses of $2,900 and $3 Espectively

SBA loans held for investment, at fair value (irt#s $19,617 and $—, respectively, related to stzatidbn trust
VIE)

Accounts receivable (net of allowance of $308 ah@3} respectively

SBA loans held for sale, at fair val

Prepaid expenses and other assets, net (inclug2si$dnd $866, respectively, related to securitmatrust VIE)

Servicing assets (net of accumulated amortizatimhadlowances of $5,964 and $5,189, respectiy

Fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation arattization of $16,463 and $14,719, respectiv

Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortizaifdpl 3,226 and $11,874, respective

SBA loans transferred, subject to premium reco(— and $21,212 at fair value, respective

Credits in lieu of cas

Goodwill
Deferred tax asset, n
Total asset
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expet
Bank notes payabl
Note payable Securitization trus
Deferred revenu
Liability on SBA loans transferred, subject to prem recourse, at fair valt
Notes payable in credits in lieu of ce
Deferred tax liability, ne
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
Equity:
Newtek Business Services, Inc stockhol’ equity:
Preferred stock (par value $0.02 per share; autbdrl ,000 shares, no shares issued and outstal

Common stock (par value $0.02 per share; authoB24e@00 shares, 36,701 issued; 35,702 and 35,666

outstanding, respectively, not including 83 shérels in escrow
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earnings (accumulated defi
Treasury stock, at cost (999 and 1,035 sharesecésply)

Total Newtek Business Services, Inc. stockhol’ equity
Non-controlling interest:

Total equity
Total liabilities and equit

See accompanying notes to these consolidated fadatatements.
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2011 2010
$11,36:  $ 10,38
14,06¢ 10,74’
4,911 12,05¢
18,55¢ 23,74
21,85 2,31(
10,49: 9,99(
2,19¢ 1,01
11,76: 7,80¢
3,42 2,22t
2,85: 3,21(
1,42 2,75:
= 31,18¢
16,94¢ 35,49
12,09: 12,09:

72 —
$132,01(  $165,01!
$ 14,19¢  $ 10,32
13,56¢ 12,94¢
26,36¢ 15,10
1,63 1,76¢
— 30,78
16,94¢ 35,49
— 3,00z
72,717 109,42
734 734
57,96( 57,65(
45 (3,436)
(620) (663)
58,11 54,28t
1,18¢ 1,30¢
59,29¢ 55,59«
$132,01(  $165,01!
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 20®
(In Thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2C

Issuance of common sto

Stoclk-based compensatic

Purchase of treasury sha

Cancellation of treasury shar

Distributions

Paid in capital in excess of par, upon acquisiti
of subsidiary minority intere:

Dividends paic- $0.02 per shar

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2C

Stoclk-based compensatic

Grant of restricted stock awa

Option exercist

Expiration of subsidiary non-controlling interest
warrants

Cumulative-effect adjustment, deconsolidation
OnLAN, LLC

Non-controlling interest contributio

Net income

Balance at December 31, 2C
Issuance of treasury shai
Purchase of treasury sha
Grant of restricted stock awa
Buyout of noi-controlling interes
Net income

Balance at December 31, 2C

Number
of
Number of Shares
Additional of Non-
Shares of Common Treasury Treasury controlling
Common Paid-in Retained
Stock Stock Capital Earnings Stock Stock Interest Total
36,667 $ 73z $58,23: $(4,54% 1,02¢ $ (649 $ 2,30¢ $56,07¢
7 _ _ - - - _ -
— — 12¢€ — — — — 12¢
— — — — 3 @ - (2)
— @ - © 1 — —
— — — — — — (44) (44)
— — (331) — — — 331 —
— — (726) — — — — (72€)
- = - (429) - - (980) (1,409
36,67¢ $ 73: $57,30: $(4,97) 1,02¢ $ (649 $ 1,61t $54,02:
— — 77 — — — — 77
— — 4 — — — — 4
27 1 25 — 9 (14) — 12
— — 242 — — — (262) (20)
— — — 99 — — — 99
— — — — — — 10C 10C
_ — — 1,43¢ — — (144) 1,29
36,70 $ 734 $57,65( $(3,43¢ 1,03t $ (663 $ 1,30¢ $55,59¢
= = 27 = (49 59 = 86
— — — — 13 (16) — (16)
— — 47¢ — — — — 47¢
— — (196) — — — (17 (212)
- = = 3,481 - - (112) 3,36¢
36,70 $ 734 $5796( $ 45 99¢ $ (620) $ 1,18C  $59,29¢

See accompanying notes to these consolidated fadatatements.
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 20®

(In Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rehcprovided by (used in) operating activit
Income from tax credit
Accretion of interest expen:
Fair value adjustments on SBA loe
Fair value adjustment of credits in lieu of cast antes payable in credits in lieu of ci
Gain on sale/recovery of investme
Deferred income taxe
Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for loan losse
Lease restructuring charg
Other, ne
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Originations of SBA loans held for se
Originations of SBA loans transferred, subject tenpium recours
Originations of SBA loans, achieving sale ste
Proceeds from originations of SBA loans, achiedatg statu:
Proceeds from sale of SBA loans held for :
Proceeds from sale of SBA loans, achieving sateis
Liability on SBA loans transferred, subject to prem recours¢
Broker receivablt
Accounts receivabl
Prepaid expenses, accrued interest receivabletard @sset
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and deferredue
Other, ne
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi
Cash flows from investing activitie
Investments in qualified business
Returns of investments in qualified busines
Purchase of fixed assets and customer merchantiats
SBA loans originated for investment, 1
Payments received on SBA loz
Proceeds from sale of SBA loans held for investr
Change in restricted ca
Purchase of nc-controlling interes
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi

2011 2010 2009
$ 336¢ $ 1298  $ (1,409
(1,390 (2,380) (7,837)
1,25¢ 2,41¢ 8,73¢
5,497 (3,49¢) —
131 (38) (900)
— — (1,117
(2,775 (639) (1,710
3,95¢ 4,70¢ 5,847
762 1,90¢ 1,83:
99C — —
394 1,037 66C
(74,54¢) (782 (14,390
(274) (30,757 —
— (25,987 —
— 25,98: 20,32:
73,87 — —
27,85¢ — —
(30,782 34,00t —
7,14¢ (5,59]) (6,109)
(519) (4,987) 13€
(3,099) (45) 70€
2,53¢ 1,84¢ (1,15¢)
(2,987) (817) (49E)
11,40¢ (2,209) 3,12¢
— — (42¢)
242 23¢ 2,51¢
(1,499) (2,075) (1,762)
(22,26¢) (8,244) (2,11])
4,67 3,217 3,48¢
— — 517
1,401 53z 1,18¢
(196) — —
(17,649 (6,336) 3,40(

See accompanying notes to these consolidated fadastatements.
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 20®
(In Thousands)

2011 2009
Cash flows from financing activitie
Net borrowings (repayments) on bank lines of cr $ 1,03 $ (9,700
Proceeds from bank term note paye — —
Payments on bank term note payz (417) —
Issuance of senior notes, net of issuance 13,51 —
Change in restricted cash due to debt refinan (75C) —
Change in restricted cash related to securitizz (2,954 —
Payments on senior not (2,827 —
Dividends paic — (72€)
Purchase of treasury sha (16) —
Other, ne (364) (379)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 7,224 (10,799
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 981 (4,27])
Cash and cash equivale—beginning of yea 10,38: 16,85
Cash and cash equivale—end of yeal $11,36: $ 12,58
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow activities
Cash paid for intere: $ 1,34¢ $ 1,28¢
Cash paid for taxe $ 1,28( 752
Non-cash investing and financing activities
Reduction of credits in lieu of cash and notes plya credits in lieu of cash balances due tovaeyi of
tax credits to Certified Investo $19,48: $ 28,90:
Refinance of line of credit to term loi $ — —
Additional paid in capital, upon acquisition of sidiaries no-controlling interest: $ — 331

See accompanying notes to these consolidated fadatatements.
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENRTION:

Newtek Business Services, I. (“Newtek”) is a holding company for several wholgnad majority-owned subsidiaries, including twelve
certified capital companies which are referreda@apcos, and several portfolio companies in wtiiehCapcos own non-controlling or
minority interests. The Company provides a “ongysthop” for business services to the small- andinmegized business market and uses
state of the art web-based proprietary technolodyeta low cost acquirer and provider of produnts services. The Company partners with
companies, credit unions, and associations to dffeservices.

The Company’s principal business segments are:

Electronic Payment ProcessingMarketing third party credit card processing andathapproval services to the small- and mediumdsize
business market.

Managed Technology Solutions (previously referreda as Web Hosting):CrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc., d/b/a/ Newtek Tedbgg
Services, offers shared and dedicated web hostidgedated services to the small- and medium-dimesiness market.

Small Business FinancePrimarily consists of Newtek Small Business Finaree. (‘“NSBF”), a nationally licensed, U.S. SmBlisiness
Administration (“SBA”) lender that originates, selind services loans to qualifying small businesgbih are partially guaranteed by the
SBA,; and CDS Business Services, Inc. d/b/a Newtesiriss Credit (“NBC") which provides receivablediincing.

All Other: Includes results from businesses formed from Imaests in Qualified Businesses made through Capagrams which cannot be
aggregated with other operating segments.

Corporate Activities: Corporate implements business strategy, directketiag, provides technology oversight and guidacoeydinates and
integrates activities of the segments, contractis alliance partners, acquires customer oppores)iand owns our proprietary NewTracker™
referral system. This segment includes revenuesapdnses not allocated to other segments, includtagest income, Capco management fee
income and corporate operations expenses.

Capcos:Twelve certified capital companies which invessinall- and medium-sized businesses. They geneoateash income from tax
credits and non-cash interest expense.

The consolidated financial statements of NewtekifBss Services, Inc., its Subsidiaries and conatgitientities (the “Company” or

“Newtek”) have been prepared by the Company in accordanbeaadounting principles generally accepted in thédd States of America a
include all wholly- and majority-owned subsidiasiesd several portfolio companies in which the @apmwvn non-controlling interest, or those
variable interest entities of which Newtek is calesed to be the primary beneficiary. All inter-caanp balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. Non-controlling intste (previously shown as minority interests) aporeed below net income (loss) under the
heading “Net loss attributable to non-controllimgerests” in the consolidated statements of opsrataind shown as a component of equity in
the consolidated balance sheets. See New AccouBtarglards for further discussion.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests in results of operationsofsolidated variable interest entities and majarivned subsidiaries represents the non-
controlling members’ share of the earnings or tifghe consolidated variable interest entities arajority-owned subsidiaries. The non-
controlling interest in the consolidated balanceeshreflects the original investment by these nomtolling members, along with their
proportional share of earnings or losses.

All financial information included in the tables fine following footnotes is stated in thousandsegt per share data.

NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial stateméntonformity with accounting principles geneyaltcepted in the United States of Ame
requires management to make estimates and assasihiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the constddifinancial statements, and the reported amafrresvenue and expense during the reporting
period. The level of uncertainty in estimates assLaptions increases with the
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length of time until the underlying transactions aomplete. The most significant estimates are wgipect to valuation of investments in
qualified businesses, asset impairment valuatibmyance for loan losses, valuation of servicingeds, charge-back reserves, tax valuation
allowances and the fair value measurements usealie certain financial assets and financial liib#. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Revenue Recognitio
The Company operates in a number of different seggn&evenues are recognized as services are eehdeffollows:

Electronic payment processing revenueElectronic payment processing income is derivethftbe electronic processing of credit and debit
card transactions that are authorized and capthredgh third-party networks. Typically, merchaats charged for these processing services
on a percentage of the dollar amount of each tcdioseplus a flat fee per transaction. Certain rhant customers are charged miscellaneous
fees, including fees for handling charge-backsturns, monthly minimum fees, statement fees aes fier other miscellaneous services.
Revenues derived from the electronic processingadterCard® and Visa sourced credit and debit cardsactions are reported gross of
amounts paid to sponsor banks.

The Company also derives revenues from actingdependent sales offices (“1ISO”) for third-party pessors (“residual revenue”) and from
the sale of credit and debit card devices. Residgnednue is recognized monthly and revenues defread sales of equipment are recognize
the time of shipment to the merchant.

Web hosting revenue:Managed technology solutions revenue is primardgivéed from monthly recurring service fees for tise of its web
hosting, web design and software support servicastomer setip fees are billed upon service initiation andraeognized as revenue over
estimated customer relationship period of 2.5 ydgayment for web hosting and related serviceduditg cloud plans, is generally received
one month to one year in advance. Deferred revemrapessent customer payments for web hosting dateteservices in advance of the
reporting period date. Revenue for cloud relatedises is based on actual consumption used bywatastomer.

Income from tax credits: Following an application process, a state will fyoi company that it has been certified as a Caple.state then
allocates an aggregate dollar amount of tax credlitse Capco. However, such amount is neithergeieed as income nor otherwise recorded
in the financial statements since it has yet tedmmed by the Capco. The Capco is legally entittezhrn tax credits upon satisfying defined
investment percentage thresholds within specifiee requirements and corresponding non-recaptueeptages. At December 31, 2011, the
Company had Capcos in five states and the DisifiCtolumbia. Each statute requires that the Capeest a threshold percentage of Certified
Capital in Qualified Businesses within the timenfies specified. As the Capco meets these requirsirieatoids grounds under the statute for
its disqualification for continued participationtime Capco program. Such a disqualification, occatgfication” as a Capco results in a
recapture of all or a portion of the allocated ¢eedits; the proportion of the recapture is redumegt time as the Capco remains in general
compliance with the program rules and meets thgrpssively increasing investment benchmarks.

As the Capco continues to make its investmentsualifled Businesses and, accordingly, places areasing proportion of the tax credits
beyond recapture, it earns an amount equal todheecapturable tax credits and records such amamifihcome from tax credits”, with a
corresponding asset called “credits in lieu of €ashthe accompanying consolidated balance sha&éis.amount earned and recorded as
income is determined by multiplying the total amboftax credits allocated to the Capco by the getage of tax credits immune from
recapture (the earned income percentage) undstatestatute. To the extent that the investmeptirements are met ahead of schedule, and
the percentage of non-recapturable tax creditsdslarated, the present value of the tax creditezhis recognized currently and the asset,
credits in lieu of cash, is accreted up to the amofitax credits available to the Certified Invagst If the tax credits are earned before the state
is required to make delivery (i.e., investment iiezgments are met ahead of schedule, but creditelgrbe used by the Certified Investor in a
future year), then the present value of the tagitsearned are recorded upon completion of theireaents. The receivable (called “credits in
lieu of cash”) is accreted to the annual delivegashount which can then be delivered to the insigraompany investors in lieu of cash
interest. Delivery of the tax credits to the Céetif Investors results in a decrease of the reckivaaid the notes payable in credits in lieu of
cash.

The allocation and utilization of Capco tax credtsontrolled by the state law. In general, thecaapplies for tax credits from the state ar
allocated a specific dollar amount of credits whach available to be earned. The Capco providest#te with a list of the Certified Investors,
who have contractually agreed to accept the taditsrén lieu of cash interest payments on theiesof he tax credits are claimed by the
Certified Investors on their state premium tax metas provided under each state Capco and tax3tate regulations specify the amount of tax
credits a Certified Investor can claim and thequin which they can claim them. Each state pecaltyi reviews the Capco’s operations to
verify the amount of tax credits earned. In additithe state maintains a list of Certified Investand therefore has the ability to determine
whether the Certified Investor is allowed to clahis deduction.
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Sales and Servicing of SBA LoandNSBF originates loans to customers under the SBnam that generally provides for SBA guarantees of
50% to 85% of each loan, with 90% under a prevgmgernment stimulus program, subject to a guardnpeetion of each loan. This
guaranteed portion is generally sold to a thirdypeia an SBA regulated secondary market transadtioa price equal to the guaranteed loan
amount plus a premium that includes both an upfcash payment and the fair value of future netiseny income, and NSBF retains the
unguaranteed principal portion in its own portfoRgior to October 1, 2010, NSBF recognized thenere item “Premium on loan sales” net of
capitalized loan expenses and the discount oretianed unguaranteed portion; subsequent to thatiadoof fair value of SBA 7(a) loans on
October 1, 2010, NSBF recognizes premium on lodsses equal to the cash premium plus the fairevafuiihe servicing income. Revenue is
recognized on the trade date of the guaranteetppexcept as described below.

Prior to February 7, 2011, SBA Form 1086 requiregart of the transferor’s representations andamsies that the transferor repay any
premium received from the transferee if either$iBA 7(a) loan borrower prepays the loan within 89glof the transfer settlement date or 1
to make one of its first three loan payments aftersettlement date in a timely fashion and thecgeds to default within 275 days of the
settlement date. Based on management’s best estamdtconsidering historical prepayment performanrfi¢tke loan portfolio, the Company
took the position that the premium was fully recagd at trade date, and a provision against theaijpira was not required at the time of the
sale. However, effective January 1, 2010, AccognBtandards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 860, “Traass and Servicing,” precludes sale
treatment of the transferred guaranteed portiomsglthis warranty period; rather NSBF was requit@dccount for this as a financing
arrangement with the transferee. Until the warrgnsiod expires, such transferred loans were diadsis “SBA Loans Transferred, subject to
premium recourse” with a matching liability “Lialtyf on SBA Loans Transferred, subject to premiucorgse.” At the expiration of the
warranty period, the sale of the guaranteed pastadithese loans as well as the correspondingigagtognized, and the asset and liability
eliminated. After February 7, 2011, the new SBARrd086 form allows the Company to recognize premilmeome concurrent with the date
of transfer, as was done prior to January 1, 28% result, the balances at December 31, 201$BA"“loans transferred, subject to premium
recourse” and “Liability on SBA loans transferredpject to premium recourse” decreased to zero.

Upon recognition of each loan sale, the Comparginstservicing responsibilities and receives sargiéees of a minimum of 1% of the
guaranteed loan portion sold. The Company is redquin estimate its adequate servicing compensatitite calculation of its servicing asset.
The purchasers of the loans have no recourse tGdhgany for failure of customers to pay amountgremtually due. The Company
separately recognizes at fair value any servicgsgs or servicing liabilities first, and then alites the previous carrying amount between the
assets sold and the interests that continue teloeby it (the unguaranteed portion of the loargdshon their relative fair values at the date of
transfer. The difference between the proceedsvedeind the allocated carrying value of the finahassets sold is recognized as a gain or

of loans.

Subsequent measurements of each class of sereisgmgs and liabilities may use either the amoitimahethod or the fair value measurement
method. NSBF has chosen to apply the amortizatiethad to its servicing asset, amortizing the aissptoportion to, and over the period of,
the estimated future net servicing income on traedging sold guaranteed portion of the loans askssing the servicing asset for impairn
based on fair value at each reporting date. Iretleat future prepayments are significant or impairta are incurred and future expected cash
flows are inadequate to cover the unamortized siwyiassets, additional amortization or impairnwrerges would be recognized. In
evaluating and measuring impairment of servicirgetss NSBF stratifies its servicing assets basegeanof loan and loan term which are the
key risk characteristics of the underlying loan Iso®he Company uses an independent valuationajgdb estimate the fair value of the
servicing asset by calculating the present valuestimated future net servicing cash flows, usisgpanptions of prepayments, defaults,
servicing costs and discount rates that NSBF betienarket participants would use for similar assENSBF determines that the impairment
for a stratum is temporary, a valuation allowarsceecognized through a charge to current earniogth& amount the amortized balance
exceeds the current fair value. If the fair valfi¢he stratum were to later increase, the valuatitowance may be reduced as a recovery.
However, if NSBF determines that impairment fotratsim of loans is other than temporary, the valiuhe servicing asset and any related
valuation allowance is written-down.

Interest and SBA Loan Feeslinterest income on loans is recognized as earnmghd are placed on non-accrual status if they\we30 days
past due with respect to principal or interest amdhe opinion of management, interest or prinkcgraindividual loans is not collectible, or at
such earlier time as management determines thabllextability of such principal or interest islikely.
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Such loans are designated as impaired non-accaas | All other loans are defined as performinggo&Vhen a loan is designated as non-
accrual, the accrual of interest is discontinued, @any accrued but uncollected interest incomevsnsed and charged against current
operations. While a loan is classified as non-aadcaund the future collectability of the recordedrdalance is doubtful, collections of interest
and principal are generally applied as a redudtgorincipal outstanding.

The Company passes certain expenditures it inoutseetborrower, such as forced placed insuransefficient funds fees, or fees it assesses,
such as late fees, with respect to managing thre [Baese expenditures are recorded when incurred.t®the uncertainty with respect to
collection of these passed through expendituressessed fees, any funds received to reimbursedtimpany are recorded on a cash basis as
other income.

Insurance commissionsRevenues are comprised of commissions earned amyres paid for insurance policies and are recogh&dhe
time the commission is earned. At that date, thiriegs process has been completed and the Compangstimate the impact of policy
cancellations for refunds and establish reservies.réserve for policy cancellations is based otohical cancellation experience adjusted by
known circumstances.

Other income: Other income represents revenues generated by BB®ell as revenues derived from operating unésdhnnot be aggrega
with other business segments, and one-time reasserigains on qualified investments. Revenuecisroed when there is pervasive evidence
of an agreement, the related fees are fixed, thiécseand/or product has been delivered, and tHeatimn of the related receivable is assured.
Other income particular to NBC includes the follogricomponents:

. Receivable fee:Receivable fees are derived from the funding (paseh of receivables from finance clients. NBC redngs the revenu
on the date the receivables are purchased at antage of face value as agreed to by the clierd.ddmpany also has arrangements with
certain of its clients whereby it purchases thertls receivables and charges interest at a spdaifite based on the amount of funds
advanced against such receivables. The funds md\dacde collateralized by the receivables and ttezaést income is recognized as
earned

. Late feesLate fees are derived from receivables NBC hashased that have gone over a certain period (usoedly 30 days) without
payment. The client or the client’s customer isrgbd a late fee according to the agreement witltlibat and NBC records the fees as
income in the month in which such receivable becpast due

. Billing fees:Billing fees are derived from billir-only (nor-finance) clients. These fees are recorded wheredawhich occurs when t
service is rendere

. Other feesThese fees include annual fees, due diligence feesnjnation fees, under minimum fees, and othes facluding finance
charges, supplies sold to clients, NSF fees, wies find administration fees. These fees are chapgedfunding, takeovers or liquidati
of finance clients. NBC also receives commissioreneie from various source

The detail of total operating revenues includethanconsolidated statements of operations is &safsifor the years ended:

(In thousands): 2011 2010 2009

Electronic payment processing $ 82,47¢ $ 80,92( $ 69,65¢
Web hosting 19,18: 19,16¢ 18,84¢
Interest incom 2,62¢ 1,90¢ 1,73t
Income from tax credit 1,39( 2,38( 7,831
Premium on loan sal¢ 12,46¢ 2,42¢ 1,65z
Servicing fee 3,101 2,56¢ 1,62t
Insurance commissior 1,071 88¢€ 811
Other income 3,022 2,47( 3,551
Totals $125,33¢ $112,71¢ $105,71:

Electronic Payment Processing Cos

Electronic payment processing costs consist pratlgipf costs directly related to the processingnafrchant sales volume, including
interchange fees, VISA and MasterCard dues andss®nts, bank processing fees and costs paiddepthity processing networks. Such
costs are recognized at the time the merchantactiogs are processed or when the services arerped. Two
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of the most significant components of electroniocgassing expenses include interchange and assessmses) which are set by the credit card
associations. Interchange costs are passed or @mthy issuing the credit card used in the tratiga and assessment costs are retained by the
credit card associations. Interchange and asses$easnare billed primarily as a percent of dollalume processed and, to a lesser extent, as
per transaction fee. Electronic payment processisgs also include residual expenses, which acktpahird-party sales referral sources under
various formulae as contracted. These are gendiratlyd to revenues derived from merchants sucu#gstferred and that begin using the
Company for merchant processing services. Suctiualséxpenses are recognized in the Company’s tidatad statements of operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmenith maturities of three months or less when pasdd to be cash equivalents. Invested
cash is held almost exclusively at financial ingi@ns with ratings from S&P of A- or better. Ther@pany invests cash not held in interest free
checking accounts or bank money market accountslyniai U.S. Treasury only money market instrumenmtfunds and other investmegtade
securities. As of December 31, 2011, cash depwséscess of FDIC deposit insurance and SIPC imorsotaled approximately $1,713,000
and funds held in U.S. Treasury only money marlggtlé or equivalents in excess of SIPC insuranedebapproximately $3,448,000.

Restricted Casl

Restricted cash includes cash collateral relating letter of credit; monies due on SBA loan-relatemittances and insurance premiums
received by the Company and due to third partiashdeld by the Capcos restricted for use in magagnd operating the Capco, making
qualified investments and for the payment of incdenees; cash held in a pre-funding account whidhbei used to purchase future
unguaranteed portions of SBA 7(a) loans, cashvesand prepaid interest associated with the seration, cash held for our payroll clients
waiting to be remitted to their employees or taxdughority and a cash account maintained as avesgainst electronic payment processing
chargeback losses. Following is a summary of istticash by segment:

(In thousands): 2011 2010

Electronic payment processing $ 284 $ —

Small business financ 9,107 5,221
All other 11C 86
Corporate activitie 1,064 312
Capcos 3,501 5,12¢
Totals $14,06¢ $10,741

Broker Receivable
Broker receivable represents amounts due from parties for loans held for sale which have beaded at year end but have not yet settled.

Purchased Receivable

Purchased receivables are recorded at the poiiméwhen cash is released to the seller. A mgjofithe receivables purchased have recourse
and are charged back to the seller if aged ove®®@r 120 days, depending on contractual agreemBaotchased receivables are included in
accounts receivable on the accompanying consotidztance sheets.

Allowance for Doubtful Account— Purchased Receivables

The allowance for doubtful accounts, related tachased receivables, is established by managenrength provisions for bad debts charged
against income. Amounts deemed to be uncollectitdecharged against the allowance for doubtful @etsoand subsequent recoveries, if any,
are credited to income.

The amount of the allowance for doubtful accoustsherently subjective, as it requires making maltestimates which may vary from actual
results. Managemet'ongoing estimates of the allowance for doubtfagbants are particularly affected by the perforneaoicthe client in the
ability to provide the Company with future receilebcoupled with the collections of their curresteivables.
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The allowance consists of specific and general @rapts. The specific component relates to clieaggregate net balance that is classified as
doubtful. The general component covers non-claskifialances and is based on historical loss exmerie

A clients’ aggregate net balance is considered iragavhen, based on current information and evénisprobable that the Company will be
unable to collect the receivable payments or the@my has greatly reduced the amount of receivablbe purchased.

The Company'’s charge-off policy is based on a tlBnclient review for which the estimated uncotlbte portion is charged off against the
corresponding client’s net balance and the allowdoc doubtful accounts.

Investments in Qualified Businesst

The various interests that the Company’s Capcosigem its qualified investments are accounteduioder three methods: consolidation,
equity method and cost method. The applicable atdooymethod is generally determined based on thragany’s voting interest or the
economics of the transaction if the investee ismeined to be a variable interest entity.

Consolidation Methodnvestments in which the Company directly or indile owns more than 50% of the outstanding votiegusities, those
the Company has effective control over, or thosam to be a variable interest entity in whichGeenpany is the primary beneficiary are
generally accounted for under the consolidatiorhagbf accounting. Under this method, an investradmancial position and results of
operations are reflected within the Company’s cbdated financial statements. All significant irlmpany accounts and transactions are
eliminated, including returns of principal, divid#s) interest received and investment redemptiolns.r&sults of operations and cash flows of a
consolidated operating entity are included throtighlatest interim period in which the Company odvagyreater than 50% direct or indirect
voting interest, exercised control over the erftitythe entire interim period or was otherwise daated as the primary beneficiary. Upon
dilution of control below 50%, or upon occurrendedriggering event requiring reconsiderationathe primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity, the accounting method is adjustettie equity or cost method of accounting, as emate, for subsequent periods.

Equity MethodInvestees that are not consolidated, but over wiielCompany exercises significant influence, amanted for under the
equity method of accounting. Whether or not the Gany exercises significant influence with respecir investee depends on an evaluation
of several factors including, among others, reprg®n on the investee’s Board of Directors andhership level, which is generally a 20% to
50% interest in the voting securities of the ineesincluding voting rights associated with the @any’s holdings in common, preferred and
other convertible instruments in the investee. Wnkle equity method of accounting, an investeet®ants are not reflected within the
Company’s consolidated financial statements; howalie Company’s share of the earnings or losséiseoinvestee is reflected in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Cost Methodlnvestees not accounted for under the consolidatidhe equity method of accounting are accourdedifider the cost method of
accounting. Under this method, the Company’s shhtiee net earnings or losses of such companiestigicluded in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. However, coghottimpairment charges are recognized, as negessdne Company’s consolidated
financial statements. If circumstances suggestttigavalue of the investee has subsequently reedysuch recovery is not recorded until
ultimately liquidated or realized.

The Company’s debt and equity investments havetantislly been made with funds available to Newttglough the Capco programs. These
programs generally require that each Capco meéhiannm investment benchmark within five years dfia funding. In addition, any funds
received by a Capco as a result of a debt repayareaquity return may, under the terms of the Cgpograms, be reinvested and counted
towards the Capco’s minimum investment benchmarks.

SBA Loans Held for Investmer

For loans that completed funding before Octob&010, Loans receivable held for investment arentegaat their outstanding unpaid principal
balances adjusted for charge-offs, net deferrenl ¢dwigination costs and the allowance for loandgs$or loans that completed funding on or
after October 1, 2010, management elected to &irevLoan receivables held for investment withia f&ir value hierarchy that prioritizes
observable and unobservable inputs utilizing L&sehobservable inputs which reflect the Companyia expectations about the assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing theed including assumptions about risk (see NotB&jause there currently is no active
secondary market for the unguaranteed portionsCtmepany uses a combination of trading informatiom the guaranteed sales, as was
previously used to determine the discount on tiguaranteed portions, and the historical performafid¢SBF’s loans applied to their
outstanding unpaid principal balances. If a loamsoeed at fair value is subsequently impaired, therfair value of the loan is measured bz
on the present value of expected future cash fitimsounted at the loan’s effective interest ratehe fair value of the collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent. Because the loans bear gttatre variable rate, NSBF does not factor inré@gerate risk.
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Allowance for SBA Loan Losse

For loans funded before October 1, 2010, the allmedor loan losses for performing loans is essaleld by management through provisions
for loan losses charged against income. The anafuht allowance for loan losses is inherently eatiye, as it requires making material
estimates which may vary from actual results. Managnt’s ongoing estimates of the allowance for loases are particularly affected by the
changing composition of the loan portfolio over thst few years as well as other portfolio chandsties, such as industry concentrations and
loan collateral. The adequacy of the allowancddan losses is reviewed by management on a moh#dis at a minimum, and as adjustments
become necessary, are reflected in operationsglthi@periods invhich they become known. Considerations in thidwatéon include past ar
anticipated loss experience, risks inherent inctiveent portfolio and evaluation of real estatdatetal as well as current economic conditions.
In the opinion of management, the allowance, wia&ern as a whole, is adequate to absorb estimaaaddsses inherent in the Company’s
entire loan portfolio. The allowance consists ada@fic and general components. The specific comporegates to loans that are classified as
either loss, doubtful, substandard or special manfor such loans that are also classified asimeghaan allowance is established when the
discounted cash flows (or collateral value or obalele market price) of the impaired loan is lowmart the carrying value of that loan. The
general component covers non-classified loans abdsed on historical loss experience adjustedualitative factors.

Loans funded on or after October 1, 2010 are rextbed fair value. Changes in the value of suchdpaether performing or impaired, are
reported as a net change in the fair value of S&%$ held for investment in the consolidated stategraf operations.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on ctuiméormation and events, it is probable that tleenPany will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest whem altcording to the contractual terms of the loaee@gent. Other factors considered by
management in determining impairment include paytretaius and collateral value. Loans that expedansignificant payment delays and
payment shortfalls generally are not classifiethgsired. Management determines the significanqeagfment delays and payment shortfalls
on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideratlaf the circumstances surrounding the loan &eddorrower, including the length of the
delay, the reasons for the delay, the borroweityr prayment record, and the amount of the shoiitfalélation to the principal and interest
owed.

Impairment of a loan is measured based on the preatue of expected future cash flows discountatieloan’s effective interest rate, or the
fair value of the collateral if the loan is collebdependent. Impaired loans for which the cagyamount is based on fair value of the
underlying collateral are included in assets apdnted at estimated fair value on a mecurring basis, both at initial recognition of iaiment
and on an on-going basis until recovery or chaifjefdhe loan amount. The determination of impamhinvolves management’s judgment in
the use of market data and third party estimatgarding collateral values. For loans funded bectober 1, 2010, the impairment of a loan
resulted in management establishing an allowanckeém losses through provisions for loan losses@dd against income; for subsequent
loans at fair value, impairment results in a netnge in the fair value of SBA loans held for investt. Amounts deemed to be uncollectible
are charged against the allowance for loan lossesdoices the fair value and subsequent recovéfri@sy, are credited to the allowance or
increases the fair value.

The Company’s charge-off policy is based on a lbg#lean review for which the estimated uncollecipbrtion of nonperforming loans is
charged off against the corresponding loan recévaid the allowance for possible loan losses aimagthe reduction in fair value.

SBA Loans Held For Sale

Prior to October 1, 2010, loans originated andridésl for sale in the secondary market, that igjtteranteed portions of SBA 7(a) loans, were
carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair @ahs determined by aggregate outstanding commignfiemm investors. For guaranteed port|
funded on or after October 1, 2010, managementesldo fair value SBA loans held for sale withie flair value hierarchy that prioritizes
observable and unobservable inputs utilizing L&vassets. These inputs include debt securitiesquitited prices that are traded less
frequently than exchange-traded instruments or kaltees determined using a pricing model with isghat are observable in the market. The
secondary market for the guaranteed portions ieely robust with broker dealers acting as pringaglers. NSBF sells regularly into the
market and can quickly price its loans for saldsee Tompany values the guaranteed portion basedadcetrprices equal to the guaranteed |
amount plus a premium that includes both an upftash payment (utilizing quoted prices) and the&alf a stream of payments representing
servicing income received in excess of NSBF’'s si@mgi cost (valued using a pricing model with inptitat are observable in the market).
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Loans receivable held for sale are sold with theisieg rights retained by the Company. For loamsdied prior to October 1, 2010, gains on
sales of loans are recognized based on the differbatween the selling price and the carrying vafuee related loans sold. Unamortized net
deferred loan origination costs are recognized @smgponent of gain on sale of loans. For loansddmh or after October 1, 2010, premiun
loan sales is equal to the cash premium plus ihedfue of the servicing income while extinguishitihe fair value gain previously recorded.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets, which are comprised of furniturefatidres and computer office equipment, land, baigdand improvements, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and amortizationr&gtion of fixed assets is provided on a stralgig basis using estimated useful lives of
the related assets. Amortization of leasehold imgmeents is provided on a straight-line basis uttiegesser of the useful life of the asset or
lease term. Useful lives of assets are: compufénare, website development, and servers and stdtagee years), computer and office
equipment and furniture and fixtures (generallgéhto five years).

Software and Website Development Cc

The Company capitalizes its website developmertscosline application system, referral system atingr proprietary systems and computer
software. Costs incurred during the preliminaryj@costage are expensed as incurred, while apjalitatage projects are capitalized. The le
costs are typically employee and/or consultingisessdirectly associated with the development efithernal use computer software. Software
and website costs are included in fixed assetsdratcompanying consolidated balance sheets. Azaticin commences once the software is
ready for its intended use and is amortized udiegstraight-line method over the estimated usédgyltlypically three years.

Deferred Financing Cost:

Deferred financing costs are being amortized utiiestraight-line method over the terms of theteelandebtedness, which approximates the
effective interest method and is included in indéexpense in the accompanying consolidated statsméoperations.

Impairment of Lonc-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including fixed assets and igitale assets, are reviewed for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recabier. In reviewing for impairment, the carrying walof such assets is compared to the
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expectad the use of the assets and their eventual digpudf such cash flows are not sufficient
to support the asset’s recorded value, an impaireigarge is recognized to reduce the carrying vafube long-lived asset to its estimated fair
value. The determination of future cash flows a#f agthe estimated fair value of long-lived as$et®lves significant estimates on the part of
management. In order to estimate the fair valug lohg-lived asset, the Company may engage aphiry to assist with the valuation. If there
is a material change in economic conditions orotireumstances influencing the estimate of futash flows or fair value, the Company
could be required to recognize impairment chargeke future.

Securitization Activities

NSBF engaged in a securitization of the unguaranpeetions of its SBA 7(a) loans. Because the feansf these assets did not meet
criteria of a sale for accounting purposes, it aated as a secured borrowing. NSBF continuesdognize the assets of the secured borrc
in Loans held for investment and the associateahfiing in Notes payable on the consolidated balaheets.

SBA loans transferred, subject to premium recoul

Effective January 1, 2010, a new accounting stahdadified into ASC Topic 860, “Transfers and Seiwy,” required for the guaranteed
portions transferred that the Company, due to thenjum warranty formerly incorporated in SBA For@86 (see the discussion above),
establish a new asset entitled “SBA loans transfersubject to premium recourse” related to theaptaed portion of SBA 7(a) loans
contractually sold but subject to premium recownse a matching liability until the end of the wartyaperiod. Prior to October 1, 2010, loans
transferred in the secondary market, that is tleeapteed portions of SBA 7(a) loans, were carrtembst. For guaranteed portions funded on or
after October 1, 2010, management elected to &#irevSBA loans transferred, subject to premiumuesgwithin the fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes observable and unobservable inputizirtd Level 2 assets. These inputs include dehiritézs with quoted prices that are traded
frequently than exchange-traded instruments or haltees determined using a pricing model with isghtt are observable in the market. The
secondary market for the guaranteed portions igewly robust with broker dealers acting as printeglers. NSBF sells regularly into the
market and can quickly
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price its loans for sales. The Company values tleanteed portion based on market prices equhktguaranteed loan amount plus a pren
that includes both an upfront cash payment (utiizjuoted prices) and the value of a stream of paysrepresenting servicing income
received in excess of NSBF'’s servicing cost (valugidg a pricing model with inputs that are obsbklwan the market).

Contemporaneous with the adoption of this new actiog standard the Company elected the fair vapt®o for valuing this new liability,
which is captioned in the consolidated financiatetnents as “Liability on SBA loans transferredyjsat to premium recourse.” At the time,
management elected to adopt the fair value optiectien because it more accurately reflected tlmmemics of the transaction. For liabilities
created prior to October 1, 2010 and prior to tthepsion of fair value for the loans themselveshiwitthe fair value hierarchy that prioritizes
observable and unobservable inputs used to metsukalue, the Company utilizes Level 3 unobselgaiputs which reflect the Company’s
own assumptions about the assumptions that maakgtipants would use in pricing the liability (inding assumptions about risk). The
Company values the liability based on the probighdf payment given the Company’s history of retngnpremium: the transferee will receive
100% of the guaranteed portion from either thedoger or the SBA and approximately 3% of the premamount from the Company. The
aforementioned return of premiums is triggered idyee the borrower’s prepayment of the loan witbthdays of the transfer settlement date or
the borrower’s default within 275 days of the settent date on loans where any of the borrowess fiiree payments were delinquent.

For liabilities created on or after October 1, 20th@ fair valuing of the loans themselves provitfeseconomic gain to be recognized from the
transfer. Continuing to value the liability basedtbe likelihood of repaying the premium warrantyuld effectively double count the gain
from creating the loan. As such, the Company charige valuation of the liability for loans issuedrhatch the amount received from the
transfer.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets deemed to haviedefinite life are not amortized and are scidje impairment tests, at least annually.
Other intangible assets with finite lives are anzed over their useful lives ranging from 18 tor66nths, and evaluated as discussed in Note
10.

The Company considers the following to be some gasnof indicators that may trigger an impairmentiew outside its annual impairment
review: (i) significant under-performance or logkey contracts acquired in an acquisition relatvexpected historical or projected future
operating results; (ii) significant changes in thanner or use of the acquired assets or in the Goy'gpoverall strategy with respect to the
manner or use of the acquired assets or chandbe fDompany’s overall business strategy; (iii) gigant negative industry or economic
trends; (iv) increased competitive pressures; @ipaificant decline in the Company’s stock prioe & sustained period of time; and

(vi) regulatory changes. In assessing the recoiuyatif the Company’s goodwill and intangiblesgt&ompany must make assumptions
regarding estimated future cash flows and othdofado determine the fair value of the respectisgets. These include estimation of future
cash flows, which is dependent on internal forex;adtimation of the long-term rate of growth toe Company, the useful life over which cash
flows will occur, and determination of the Compagbst of capital. Changes in these estimates sswdrgptions could materially affect the
determination of fair value and conclusions on geiddmpairment.

Reserve for Losses on Merchant Accoul

Disputes between a cardholder and a merchant peglydarise as a result of, among other thingsjltalder dissatisfaction with merchandise
quality or merchant services. Such disputes mayaatsolved in the merchant’s favor. In thesegabe transaction is “charged back” to the
merchant, which means the purchase price is retutalthe customer through the merchamttquiring bank and charged to the merchante
merchant has inadequate funds, the Company ory linded circumstances, the Company and the aogulvank, must bear the credit risk for
the full amount of the transaction. The Companyleias its risk for such transactions and estimisgggtential loss for charge-backs based
primarily on historical experience and other retevactors.

The Company records reserves for charge-backsartthgent liabilities when such amounts are deetodz probable and estimable. The
required reserves may change in the future duewodevelopments, including, but not limited to, mbes in litigation or increased charigaek
exposure as the result of merchant insolvencyijdation, or other reasons. The required reseneseaiewed periodically to determine if
adjustments are required.
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Stock—Based Compensation

All share-based payments to employees are recayymzbe financial statements based on their falo@s using an option-pricing model at the
date of grant. The Company recognizes compensatiastraight-line basis over the requisite serpi@od for the entire award. The
Company has elected to adopt the alternative tiansnethod for calculating the tax effects of shhased compensation. The alternative
transition method includes a simplified method stablish the beginning balance of the additioné{racapital pool related to the tax effects
of employee share-based compensation, which isad@ito absorb tax deficiencies.

Fair Value

The Company adopted the methods of fair value hoevits financial assets and liabilities. The Compaarries its credits in lieu of cash,
prepaid insurance and notes payable in crediigindf cash at fair value. The Company also caingsired loans and other real estate owned
at fair value. Fair value is based on the pricé wwuld be received to sell an asset or paid tosfier a liability in an orderly transaction betw
market participants at the measurement date. lerdodincrease consistency and comparability infalue measurements, the Company
utilized a fair value hierarchy that prioritizesselovable and unobservable inputs used to measusafae into three broad levels, which are
described below:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities. Level 1 assets and liabilitieslude debt and equity securities and
derivative contracts that are traded in an actikaehange market, as well as certain U.S. TreastingrdJ.S. Government and
agency mortgac-backed debt securities that are highly liquid aredeetively traded in ov-the-counter markets

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssouated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggpted prices in markets that are
not active; or other inputs that are observableaorbe corroborated by observable market dataufistantially the full term of the
assets or liabilities. Level 2 assets and liakiitinclude debt securities with quoted prices dénatraded less frequently than
exchange-traded instruments and derivative comstrabbse value is determined using a pricing modidl iwputs that are
observable in the market or can be derived pritigifi]om or corroborated by observable market datas category generally
includes certain U.S. Government and agency moetdpagked debt securities, corporate debt secyriteas/ative contracts and
residential mortgage loans h-for-sale.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by littla@market activity and that are significant to thie value of the assets or
liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities inclufilgancial instruments whose value is determinddgupricing models, discounted
cash flow methodologies, or similar techniquesyal as instruments for which the determinatioriadf value requires significal
management judgment or estimation. This categongigdly includes certain private equity investmenrgsained residual interes
in securitizations, residential mortgage servidqights, and highly structured or lc-term derivative contract

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are computegdbaipon the differences between the financiadistant and income tax basis of assets and
liabilities using the enacted tax rates in effectthe year in which those temporary differenceseapected to be realized or settled. If available
evidence suggests that it is more likely than hat some portion or all of the deferred tax assétsiot be realized, a valuation allowance is
required to reduce the deferred tax assets torttoeiat that is more likely than not to be realized.

The Company’s U.S. Federal and state income taxngfprior to fiscal year 2007 are closed, and mameent continually evaluates expiring
statutes of limitations, audits, proposed settlemashanges in tax law and new authoritative rging

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxe

The ultimate deductibility of positions taken opexted to be taken on tax returns is often ungertaiorder to recognize the benefits
associated with a tax position taken (i.e., geheeatleduction on a corporation’s tax return), énéity must conclude that the ultimate
allowability of the deduction is more likely thapntnlIf the ultimate allowability of the tax positiexceeds 50% (i.e., it is more likely than not),
the benefit associated with the position is recogghiat the largest dollar amount that has more @06 likelihood of being realized upon
ultimate settlement. Differences between tax pms#titaken in a tax return and recognized will galheresult in (1) an increase in income
taxes currently payable or a reduction in an inctemaefund receivable or (2) an increase in ardefetax liability or a decrease in a deferred
tax asset, or both (1) and (2).
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As required by the Financial Instruments Topichef FASB ASC, the estimated fair values of finaniatruments must be disclosed.
Excluding fixed assets, intangible assets, goodaitl prepaid expenses and other assets (excladingted below), substantially all of the
Company’s assets and liabilities are considereghfifal instruments as defined under this stand&ail.value estimates are subjective in nature
and are dependent on a number of significant assomspassociated with each instrument or grouproflar instruments, including estimates

of discount rates, risks associated with spedifiarfcial instruments, estimates of future cash $lawd relevant available market information.

The carrying values of the following balance shishs approximate their fair values primarily dodheir liquidity and short-term or
adjustable-yield nature:

e Cash and cash equivalel

» Restricted cas

» Broker receivabli

» Accounts receivabl

* Notes payabli

» Accrued interest receivable (included in prepaigesmses and other asse

» Accrued interest payable (included in accounts pleyand accrued expens:
» Accounts payable and accrued expel

The carrying value of investments in Qualified Biesises (included in prepaid expenses and othasg<Seedits in lieu of cash and Notes
payable in credits in lieu of cash as well as SB&nk held for investment, SBA loans held for s8A loans transferred, subject to premium
recourse and Liability on SBA loans transferredijsct to premium recourse (for loans funded afegt&mber 30, 2010) approximate fair vi
based on management’s estimates.

New Accounting Standard

On July 21, 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010“Rclosures about the Credit Quality of FinancReceivables and the Allowance for
Credit Losses”, which requires significant new ttisares about the allowance for credit losses hedtedit quality of financing receivables.
The requirements are intended to enhance transparegarding credit losses and the credit qualitpan and lease receivables. Under this
statement, allowance for credit losses and fauealre to be disclosed by portfolio segment, wdrigglit quality information, impaired
financing receivables and nonaccrual status abe foresented by class of financing receivable.|Bssce of the nature and extent, the finar
impact and segment information of troubled debtruesurings will also be required. The disclosuaes to be presented at the level of
disaggregation that management uses when assassingonitoring the portfolio’s risk and performangais standard is effective for interim
and annual reporting periods after December 150 20fie adoption did not have a material impacthen@ompany because the Company
already includes the necessary disclosures i €ial statements.

In January 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-D&férral of the Effective Date of Disclosures ab®drdubled Debt Restructurings in
Update No. 2010-20,” which defers the effectiveedaiated to the disclosures required in ASU NA.Q2R0, enabling creditors to provide such
disclosures after the FASB completes their projéatfying the guidance for determining what congéis a troubled debt restructuring. As the
provisions of this ASU only defer the effective elaf disclosure requirements related to troubldat destructurings, the adoption of this ASU
had no impact on the Company’s consolidated statesra# operations and balance sheets.

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-02, Cheditor’s Determination of Whether a Restructuiig Troubled Debt Restructuring.”
The provisions of ASU No. 2011-02 provide additibgaidance related to determining whether a credits granted a concession, include
factors and examples for creditors to considevaldieating whether a restructuring results in a ylélgpayment that is insignificant, prohibit
creditors from using the borrower’s effective ragst to evaluate whether a concession has beetedramthe borrower, and add factors for
creditors to use in determining whether a borrowexperiencing financial difficulties. A provisian ASU No. 2011-02 also ends the FASB'’s
deferral of the additional disclosures about tredhdlebt restructurings as required by ASU No. 220.0Fhis standard became effective for
interim and annual reporting periods beginning pafter June 15, 2011. The Company has adopted R&2011-02 and the adoption did not
have a material impact on its consolidated statésnafroperations and balance sheets.
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In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04nfendments to Achieve Common Fair Value MeasureraedtDisclosure Requirements
U.S. GAAP and IFRSs,” which amends the currentfalue measurement and disclosure guidance of AGficB20 “Fair Value
Measurement” to include increased transparencynarealuation inputs and investment categorizafidre guidance provided in ASU

No. 201:-04 is effective prospectively for interim and anihperiods beginning after December 15, 2011. Ttaadard is not expected to hay
material impact on the Company’s consolidated statés of operations and balance sheets.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 20114a88&ngibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350),” &tlow entities to use a qualitative
approach to test goodwill for impairment and peramitentity to first perform a qualitative assessnemletermine whether it is more likely tt
not that the fair value of a reporting unit is |#san its carrying value. If it is concluded thiaistis the case, it is necessary to perform the
currently prescribed two-step goodwill impairmesdtt Otherwise, the two-step goodwill impairmest is not required. This standard was
effective for interim and annual reporting peridiggyinning on or after December 15, 2011. This steths not expected to have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated statementpefations and balance sheets.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year immaterial amounts have beelassiied to conform to current year presentation.

NOTE 3 — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:
FAIR VALUE OPTION ELECTIONS

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adoptedvidire accounting concurrent with the electionhef fair value option. The accounting
standard relating to the fair value measuremeatdfiels the definition of fair value and descrilmesthods available to appropriately measure
fair value in accordance with GAAP. The accounsitendard applies whenever other accounting stasdadiiire or permit fair value
measurements. The accounting standard relatirtgetéatr value option for financial assets and fitiahliabilities allows entities to irrevocably
elect fair value as the initial and subsequent mnegsent attribute for certain financial assets famghcial liabilities that are not otherwise
required to be measured at fair value, with chamyéasir value recognized in earnings as they ocltwalso establishes presentation and
disclosure requirements designed to improve conlyilayabetween entities that elect different me&snent attributes for similar assets and
liabilities.

On January 1, 2008, the Company elected the fhaievaption for valuing its Capcos’ credits in lieficash, notes payable in credits in lieu of
cash and prepaid insurance.

On January 1, 2010, the Company elected the faiewaption for valuing its liability on SBA loansansferred, subject to premium recourse.

On October 1, 2010, the Company elected the féiravaption for valuing its SBA 7(a) loans fundedamafter that date which are included in
SBA loans held for investment, SBA loans held falesand SBA loans transferred, subject to premiecourse.

The Company elected the fair value option in otdeeflect in its financial statements the assuongtithat market participants use in evalug
these financial instruments.

FAIR VALUE OPTION ELECTION —CREDITS IN LIEU OF CASH, PREPAID INSURANCE AND NOTE S PAYABLE IN
CREDITS IN LIEU OF CASH

Under the cost basis of accounting, the discoussrased to calculate the present value of thetsriedieu of cash and notes payable in cre
in lieu of cash did not reflect the credit enhaneata that the Company’s Capcos obtained from Ghanit. (“Chartis”) (formerly American
International Group, Inc.), namely its AA+ ratingsaich time, for their debt issued to Certifieddstors. Instead the cost paid for the credit
enhancements was recorded as prepaid insuranaartized on a straight-line basis over the terthefcredit enhancements.
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With the adoption of the fair value measuremerfir@ncial assets and financial liabilities and éhection of the fair value option, credits in |

of cash and notes payable in credits in lieu oh@as valued based on the yields at which finaneg&tuments would change hands between a
willing buyer and a willing seller when the formiemot under any compulsion to buy and the latierat under any compulsion to sell, both
parties having reasonable knowledge of relevansfabe accounting standards require the fair valub®fissets or liabilities to be determil
based on the assumptions that market participagtsnupricing the financial instrument. In develapithose assumptions, the Company
identified characteristics that distinguish mangetticipants generally, and considered factorsiipeo (a) the asset type, (b) the principal (or
most advantageous) market for the asset group(cdmdarket participants with whom the reportingitgnivould transact in that market.

Based on the aforementioned characteristics amigw of the Chartis credit enhancements, the Compafieves that market participants
purchasing or selling its Capcos’ debt, and theeefis credits in lieu of cash and notes payablerédits in lieu of cash, view nonperformance
risk to be equal to the risk of Chartis nonperfonggrisk and as such both the fair value of crediteu of cash and notes payable in credits in
lieu of cash should be priced to yield a rate e¢ualn applicable Chartis U.S. Dollar denominatedtdnstrument. Because the value of notes
payable in credits in lieu of cash directly refietiie credit enhancement obtained from Chartisytizenortized cost relating to the credit
enhancement will cease to be separately carriedh asset on Company’s consolidated balance sheegtis corporated in notes payable in
credits in lieu of cash.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on &ecurring Basis as of December 31, 2011 are as &wlis (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Usir

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level :
Assets:
Credits in lieu of cas $16,94¢ $— $16,94¢ $—
Liabilities:
Notes payable in credits in lieu of ce $16,94¢ $— $16,94¢ $—

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on &ecurring Basis as of December 31, 2010 are as &wlls (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Usir

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level :
Assets:
Credits in lieu of cas $35,49: $— $35,49: $—
Liabilities:
Notes payable in credits in lieu of ce $35,49: $— $35,49¢ $—
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Credits in lieu of cash and Notes payable in creditin lieu of cash

The Company elected to account for both crediteinof cash and notes payable in credits in litcash at fair value in order to reflect in its
consolidated financial statements the assumptimatsnbarket participant’s use in evaluating thesarfcial instruments.

Fair value measurements:

The Company’s Capcos’ debt, enhanced by Chartisanse, effectively bears the nonperformance rigRhartis. Therefore the Company
calculates the fair value of both the Credits éulof cash and Notes payable in credits in liecash using the yields of various Chartis notes
with similar maturities to each of the Company’spective Capcos’ debt. The Company elected to disuge utilizing Chartis 7.70% Series A-
5 Junior Subordinated Debentures (the “Chartis Delves”) because those long maturity debenturearbegtrade with characteristics of a
preferred stock after Chartis received financirgrfthe United States Government. The Company cerssitie Chartis Note Basket a Level 2
input under fair value accounting, since it is atgd yield for a similar liability that is traded an active exchange market. The Company
selected these Chartis Note Baskets as the masisegative of the nonperformance risk associatddthe CAPCO notes because they are
Chartis issued notes, are actively traded and lsecanaturities match Credits in lieu of cash andelgiayable in credits in lieu of cash.

After calculating the fair value of both the Credit lieu of cash and Notes payable in creditsein 6f cash, the Company compares their
values. This calculation is done on a quarterlysh&3alculation differences primarily due to taedit receipt versus delivery timing may cause
the value of the Credits in lieu of cash to diffierm that of the Notes payable in credits in lidwcash. Because the Credits in lieu of cash asset
has the single purpose of paying the Notes payaldeedits in lieu of cash and has no other vatuté Company, Newtek determined that the
Credits in lieu of cash should equal the Notes pkeym credits in lieu of cash.

On December 31, 2010, the yield on the Chartis Batsket was 4.38%. As of December 31, 2011, the tthat Company revalued the asset
liability, the yields on the Chartis notes avera§esBB% reflecting changes in interest rates imtlaeketplace. This increase in yield decreased
both the fair value of the credits in lieu of castd the fair value of the notes payable in craditeu of cash. The Company decreased the
value of the credits in lieu of cash to equal thkug of the notes payable in credits in lieu ohdascause the credits in lieu of cash can only be
used to satisfy the liability and must equal theigaf the notes payable in credits in lieu of cashll times. The net change in fair value
reported in the Company'’s consolidated statementperations for the year ended December 31, 2Qdslanoss of $131,000.

On December 31, 2009, the yield on the Chartis Batsket was 6.92%. As of December 31, 2010, the tthat Company revalued the asset
liability, the yields on the Chartis notes average2B% reflecting changes in interest rates imtlaeketplace. This decrease in yield increased
both the fair value of the credits in lieu of casid the fair value of the notes payable in craditeeu of cash. The Company increased the v

of the credits in lieu of cash to equal the valtithe notes payable in credits in lieu of cash bheeahe credits in lieu of cash can only be used
to satisfy the liability and must equal the valdi¢he notes payable in credits in lieu of cashlldiraes. The net change in fair value reported in
the Company’s consolidated statements of operafmrthe year ended December 31, 2010 was a g&s&D00.

Changes in the future yield of the Chartis issuelot delected for valuation purposes will resulthianges to the fair values of the credits in lieu
of cash and notes payable in credits in lieu ohaalsen calculated for future periods; these chamgkéde reported through the Company’s
consolidated statements of operations.

FAIR VALUE OPTION ELECTION —LIABILITY ON SBA LOANS TRANSFERRED, SUBJECT TO PREM IUM RECOURSE

Effective January 1, 2010, a new accounting stahdadified into ASC Topic 860, “Transfers and Seiwy,” requires for the guaranteed
portions transferred that the Company, due to thenjum warranty formerly incorporated in SBA For@856 (see the discussion above),
establish a new asset related to the guarante¢édmpof SBA 7(a) loans contractually sold but sabj® premium recourse and a matching
liability until the end of the warranty period. Gemporaneous with the adoption of this new accogndtandard the Company elected the fair
value option for valuing this new liability, whigl captioned in the consolidated financial stateimas “Liability on SBA loans transferred,
subject to premium recourse.” At the time, manageretected to adopt the fair value option electiecause it more accurately reflected the
economics of the transaction. For liabilities ceglgprior to October 1, 2010 and prior to the adwptf fair value for the loans themselves,
within the fair value hierarchy that prioritizessgsvable and
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unobservable inputs used to measure fair valueCtmepany utilizes Level 3 unobservable inputs wheftect the Company’s own
assumptions about the assumptions that marketjpeaits would use in pricing the liability (includj assumptions about risk). The Company
values the liability based on the probability of/peent given the Company’s history of returning piem the transferee will receive 100% of
the guaranteed portion from either the borroweherSBA and approximately 3% of the premium amdrorh the Company. The
aforementioned return of premiums is triggered ibdyee the borrower’s prepayment of the loan withthdays of the transfer settlement date or
the borrower’s default within 275 days of the ssttent date on loans where any of the borrowerss fiiree payments were delinquent.

For liabilities created on or after October 1, 20th@ fair valuing of the loans themselves provittesseconomic gain to be recognized from the
transfer. Continuing to value the liability basedtbe likelihood of repaying the premium warrantyuld effectively double count the gain
from creating the loan. As such, the Company chaige valuation of the liability for loans issuedrhatch the amount received from the
transfer.

After February 7, 2011, the new Form 1086 allowesl Company to recognize premium income concurrdhttive date of transfer, as was
done prior to January 1, 2010. As a result of tiis,balances at December 31, 2011 in “LiabilitySBA loans transferred, subject to premium
recourse” were reduced to zero.

Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis as of December 31, 2010 are as follows (in tisands):

Fair Value Measurements Usir

Total Level 1 Level Z Level 3

Liabilities:
Liability on SBA loans transferred, subject to piem recourse $30,78: $— $— $30,78:

Below is a summary of the activity in the liabilityy SBA loans transferred, subject to premium resmior the year ended December 31, 2011
(in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 30,78
SBA loans sold, no longer subject to premium rese (30,789
Balance at December 31, 2C $ —

FAIR VALUE OPTION ELECTION —SBA 7(a) LOANS

On October 1, 2010, the Company elected to utilizefair value option for SBA 7(a) loans fundedasrafter that date. Management believed
that doing so would promote its effort to both slifypand make more transparent its financial staets by better portraying the true economic
value of this asset on its balance sheet and inctatement. NSBF originates, funds, and servicgsmment guaranteed loans under section 7
(a) of the Small Business Act. The SBA does ndyfglarantee the SBA 7(a) Loans: An SBA 7(a) Laahifurcated into a guaranteed portion
and an unguaranteed portion, each accruing intereste principal balance of such portion at agretum rate in effect from time to time.
NSBF originates variable interest loans, usualtyesa fixed index to the Prime rate that resetatguly. Primarily, NSBF has made SBA 7
loans carrying guarantees of 75% and 85%; from 2B@8ugh early 2011 under a special program, miofteoloans NSBF originated carried a
guarantee of 90%. NSBF, both historically and asa#ter of its business plan, transfers the guaeanpertions via SBA Form 1086 into the
secondary market when the guaranteed portion becaxaglable for sale upon the closing and fullydimg of the SBA 7(a) loan and retains
the unguaranteed portions. Management recogniz¢dite economic value in the guaranteed portiomdidnure to NSBF at the time of their
sale but rather when the guaranty attached atnatigin; amortization accounting by its nature doeisrecognize this increase in value at the
true time when it occurred. Under the fair valuéam the value of the guarantee is recorded whendnomically occurs at the point of the
creation of the loan, and is not delayed until wtensale occurs. Contemporaneously, the valueeofihguaranteed will also be determined to
produce the full, fair value of the loan.
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Although the fair value election is for the ent8BA 7(a) loan, the Company primarily sells the guéeed portions at the completion of
funding. The need to record the fair value fordliaranteed portion of the loan will primarily ocaurder two circumstances: for guaranteed
portions that were not transferred at period ei@B@ loans held for sale”) and at the end of 20b0]dans transferred in the secondary market
that did not achieve sale status under ASC Topic(88BA loans transferred, subject to recoursefje Tinguaranteed portion retained is
recorded under “SBA loans held for investment.”

SBA Loans Held for Investmer

For loans that completed funding before Octob&010, Loans receivable held for investment arentedaat their outstanding unpaid principal
balances adjusted for charge-offs, net deferrenl doayination costs and the allowance for loandss$or loans that completed funding on or
after October 1, 2010, management elected to &irevLoan receivables held for investment withie fir value hierarchy that prioritizes
observable and unobservable inputs utilizing L&vehobservable inputs which reflect the Companwa expectations about the assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing theed (including assumptions about risk). Becauseetburrently is no active secondary market
for the unguaranteed portions, the Company usesndioation of trading information from the guarasdesales, as was previously used to
determine the discount on the unguaranteed portaondsthe historical performance of NSBF's loangliggd to their outstanding unpaid
principal balances. If a loan measured at fair @adusubsequently impaired, then the fair valuthefloan is measured based on the present
value of expected future cash flows discountethi@ldan’s effective interest rate, or the fair watf the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. Because the loans bear interest aiadolearate, NSBF does not have to factor in inter&® risk.

SBA Loans Held For Sale

Prior to October 1, 2010, loans originated andridésl for sale in the secondary market, that igtleanteed portions of SBA 7(a) loans, were
carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair gas determined by aggregate outstanding commisnfierm investors. For guaranteed port|
funded on or after October 1, 2010, managementeslgo fair value SBA loans held for sale withie flair value hierarchy that prioritizes
observable and unobservable inputs used to metsukalue utilizing Level 2 assets. These inpatdude debt securities with quoted prices
that are traded less frequently than exchangedradgruments or have values determined usingangrimodel with inputs that are observable
in the market. The secondary market for the guasghportions is extremely robust with broker desadmating as primary dealers. NSBF sells
regularly into the market and can quickly priceldans for sales. The Company values the guarap@eidn based on market prices equal to
the guaranteed loan amount plus a premium thaidesl both an upfront cash payment (utilizing qugteces) and the value of a stream of
payments representing servicing income receivexx@ess of NSBF's servicing cost (valued using eipgimodel with inputs that are
observable in the market).

SBA Loans Transferred, Subject to Premium Recou

Effective January 1, 2010, a new accounting stahdadified into ASC Topic 860, “Transfers and Seiwy,” required for the guaranteed
portions transferred that the Company, due to thenpum warranty formerly incorporated in SBA For@886 (the warranty ceased as part of
the form on February 7, 2011), establish a newtasted to the guaranteed portion of SBA 7(ahsoeontractually sold but subject to
premium recourse. Prior to October 1, 2010, loeassferred in the secondary market, that is theagueed portions of SBA 7(a) loans, were
carried at cost. For guaranteed portions fundedrafter October 1, 2010, management elected twddile SBA loans transferred, subject to
premium recourse within the fair value hierarchgttprioritizes observable and unobservable inptitiging Level 2 assets. These inputs
include debt securities with quoted prices thattea@ed less frequently than exchange-traded imgtniis or have values determined using a
pricing model with inputs that are observable i@ tharket. The secondary market for the guarantedibps is extremely robust with broker
dealers acting as primary dealers. NSBF sells aglyuinto the market and can quickly price its Iedor sales. The Company values the
guaranteed portion based on market prices equhétguaranteed loan amount plus a premium thatdesl both an upfront cash payment
(utilizing quoted prices) and the value of a strexrpayments representing servicing income receinexkcess of NSBF’s servicing cost
(valued using a pricing model with inputs that abservable in the market).

After February 7, 2011, the new Form 1086 allowesl Company to recognize premium income concurrdhttive date of transfer, as was
done prior to January 1, 2010. As a result, thariad at December 31, 2011 in “SBA loans transfeseklject to premium recourse” decreased
to zero.
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Assets
SBA loans held for investme
SBA loans held for sal

SBA loans transferred, subject to premium reco

Total asset

Assets
SBA loans held for investme
SBA loans held for sal
SBA loans transferred, subject to premium reco

Total asset

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 Usin

Total Gains anc

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 (Losses)
$ 21,857 $— $ — $ 21,857 $ (2,39
2,19¢ — 2,19¢ — 265
— — — — (3,36¢6)
$ 24,058 $— $ 2196 $ 2185 $ (5,499

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2010 Usin

Total Gains anc

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 (Losses)
$ 231 $— $ — $ 231C $ (285)
1,01¢ — 1,01¢ _ 41=
21,21; — 21,21; — 3,36¢€
$ 24,53¢ $— $ 22,22¢ $ 2,31( $ 3,494

Below is a summary of the activity in SBA loanschér investment, at fair value for the year enBetember 31, 2011 (in thousands):

Balance, beginning of ye

SBA loans held for investment, originat
Payments receive

Fair value los!

Balance, end of ye

2011 2010

$ 2,31( $ —
22,38¢ 2,59¢

(44€) —
(2,392) (285)
$21,85; $2,31(
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OTHER FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Bsis are as follows (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 Using:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Losse!

Assets
Impaired loan: $ 6,97¢ $— $ — $ 6,97¢ $ (75)
Other rec-estate owne 46¢ — 46¢ — (43)
Total asset $ 7,44 $— $ 46¢ $ 6,97¢ $ (799

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2010 Usin

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Losse!

Assets
Impaired loan: $ 5,81 $— $ — $ 5,81 $ (1,84))
Impaired customer merchant accol — — — — (25)
Other rec-estate owne 327 — 327 — (8)
Total asset $ 6,14C $— $ 327 $ 5,81: $ (1,88()

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on &on-recurring Basis are as follows (in thousands):
Impaired loans

Impairment of a loan is measured based on the preaéue of expected future cash flows discountati@loan’s effective interest rate, or the
fair value of the collateral if the loan is colletbdependent. Impaired loans for which the cagymount is based on fair value of the
underlying collateral are included in assets apdnted at estimated fair value on a mecurring basis, both at initial recognition of iaigment
and on an on-going basis until recovery or chaffefdhe loan amount. The determination of impamhinvolves management’s judgment in
the use of market data and third party estimatgarding collateral values. Valuations in the levkimpaired loans and corresponding
impairment affect the level of the reserve for |basses.

Impaired customer merchant accounts

Customer merchant accounts are reviewed for impaitwhenever events or changes in circumstancésabedhat the carrying value may not
be recoverable. In reviewing for impairment, thergiag value is compared to the estimated undistalifuture cash flows expected. If such
cash flows are not sufficient to support the assettorded value, an impairment charge is recodrizeeduce the carrying value of the
customer merchant account to its estimated faireval' he determination of future cash flows as asglthe estimated fair value of customer
merchant accounts involves significant estimatetherpart of management.
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Other real-estate owned (included in Prepaid expers and other assets)

The estimated fair value of other real-estate ows@alculated using observable market informatincluding bids from prospective
purchasers and pricing from similar market trarisastwhere available. The value is generally disted between 20-25% based on market
valuations as well as expenses associated withiegaaur interests. Where bid information is noaiable for a specific property, the valuat
is principally based upon recent transaction prfoesimilar properties that have been sold. Thasaparable properties share comparable
demographic characteristics. Other real estate duwsgenerally classified within Level 2 of the wation hierarchy.

NOTE 4—CREDITS IN LIEU OF CASH:

As discussed in Note 3, the Company adopted fairevaption for financial assets and financial ligigis concurrent with its adoption of fair
value accounting for certain of its assets andliisds. As a result, credits in lieu of cash asdued at fair value as of December 31, 2011 and
2010. Following is a summary of the credits in laflcash balance as of December 31, 2011 and 2010cusands):

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ 35,49 $ 51,94
Add: Income from tax credit accretion (at fair va) 1,39( 2,38(
Less: Deliveries mac (19,487 (21,18))
Fair value adjustmel (459 2,34¢
Balance, end of ye: $ 16,94¢ $ 35,49

NOTE 5—SBA LOANS:

SBA loans are primarily concentrated in the hotel eotel, and restaurant industries, as well agggiically in New York and Florida. On
October 1, 2010, the Company elected to utilizefaiivevalue option for SBA loans funded on or afteat date creating a new loan pool, SBA
loans held for investment, at fair value. The congus of SBA loans held for investment, at faiueashs of December 31, 2011 and SBA Ic
held for investment, net, as of December 31, 20112910 are as follows (in thousands):

2011 2011 2010 2010
Fair Value Cost Basit Fair Value Cost Basit
Gross loans receivab $24,53¢ $22,83¢ $ 2,59¢ $28,80:
Less: Allowance for loan loss: — (2,900 — (3,560
Less: Deferred origination fees, t — (1,387 — (1,5072)
Less: Fair value adjustme (2,679 — (28E) —
Total $21,85) $18,55¢ $ 2,31C $23,74:

The contractual maturities of SBA loans held forgstment are as follows (in thousands):

2011 2011 2010 2010
Fair Value Cost Basit Fair Value Cost Basit
Due in one year or less $ — $ 1,03¢ $ — $ 1
Due between one and five yei — 3,39( — 3,89t
Due after five year 24,53¢ 18,41 2,59¢ 24,89¢
Total loans receivable, gro $24,53¢ $22,83¢ $ 2,59¢ $28,80¢

All loans are priced at the Prime interest ratesgpproximately 2.75% to 3.75%. The only loans aifixed interest rate are defaulted loans of
which the guaranteed portion sold is repurchasaa the secondary market by the SBA, while the urantaed portion of the loans still
remains with the Company. As of December 31, 2012010, net SBA loans receivable held for investméth adjustable interest rates
totaled $40,475,000 and $23,306,000, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 201CQampany funded $97,129,000 and $65,855,000 irslaad transferred approximately
$73,871,000 and $57,517,000 of the guaranteedopasfithe loans, respectively. Receivables frorm$o@ansferred but not settled of
$4,911,000 and $12,058,000 as of December 31, @0d 2010, respectively, are presented as brokeivedae in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

F-25



Table of Contents

As of December 31, 2011, $5,950,000 of the guaeahp®rtion of SBA loans and $12,578,000 of the angunteed portion of SBA loans
collateralized the current outstanding balancehenGompany’s line of credit with Capital One and $34,000 of the unguaranteed portions of
SBA loans transferred via our securitization tratisa collateralized the notes issued by the Trust.

The outstanding balances of loans past due ovda98 and still accruing interest as of Decembe2811 and 2010 totaled $516,000 and
$535,000 respectively.

Loans by industry and geographic concentrationdakbabunted for more than 5% of the outstandingglmens receivable held for investment
balance as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 werdlawsq(in thousands):

2011 2010
Industry
Restaurant $2,25€* $3,10:
Hotels and motel 2,09 2,90¢
State
Florida $7,13¢ $6,68¢
New York 5,61¢ 3,93(
California 4,17( 1,447
New Jerse! 3,362 2,51(
Texas 3,30 2,16¢
Georgia 3,007 5,39¢
Louisiana 2,50¢ 477+
lllinois 1,66¢* 2,772

(*) Amounts shown for comparative purposes and reptéssmthan 5%

Below is a summary of the activity in the allowariceloan losses for the years ended December@i1, and 2010 (in thousands):

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ 3,55¢ $ 3,98¢
Provision for loan losse 762 1,90¢
Loans charge-off (1,444 (2,427
Recoveries 22 86
Balance, end of ye: $ 2,90( $ 3,55¢

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, total impaired nmrgal loans amounted to $6,978,000 and $8,329r@8pectively. For the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, average balance ofredpaon-accrual loans was $7,995,000 and $8,404@8pectively. Approximately
$2,428,000 and $2,516,000 of the allowance for loases were allocated against such impaired noruakloans, respectively. None of these
loans were on a fair value basis.

Had interest on these impaired non-accrual loars becrued, such interest would have totaled $890a9d $519,000 for 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Interest income, which is recogniaada cash basis, related to the impaired non-alcloraras for the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010, was not material.
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NOTE 6—ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:
Accounts receivable consists of the following atBmaber 31, 2011 and 2010:

Purchased receivables

Electronic payment processing settlement recei:
Customer receivable

Other receivable

Allowance for doubtful accoun
Total

NOTE 7—INVESTMENTS IN QUALIFIED BUSINESSES:

2011

$ 7,23¢
2,37¢
1,152

10,80!

(30¢)
$10,49:

The following table is a summary of investmentduded in prepaid expenses and other assets omtiselidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2011, shown separately between thbtrathd equity components, and a summary of tligtgdbr the years ended

December 31, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

HELD TO MATURITY DEBT INVESTMENTS

Balance a
Original December
31,
Name of Investment Amount 2011
Bidco Loan - AmeriMed $ 20C $ 13

Principal outstanding, beginning of year
Return of principal, net of recoveri
Debt investment written o

Principal outstanding, end of ye

EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Original
Name of Investment Amount
OnLAN, LLC $ 80C

Total equity investments, beginning of year
Cumulative effect adjustme

Equity in earning:

Total equity investments, end of ye
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Maturity
Interest Rate Date
4.25% August 201
2011 2010
$ 26C $ 49z
(247) (22¢)
— o
$ 13 $ 26C
Balance a
December
31,
2011 Ownership %
$ 131 49%
2011 2010
$10E $—
— 99
_26 6
$131 $10¢&
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In 2010, the Company reassessed its 49% investm@nLAN pursuant to ASC Topic 8100 and determined that the Company does not
the power to direct the activities that most sigaifitly impact OnLANS economic performance. As such, in 2010, the Camgaconsolidate
OnLAN and recognized a cumulative effect adjustnterstccumulated deficit of $99,000 to reclass thetipn of OnLAN’s accumulated deficit
related to its majority owner.

The Company has not guaranteed any obligationesfetlinvestees, and the Company is not otherwisendtted to provide further financial
support for the investees. However, from time-ioetj the Company may decide to provide such additifimancial support which, as of
December 31, 2011 was zero. Should the Companyndieie that impairment exists upon its periodic eswiand it is deemed to be other than
temporary, the Company will write down the recordatle of the asset to its estimated fair valueracdrd a corresponding charge in the
consolidated statements of operations. During 28ELCompany received $247,000 in principal repaysien its debt investments. During
2010 the Company recorded a write down of $5058300ne debt investment and a cost investment vweametkimpaired upon periodic review
and is included in other general and administrativ&s in the consolidated statements of operations

NOTE 8—SERVICING ASSETS:

The Company reviews capitalized servicing rightsifitgpairment. This review is performed based ok sisata, which are determined on a
disaggregated basis given the predominant riskacienistics of the underlying loans. The predomimisk characteristics are loan terms and
year of loan originatior

The following summarizes the activity pertainingsrvicing assets for the years ended Decemb&(031, and 2010 (in thousands):

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $2,22¢ $2,43¢
Servicing assets capitaliz: 1,971 43¢
Servicing assets amortiz (77€) (650)
Balance, end of ye: $3,42( $2,22¢

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 arfy] 886vicing fees received on the Company’s SBA @(@inated portfolio totaled
$1,629,000, $1,785,000 and $1,498,000, respectivély Company also performs servicing functionsoams originated by other SBA lendke
The Company does not retain any risk on such garsfand earns servicing fees based upon a mutnafiptiated fee per loan. The total
servicing fee income recognized for loans serviceathers in 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $1,466,0084 00 and $126,000, respectively.
estimated fair value of capitalized servicing rghtas $3,420,000 and $2,225,000 at December 31,89 2010, respectively. The estimated
fair value of servicing assets at December 31, 2044 determined using a discount rate of 14%, we@jhverage prepayment speeds ranging
from 1% to 12%, depending upon certain charactesistf the loan portfolio, weighted average life3094 years, and an average default rate of
6%. The estimated fair value of servicing asseBeatember 31, 2010 was determined using a discatmbf 17%, weighted average
prepayment speeds ranging from 1% to 11%, dependging certain characteristics of the loan portfoleighted average life of 3.55 years,
and an average default rate of 7%. The Companyars@xlependent valuation specialist to estimaddir value of the servicing asset.

The unpaid principal balances of loans servicedfthers are not included in the accompanying catatgld balance sheets. The unpaid
principal balances of loans serviced for otheriwithe NSBF originated portfolio were $286,113,@0@ $179,894,000 as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively. The unpaid principédhtces of loans serviced for others which wereoriginated by NSBF and are outside of
the Newtek portfolio were $136,971,000 and $73,082,as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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NOTE 9—FIXED ASSETS:
The Company'’s fixed assets are comprised of tHeviihg at December 31, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands)

2011 2010
Computer and office equipment $ 3,761 $ 3,361
Furniture and fixture 67t 64C
Leasehold improvemen 40¢ 422
Computer software and webs 3,70¢ 3,371
Computer servers and store 10,75¢ 10,13t

19,31¢ 17,92¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (16,469 (14,719
Net fixed asset $ 2,85% $ 32U

Depreciation and amortization expense for fixeesskr the years ended December 31, 2011, 201Q@0@ was $1,816,000, $2,451,000 and
$2,893,000, respectively.

Included in computer software and website are tedasts associated with internally developed safew The following table summarizes the
activity for capitalized software development cdststhe years ended December 31, 2011 and 20t8dirsands):

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of ye. $2,91- $2,61¢
Additions 322 29€
Balance, end of ye: 3,23t 2,917
Less: accumulated amortizati (2,629 2,31¢
Software development costs, | $ 60€ $ 597

NOTE 10—GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES:
The net carrying value of goodwill as of Decembgr2011 and 2010 by segment is as follows (in tands):

2011 2010
Electronic Payment Processi $ 3,00¢ $ 3,004
Web hostinc¢ 7,20: 7,20z
Corporate activitie 17¢ 17¢
Small business financ 1,70¢ 1,70¢€
Total goodwill $12,09: $12,09:

Other intangible assets as of December 31, 2012@hd are comprised of the following (in thousands)

2011 2010
Customer merchant accoul $ 14,09¢ $ 14,067
Trade name (indefinite livec 55C 55C
Non-compete agreemer — 1C

14,64¢ 14,62°
Accumulated amortizatio (13,226 (11,879
Net intangible asse $ 1,42 $ 2,75t

Customer merchant accounts are being amortizedaosBrto 66 month period. Other intangibles (exiclgdhe trade name which has an
indefinite life and is subject to impairment revieave being amortized over a period ranging fromidl86 months. Total amortization expense
included in the accompanying consolidated statesneinbperations for the years ended December 31,2010 and 2009 was $1,363,000,
$1,582,000 and $2,171,000, respectively.
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Total expected amortization expense for the nextfiiscal years is as follows (in thousands):

Customer
December 31, Accounts
2012 $ 61€
2013 201
2014 35
2015 8
2016 2

$ 864

Based upon the Compamsyperformance of the impairment tests using thevidue approach of the discounted cash flow mettit@Compan
determined that goodwill was not impaired for tieags ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009. &getdr ended December 31, 2011,
there was no impairment related to its customerchwert accounts; for the years ended December 30, &3d 2009, impairments recorded
totaled $25,000 and $126,000, respectively, andnateded in depreciation and amortization in tbeampanying consolidated statements of
operations.

NOTE 11—ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES:
The following table details the components of acitsypayable and accrued expenses at December Bl ap@ 2010 (in thousands):

2011 2010
Due to clients (a) $ 2,55t $ 2,057
Due to participants and SBA ( 1,994 1,062
Accrued payroll and related expen: 2,01t 1,68(
Deferred ren 1,61¢ 1,02¢
Deposits and reserv: 1,42( 1,09t
Residuals and commissions paye 1,11¢ 84t
Current tax payabl 857 132
Other 2,621 2,42¢
Total accounts payable and accrued expe $14,19¢ $10,321

(@) Composed primarily of client holdbacks at CDISck represents the difference between the reclkeisdabe Company purchases less the
actual amount the Company releases to the clienpfrthe discount fee and other miscellaneousdbeasged to the clien
(b) Primarily represents loan related remittances weckby NSBF, and due to third parties; amounts eBsssified as restricted ca:
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NOTE 12—NOTES PAYABLE:
At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company hadtemg debt outstanding comprised of the followimgthiousands):

2011 2010
Bank notes payabl
Capital One lines of credit (NSBI
Guaranteed lin $ 5,35¢ $ 6,00(
Unguaranteed lin 3,00¢ —
Sterling National bank line of credit (CD 3,77 —
Capital One term loan (NT¢ 1,42¢ 1,84(
Wells Fargo line of credit (CD< — 5,10¢
Total bank notes payabl 13,56¢ 12,94¢
Note payable Securitization trus 26,36¢ 15,10«
Total notes payabl $39,93:¢ $28,05:

NBC had a $10,000,000 line of credit with Wellsd@ai“Wells”) due in February 2012. This facility wasaasto purchase receivables and for
other working capital purposes. In February 201BCNentered into a three year line of credit witbrifsdg National Bank (“Sterling”) in an
amount up to $10,000,000. This facility paid of¢ Wells line of credit and is and will be used towghase receivables and for other working
capital purposes.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, NBC had $3,707a0@ $5,109,000 outstanding under the lines aficr€he Sterling interest rate is se
5.00% or Prime plus 2.00%, whichever is higherhwiterest on the line to be paid monthly in arsedihe line is and will be collateralized by
the receivables purchased, as well as all othetsis§ NBC. The line is guaranteed by the Companggddition, the Company deposited
$750,000 with Sterling to collateralize the guaegnfThe agreement includes such financial coverantsinimum tangible net worth and
maximum leverage ratio. The Company is subjectéeting a maximum leverage ratio test and a futaetdass test. As of December 31, 2011,
the Company was in compliance with the financiales@ants set in this line.

The Wells interest rate was set at 7.50% or Prilag $.50%, whichever was higher, with interesttomltne paid monthly in arrears and on a
minimum outstanding line balance of $2,000,000. éirttie terms of the line, once NBC exceeded $200@0putstanding under the line of
credit, Wells Fargo allowed for two alternatives iftterest rates, the Prime interest rate plus®,50ith a minimum of 7.50% or Base LIBOR
plus 3.50%. Total interest expense for the yeade@mecember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was approdyr$283,000, $258,000 and
$186,000, respectively. The average interest mtthe year ended December 31, 2011 was 6.26%u@hrDecember 31, 2011, NBC has
capitalized $107,000 of deferred financing costishattable to the Sterling line of which $29,00GH®en amortized. The net balance of
$78,000 is included in other assets in the accogipgrconsolidated balance sheet. Amortization lieryears ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009 was $57,000, $24,000 and $24,000, resphgtand is included in interest expense in theegpanying consolidated statements of
operations.

In October 2007, NTS entered into a Loan and SgcAdreement with Capital One which provided faeaolving credit facility of up to
$10,000,000 available to both NTS and the Compfamyg term of two years. The interest rate was LIBB@us 2.5% and the agreement
included a quarterly facility fee equal to 25 basints on the unused portion of the Revolving @realculated as of the end of each calendar
guarter. The agreement included such financial carnts as a minimum fixed charge coverage ratiosaméiximum funded debt to EBITDA.
NTS capitalized $65,000 of deferred financing castsbutable to the Capital One line. In connettigth the loan, on October 19, 20

Newtek Business Services, Inc. entered into a Gyt Payment and Performance with Capital OnekBard entered into a Pled
Agreement with Capital One pledging all NTS stoslcallateral. In October 2009, the $2,500,000 hwed under the Capital One line of cre
converted to a three year term loan with a levielgipal repayment under the terms of the line eflar

In April 2010, the Company closed two five-yeamntdoans aggregating $14,583,000 with Capital Onehi€h $12,500,000 refinanced
Newtek Small Business Finar's debt to General Electric Commercial Capital (“6&nd $2,083,000 refinanced the pre-existing tkyam
between Capital One and NTS. The interest raté®2®10 NTS term loan is variable based on the inphtBOR rate plus 4.25% or Prime
plus 2.25%, but no lower than 5.75%. The agreenmehides such financial covenants as a minimundfistearge coverage ratio and minimum
EBITDA; the Company guarantees the term loan. Tdlare of the NTS term
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loan and the predecessor NTS term loan are inclidedtes payable on the consolidated balance stseaft December 31, 2011 and 2010,
$1,424,000 and $1,840,000 of the note was outstgndespectively. The weighted average effectiverest rate at December 31, 2011 was
5.75%. Interest is paid in arrears along with eacmthly principal payment due. Total interest exgeefor the year ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 was approximately $94,000, $101,800589,000, respectively. Amortization associatét tine deferred financing costs
attributable to the Capital One line and term lofanghe years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 ab@ @@s $9,000, $6,000 and $25,000,
respectively, and is included in interest expenghé accompanying consolidated statements of tipesa

The refinancing to NSBF supported the lending dj@na of NSBF by providing working capital. Theéngst rate on the note was set at Prime
plus 2.25% or LIBOR plus 4.25%, not less than 5.7%%al interest expense for the year ended Decethe2010 was $435,000. In
connection with the refinancing, the Company inedr$329,000 of deferred financing costs which waertized into interest expense over a
five year period. In December 2010, in connectiati the securitization of the NSBF unguaranteedfplio, the remaining principal balance
under this term note of $9,903,000 was paid indolil the balance of the deferred financing cos$288,000 was fully amortized.

Also in December 2010, NSBF entered into a revghdredit facility with Capital One N.A. for $6,0@MO collateralized by the guaranteed
portion of SBA 7(a) loans originated. Upon meetiegtain requirements, NSBF has the right to ina¢hs maximum amount under the fac
by $6,000,000 which was exercised in March 201k ditedit facility is used to fund those portionsS&A 7(a) loans made by NSBF that are
guaranteed by the SBA, with funds received on #he sf those guaranteed portions of the SBA 7(@)ddy NSBF reducing the facility. In
June 2011, NSBF obtained from Capital One an iseréaits total revolving credit facility from $1390,000 to $27,000,000. In October 2011,
the term of the revolver was extended by nine metithough September 2013, at which time the oulgtgrbalance will be converted into a
three year term loan. This increase in the liné evibble the Company to finance both the governfgaatanteed and non-guaranteed portions
of SBA 7(a) loans. As of December 31, 2011, NSBé $&, 364,000 outstanding under the lines of crdtie interest rate on the $12,000,000
portion of the facility, collateralized by the gowenent guaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) loans, isas@rime plus 1.00%, and there is a quari
facility fee equal to 25 basis points on the unysedion of the revolving credit calculated aslod £nd of each calendar quarter. The interest
rate on the $15,000,000 portion of the facilityllateralized by the non-guaranteed portion of SE&) Toans, is set at Prime plus 1.875%, and
there is a quarterly facility fee equal to 25 bgmimts on the unused portion of the revolving tredlculated as of the end of each calendar
guarter. The agreement includes financial covenaintse NBS level with its consolidated subsidisiiiecluding a minimum fixed charge
coverage ratio, minimum EBITDA requirements andimimim cash requirements held at Capital One. Asaxfdnber 31, 2011, the Company
was in compliance with the financial covenantsisdhis line.

Total interest expense for the years ended DeceBihet011 and 2010 was $376,000 and $6,000, resplgctThrough December 31, 2011,
NSBF has capitalized $398,000 of deferred financiogts attributable to the credit line of which $1000 has been amortized. The balanc
$279,000 is included in other assets in the accoyipg consolidated balance sheet.

In December 2010, NSBF engaged in a securitizatidhe unguaranteed portions of its SBA 7(a) lodmshe securitization, it used a special
purpose entity (Newtek Small Business Loan TrudtO20 or the “Trust”) which is a VIE. Applying th@gsolidation requirements for VIEs
under the accounting rules in ASC Topic 860, Trarsshnd Servicing, and ASC Topic 810, Consolidatidnich became effective January 1,
2010, the Company determined that as the primamgfix@ary of the securitization vehicle, based tsnpower to direct activities through its r
as servicer for the Trust and its obligation tocetbdosses and right to receive benefits, it neé¢dembnsolidate the securitization into its
financial statements. NSBF therefore consolidatedentity using the carrying amounts of the Truagsets and liabilities: NSBF continues to
recognize the assets in loans held for investmashtr@cognize the associated financing in Bank npagsble.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, NSBFfeenesl SBA loans held for investment of $19,615,60® agreed to transfer $3,000,000
of future SBA loans held for investment when ora#d, to the Trust which in turn issued notesHiergar amount of $16,000,000 against the
assets. The notes were sold at a dollar priceréisatted in gross proceeds before reserve accandtgransaction expenses of $15,392,000.
Deferred financing costs totaled $883,000 andraskidled in prepaid expenses and other assets aotiselidated balance sheet. At
December 31, 2010, the assets (before reservedoribsses and discount) and liabilities of thesotidated Trust totaled $22,486,000 and
$15,104,000 respectively. See Note 5 — SBA lodosye, for a description of the loans and loan bzdan
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In December 2011, NSBF entered into a Supplemémdahture by which the original $16,000,000 of sémation notes were amended to
reflect a new initial principal amount of $12,88000as a result of principal payments made, andiaddi notes were issued in an initial
principal amount of $14,899,000, so that the ihdiggregate principal amount of all notes as ofddelger 31, 2011 totaled $27,779,000. The
notes are backed by approximately $40,500,000eotittyuaranteed portions of loans originated arbtoriginated by NSBF under the SBA
loan program. The notes retained their AA ratingamS&P, and the final maturity date of the amenuetes is March 22, 2037. The initial
proceeds of the transaction were used to repay debitthe balance of the $5,000,000 prefundingatowill be used to originate new loans.
Deferred financing costs total $1,388,000 at Decam3, 2011 of which $177,000 has been amortized.blance of $1,211,000 is included
in prepaid expenses and other assets on the cdatealibalance sheet. At December 31, 2011, thésgbsdore reserve for loan losses and
discount) and liabilities of the consolidated Trtoghled $43,154,000 and $26,368,000 respectively.

The Trust is only permitted to purchase the unguasal portion of SBA 7(a) loans, issue asset-baskedrities, and make payments on the
securities. The Trust only issued a single seriesgourities to pay for the unguaranteed portibasquired from NSBF and will be dissolved
when those securities have been paid in full. Timagry source for repayment of the debt is the d¢kmsis generated from the unguaranteed
portion of SBA 7(a) loans owned by the Trust; pifyat on the debt will be paid by cash flow in exxe$ that needed to pay various fees rel
to the operation of the Trust and interest on tat.dThe debt has an expected maturity of aboatyfaars based on the expected performar
the underlying collateral and structure of the deeid a legal maturity of 30 years from the datssfiance. The assets of the Trust are legally
isolated and are not available to pay NSBF’s coegitHowever, NSBF continues to retain rights tshcaeserves and residual interests in the
Trust and will receive servicing income. For bagkoy analysis purposes, NSBF sold the unguaramqgesibns to the Trust in a true sale and
the Trust is a separate legal entity. The investacsthe Trusts have no recourse to any of NSBEier assets for failure of debtors to pay v
due; however, NSBF's parent, Newtek, has providiehiéed guaranty to the investors in the Trusamamount not to exceed 10% of the
original issuance amount (or $2,778,000), to bel aseer all of the assets of the Trust have beéraested. The notes were issued with a AA
rating from S&P based on the underlying collateral.

Total expected principal repayments for the nese fiscal years and thereafter are as followsh@usands):

December 31 Notes Payabl
2012 $ 417
2013 6,02:
2014 5,197
2015 1,17¢
2016 752
Thereaftel 26,36¢

$ 39,93¢

NOTE 13—NOTES PAYABLE IN CREDITS IN LIEU OF CASH:
Each Capco has separate contractual arrangemehttheiCertified Investors obligating the Capcartake payments on the Notes.

At the time the Capcos obtained the proceeds flamssuance of the Notes, Capco warrants or Compamynon shares to the Certified
Investors, the proceeds were deposited into esaoawunts which required that the insurance corstfaetconcurrently and simultaneously
purchased from the insurer before the remaininggeds could be released to and utilized by the €apte Capco Note agreements requir
a condition precedent to the funding of the Noked insurance be purchased to cover the risks iassdavith the operation of the Capco. This
insurance is purchased from Chartis Specialty brstg Company and National Union Fire Insurance Gompf Pittsburgh, both subsidiaries
of Chartis, Inc. (Chartis), an international ingu@hartis and these subsidiaries are “A+” cregliéd by S&P. In order to comply with this
condition precedent to the funding, the Notes dig$s structured as follows: (1) the Certified Ista@s wire the proceeds from the Notes
issuance directly into an escrow account; (2) sea@v agent, pursuant to the requirements undelthe and escrow agreement, automatic
and simultaneously funds the purchase of the imseraontract from the proceeds received. The Nuffesing cannot close without the
purchase of the insurance, and the Capcos arentité@ to the use and benefit of the net proceedsived until the escrow agent has
completed the payment for the insurance. Undetethms of this insurance, the insurer incurs thenpry obligation to repay the Certified
Investors a substantial portion of the debt as aglio make compensatory payments in the eventoskaof the availability of the related tax
credits. The Coverage A portion of these contrawkes the insurer primarily obligated for a portadrihe liability.
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The Capcos, however, are secondarily, or contimgdrgble for such payments. The Capco, as a ssxgnobligor, must assess whether it i
contingency to record on the date of issuance arday reporting date thereafter until the insumakes all their required payments. As of
December 31, 2011, the insurer has made all cd¢heduled cash payments under Coverage A, thersi@i@ntingent liability of the
Company has been extinguished.

The Coverage B portion of these contracts providethe payment of cash in lieu of tax creditshie event the Capco becomes decertified.
Capcos remain primarily liable for the requirementleliver tax credits (or make cash paymentsein 6f tax credits not delivered).

Although Coverage B protects the Certified Investas described above, the Company remains primidille for the portion of this

obligation. This liability has been recorded asesqgiayable in credits in lieu of cash, represerttiegpresent value of the Capcos’ total liability
it must pay to the Certified Investors. Such amauititbe increased by an accretion of interest eggeduring the term of the Notes and will
decrease as the Capcos pay interest by delivérentak credits, or paying cash.

As discussed in Note 3, the Company adopted féirevaption for financial assets and liabilities corrent with its adoption fair value
accounting effective January 1, 2008 for valuingédgayable in lieu of cash with the exception dfsWire Advisers, LLC. Following is a
summary of activity of Notes payable in creditdiéu of cash balance for the years ended Decenthe2® 1 and 2010 (in thousands):

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of ye. $ 35,49: $ 51,94
Add: Accretion of interest expen 1,39( 2,41¢
Less: Deliveries of tax credi (29,48 (21,18))
Fair value adjustmel (459 2,31(
Balance, end of ye: $ 16,94¢ $ 35,49¢

Under the Note agreements, no interest is paithéyCtapcos in cash provided that the Certified ltoregeceive the uninterrupted use of the
credits. The Certified Investors acknowledge, im lote agreements, that the insurer is primargpoasible for making the scheduled cash
payments as provided in the Notes.

NOTE 14—NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS:

The non-controlling interests held by the investeakte form of warrants entitle the holders toghase, for a $0.01 exercise price, an interest
in a Capco or Capco fund. The values ascribedeavéirrants issued to the Certified Investors aedrburer have been recorded as non-
controlling interests. In addition, certain non-tolling interests have already been acquired byomity stockholders. A portion of the initial
proceeds received from the Certified Investordlécated to the warrants using a discounted cash fhethod. The following is the aggregate
percentage interest of the non-controlling stoctbrd in each respective Capco or Capco fund agoémber 31, 2011 and 2010 (in
thousands):

Capco or Capco Fund % Interest 2011 2010
WP, Florida 0.8(% $ 33C $ 32¢
WLA, Louisiana 3.7¢% 9 9
WAP, Alabame 0.6(% 9 13
Total Capcc 34¢ 35C
WNYIV, New York — 76¢ 763
Other — 63 19¢€
Total $1,18( $1,30¢

During 2010, unexercised warrants that had enthigders to interests in five Capcos expired. Assailt, the non-controlling interest balance
as of the expiration date, approximately $452,0045 reclassified to additional paid-in capital.
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As the result of a statutory merger and acquisidioring the 2010, the Company acquired 26% of tirecontrolling interest in NBC for
approximately $26,000. As a result, the excesh@f/alue of the purchase price over the nontrolling interest balance at the date of purel
approximately $216,000, was recorded as a reduttiadditional paid-in capital.

The non-controlling interest under WNYI1V relatesNBC, a subsidiary of WNY1V, which had converted @10,000 of debt payable to
Exponential of New York, LLC, a related party, t@ferred stock in 2007.

NOTE 15—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Operating and Employment Commitments

The Company leases office space and other offiogpetgnt in several states under operating leaseaggnts which expire at various dates
through 2019. Those office space leases whichaammére than one year generally contain schedetlincreases or escalation clauses.

The following summarizes the Company’s obligatiand commitments, as of December 31, 2011, for éutoinimum cash payments required
under operating lease and employment agreementsoisands):

Operating Employment

Year Leases * Agreements Total

2012 $ 3,81¢ $ 29t $ 4,111
2013 3,06¢ — 3,06¢
2014 2,22 — 2,22¢
2015 1,172 — 1,172
2016 344 — 344
Thereaftel 75¢ — 75€
Total $11,37: $ 29t $11,67:

* Minimum payments have not been reduced by minimuibtegise rentals of $3,353,000 due in the futureeundr-cancelable sublease
Rent expense for 2011, 2010 and 2009 was approaiynd8, 748,000, $2,971,000 and $3,023,000, resfdyti

Under the terms of a service agreement betweenetsal Processing Services of WI (d/b/a Newtek Mantisolutions of WI, “NMS-WI"), its
merchant processor and a sponsoring bank, NMS-Veékjgired to pay minimum fees during each 12-mgettiod, as defined in the service
agreement, to the merchant processor and spondmairlg The minimum fees for the 12-month periodirgpdovember 30, 2011, are to be
equal to at least $1,500,000 and in future yeansletg at least 95% of the fees paid during theguleng 12-month period or $1,500,000, which
ever amount is greater. The Company’s fee paynientee 12-month period ended November 30, 201éeeded the minimum required
amount under the agreement.

Legal Matters

In the ordinary course of business, the Company fieey time to time be party to lawsuits and claifiBe Company evaluates such matters on
a case by case basis and its policy is to conigstausly any claims it believes are without confipglmerit. The Company is currently

involved in various litigation matters. Managembas reviewed all legal claims against the Compaitly @ounsel and has taken into
consideration the views of such counsel, as tmtlieome of the claims, and on that basis the Cognpas determined that it is “reasonably
possible” that claims will result in a loss in thear term which it estimates to be between $100a@0$500,000.
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NOTE 16—TREASURY STOCK:

Shares of common stock repurchased by us are estatccost as treasury stock and result in a remuof equity in our consolidated balance
sheet. From time-to-time, treasury shares may issued as part of our stock-based compensationgray When shares are reissued, we use
the weighted average cost method for determinirsg. dde difference between the cost of the shardgtee issuance price is added or dedt
from additional contributed capital.

In November 2011, the Newtek Board of Directorspedd a stock buy-back program authorizing managétoesnter the market to re-
purchase up to 1,000,000 of the Company’s commareshThis 1,000,000 share authorization repldeeanexercised portions of two
previous authorizations and will terminate in oreary As of December 31, 2011, the Company has psecha total of 13,419 treasury shares
under this authorization. Total shares repurchasei@r all three authorizations aggregated 659,83% Becember 31, 2011. In 2011, the
Company reissued 50,868 shares in connection hWélCompany’s 401k match program. In addition, 472 ghares that were held by an
affiliate were issued to the Company in 2008 aleseent of an outstanding liability and are beirddhas treasury shares.

NOTE 17—INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE:

Basic income (loss) per share is computed baseldeoweighted average number of common shares adtetaduring the period. The dilutive
effect of common share equivalents is includedendalculation of diluted income (loss) per sharky avhen the effect of their inclusion wot
be dilutive (In thousands, except for per shara)dat

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

The calculations of Net Income (Loss) Per Share wer 2011 2010 2009
Numerator:
Numerator for basic and diluted E—income (loss) available to common

stockholders $ 3,481 $ 1,43¢ $ (429
Denominator
Denominator for basic EF—weighted average shar 35,70¢ 35,65t 35,64
Denominator for diluted EF—weighted average shar 36,07 35,801 35,64
Net income (loss) per share: Basic and dilt $ 0.1C $ 0.04 $ (0.0

The amount of anti-dilutive shares/units excludeaf above is as follows (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2011 2010 2009
Stock options 85€ 88¢ 1,48¢
Warrants 50 50 50
Contingently issuable shar 83 83 83

NOTE 18—INCOME FROM TAX CREDITS:

Each Capco has a contractual arrangement withtigydar state or jurisdiction that legally entitlsee Capco to earn and deliver tax credits
(ranging from 4% to 11% per year) from the statgudsdiction upon satisfying certain criteria.fiacal 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company
recognized income from tax credits resulting frdva &ccretion of the discount attributable to taedis earned in prior years. As the tax credits
are delivered to the Certified Investors, the aba&tnce is offset against notes payable in cradiisu of cash. As discussed in Note 3, the
Company adopted fair value accounting concurremitfl the adoption of fair value option for financassets and financial liabilities on
January 1, 2008 to value its credits in lieu ofhchalance. As a result, the income from tax craditretion for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009 has been recorded at fair v@hestotal income from tax credits recognizedemenues in the consolidated statements of
operations was $1,390,000, $2,380,000 and $7,887@0he years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 @04, 2espectively.
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NOTE 19—INCOME TAXES:
(Benefit) provision for income taxes for the yeamsled December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is as folmnhousands):

2011 2010 2009
Current:
Federal $ 41F $— $ (492
State and loce 1,26: 13C (23€)
1,67¢ 13C (72¢)
Deferred:
Federal (2,359 (46€) (1,585
State and loce (41€) (82 (280)
(2,775 (54¢) (1,865
Total benefit for income taxe $(1,097) $(41¥) $(2,599)

A reconciliation of income taxes computed at th& Uederal statutory income tax rate (34%) to thediit for income taxes for the years en
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is as followthfasands):

2011 2010 2009
Benefit Benefit Benefit

Provision (benefit) for income taxes at U.S. fetlstatutory rate of 349 $ 772 $ 29¢ $(1,367)
State and local taxes, net of federal ber 74¢ 19t (404)
Permanent difference (80) (84) 18¢
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance (decreaseg¢ase (3,05¢€) (670 (990
Other 51¢ (1579) (27)

Total benefit for income taxe $(1,097) $(41¢) $(2,597)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities consisted effthlowing at December 31, 2011 and 2010 (in taods):

2011 2010
Deferred tax asset

Net operating losses and capital los $ 3,74¢ $ 10,92
Prepaid insuranc 813 1,39¢
Loan loss reserves and discou 1,051 46€
Flow through of deferred items from investmentsjiralified businesse 61¢ 651
Deferred compensatic 347 28t
Book / tax gains on investmer 257 22¢
Interest payable in credits in lieu of ce 1,611 1,99¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,99: 1,87
Other 1,48¢ 90t
Total deferred tax assets before valuation allow: 11,92¢ 18,73:
Less: Valuation allowanc (3,169) 6,37¢
Total deferred tax asse 8,75¢ 12,35¢
Deferred tax liabilities

Credits in lieu of cas (8,127) (15,359
Deferred incomt (569 —
Total deferred tax liabilitie (8,687) (15,359
Net deferred tax asset (liabilit $ 72 $ (3,009

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had NOLs pfagmately $6,823,000 which will begin to expire2020 and $2,549,000 of capital
losses which will begin expiring in 2013. In additj the Company has available an Alternative MinimiLax credit carryforward for tax
purposes of approximately $384,000 which may bel irsgefinitely to reduce regular federal incomeetsix
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Realization of the deferred tax assets is deperategenerating sufficient taxable income in futyears. The Company has a valuation
allowance of approximately $3,169,000 and $6,37% &9of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectivelthéOamount, $921,000 and
$4,129,000, respectively, is related to deferrechtesets at NSBF and can only be used to offsatduaxable income at NSBF. The reduction
in the valuation allowance is based on the Comgamgluding that it is more likely than not that tieenaining NOLs and deferred tax assets
will be used to offset future taxable income basedNSBF’s profitability in 2011 and 2010, as weldlfature expected earnings. The $921,000
remaining valuation allowance at NSBF is attriblgeatb Section 382 NOLs which were created in 2008 are carried forward twenty years.
Since the Company can only use a portion of thak léch year (or $255,750 per year), the Companyaosnreasonably determine it is more
likely than not that the remaining Section 382 N@dbuld be used in 2012 and 2013 which is consistéhtthe term of the Company’s current
Capital One line of credit, which is used to finarhis business. Without financing, the Companyncadetermine at a more likely than not
basis that the Company will have taxable income.

NBC has a valuation allowance of approximately $%,000 and $1,065,000, respectively of the 2011281d deferred tax assets which
only be used to offset future taxable income at NBI&= decrease is due to the 2011 taxable incomergted at NBC in 2011. The Company
ultimately believes it will utilize the NBC NOLsubthere has not been subjective evidence to daa#aw the Company to do so.

The remaining valuation allowance of approximatkly193,000 and $1,195,000 for the years ended Dis=e8i, 2011 and 2010, respectiv
includes other assets, NOLs and capital losseshbafompany believes it will ultimately be able¢gognize but does not currently have
sufficient positive evidence to be able to uséit time.

The Company analyzed its tax positions taken oin Fexleral and State tax returns for the open &ay2008, 2009 and 2010. The Company
used three levels of analysis in determining whredimy uncertainties existed with respect to thexstipns. The first level consisted of an
analysis of the technical merits of the positioastadministrative practices and precedents, ingastrms and historical audit outcome. The
second level of analysis was used to determireeittireshold (more than 50%) was met for the tagfposition. The third level of analysis
consisted of determining the probable outcome dneas determined that the threshold was met fertdix filing position. Based on our
analysis, the Company determined that there werggertain tax positions and that the Company shprévail upon examination by the
taxing authorities.

The Company’s operations have been extended to jottiedictions. This extension involves dealinglwincertainties and judgments in the
application of tax regulations in these jurisdiogo The final resolution of any tax liabilities atependent upon factors including negotiations
with taxing authorities in these jurisdictions ardolution of disputes arising from federal, statd local tax audits. The Company recognizes
potential liabilities associated with anticipatest tiudit issues that may arise during an examinaliderest and penalties that are anticipated to
be due upon examination are recognized as accntee st and other liabilities with an offset toeirgst and other expense. The Company
determined that there were no uncertainties wispeet to the application of tax regulations in éhsisdictions.

NOTE 20—LEASE RESTRUCTURING CHARGES:

The Company relocated its corporate and lendinijtiato two smaller spaces in order to reduceeitpense and improve its cash flows.
Simultaneous with this relocation, on November@1 2 the Company entered into a sublease agreemitbntespect to its offices located at
1440 Broadway, New York, NY. The Company continteeeemain obligated under the terms of the origiease. Based on the remaining
obligation of the original lease and the estimateblet income, the Company recorded a pretax chiargarnings of approximately $990,000
upon the cease-use date representing the predeatofahe amount by which the rent and other dicests paid by the Company to the
landlord exceeds any rent paid to the Companysieitant under the new sublease over the remaofides lease term, which expires in
October 2015.
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NOTE 21—BENEFIT PLANS:
Defined Contribution Plan

The Company’s employees participate in a definedrdmution 401(k) plan (the “Plan”) adopted in 2084ich covers substantially all
employees based on eligibility. The Plan is desigimeencourage savings on the part of eligible eyg#s and qualifies under Section 401(l
the Internal Revenue Code. Under the Plan, eligibhiployees may elect to have a portion of their, pagluding overtime and bonuses, redu
each pay period, as pre-tax contributions up tarthgimum allowed by law. The Company may elect akena matching contribution equal to
a specified percentage of the participant’s contidm, on their behalf as a pre-tax contributioor the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010, the Company matched 50% of the first 2% gflegree contributions.

NOTE 22—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 20102@04, the Company provided merchant processing tmmpany controlled by the
father-in-law of a major stockholder and formerdident of the Company, in the approximate amou$&;000, $42,000 and $38,000,
respectively. In connection with these transactitims Company recorded a $3,000 receivable atDettember 31, 2011 and 2010.

A major stockholder of the Company earns grosslvegipayments on merchant processing revenue heajen for the Company, a portion of
which is then paid to his support staff for thdfods. During the years ended December 31, 20@102nd 2009, the Company paid him gross
residuals of approximately $1,649,000, $1,180,0@D$632,000, respectively. As a result of thesesations, the Company had a receivable
of $14,000 at December 31, 2010. There was no suoraling receivable recorded at December 31, 2011.

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 208 @ompany employed the brother, sister-in-law reghew of a major stockholder of
the Company, and incurred combined wages and hemefdbense totaling approximately $210,000 and RIB4 respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 208@ompany contracted with PMTWorks, LLC for pdirelated services. Certain
owners of PMTWorks, LLC also own naontrolling interest in Newtek Payroll Services,Cla consolidated VIE. PMTWorks, LLC provid
services including operational, administrative,tooger support, technical, risk management, saldsvaarketing and other services in order to
assist Newtek Payroll Services, LLC in conductiagnoll processing, tax filing, human resource infation services, benefits administration,
time and labor management and related ancillarinbas services. The Company paid $28,000 and $67gsQ@hese services for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Coynpiaovided merchant processing for a company wlibehboard member that was also a
former board member of the Company. Total reveou¢hie year 2009 was approximately $6,000.

The Company may also, from time to time, providsibess services to family members or executivéeefCompany. These transactions are
conducted at arm’s length and do not representtariabportion of the Company’s revenues.

NOTE 23—STOCK OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED STOCK GRANTED TO EMPLOYEES:

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had threeedt@sed compensation plans, which are describedvb&he compensation cost that has
been charged against operations for those plan$4&3 000, $81,000 and $132,000 for the years ebéedmber 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, and is included in salaries and henigf the accompanying consolidated statementgpefations.

The Newtek Business Services, Inc. 2000 Stock lineand Deferred Compensation Plan, as amendesl;Z000 Plan”) currently provides
for the issuance of awards of restricted shareggdo a maximum of 4,250,000 common shares to @mepk and noemployees. The issuar
of options under this Plan expired on Decembe2809. All restricted shares or previously grantptioms are issued at the fair value on the
date of grant. Options issued generally have amaixi term that ranges from 2 to 10 years and vesgtiogisions that range from 0 to 3
years. As of December 31, 2011, there are 2,1440Bafkes available for future grant under this [
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The Newtek Business Services, Inc. 2003 Stock lieeRlan, as amended, (the “2003 Plan”) curreptivides for the issuance of awards of
restricted shares or options for up to a maximurh,000,000 common shares to employees and non-gegdoAll restricted shares or options
are issued at the fair value on the date of g@ptions issued generally have a maximum term trages from 2 to 10 years and vesting
provisions that range from 0O to 3 years. As of Delger 31, 2011, there are 623,000 shares availabfetire grant under this plan.

The Newtek Business Services, Inc. 2010 Stock lieeRlan, (the “2010 Plan”) currently provides the issuance of awards of restricted
shares or options for up to a maximum of 1,650 &f@mon shares to employees and non-employeesedgtticted shares or options are issued
at the fair value on the date of grant. Optionaéssgenerally have a maximum term that ranges #am10 years and vesting provisions that
range from 0 to 4 years. As of December 31, 20idretare 558,000 shares available for future gradeér this plan.

A summary of stock option activity under the 202003 and 2010 Plans as of December 31, 2011 amd@jebaluring the year then ended are
presented below:

Weighted Average Aggregate
Weighted Average Intrinsic Value
Shares Remaining Term
Stock Options (In thousands; Exercise Price (In years) (In thousands)
Outstandin—December 31, 201 99t $ 1.4¢
Exercisec — — $ —
Cancellec (109 1.5C
Outstandin—December 31, 201 89C $ 1.4¢ 5.3¢ $ 21
Exercisabl—December 31, 201 89C $ 1.4¢ 5.3¢ $ 21

There were no options granted during the yearseeBédeember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

As of December 31, 2011, there was $1,403,000taf tmrecognized compensation costs related tovested share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the 2000, 2003 andP1@h8. That cost is expected to be recognizedlyatiatough July 2014.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, Newtektgdafour employees an aggregate of 41,900 shérestoicted stock valued at $41,000.
The grants vest on July 1, 2014. The fair valuehe$e grants were determined using the fair vafltlbe common shares at the grant date. The
restricted shares are forfeitable upon early valnor involuntary termination of the employee. dpesting, the grantee will receive one
common share for each restricted share vestedCohgany charged $16,000 and $4,000 to operatio®8lith and 2010, respectively, in
connection with the vesting period associated wi#se grants.

In March 2011, Newtek granted certain employeescetives and board of directors an aggregate @210D0 shares of restricted stock valued
at $1,941,000 or $1.70 per share. The fair valubesge grants was determined using the fair valtieeocommon shares at the grant date. The
restricted shares are forfeitable upon early valgnor involuntary termination of the employee. dpeesting, the grantee will receive one
common share for each restricted share vested.riineéerms of the plan, these share awards dmaloide voting rights until the shares vest.
The grants are valued using the straight-line nobdrad vest on July 1, 2014. As a result, the Compharged $464,000 to operations in 2011
in connection with the vesting period associatetth Wiese grants.

A summary of the status of Newtek’s non-vestedrietet shares as of December 31, 2011 and changiegdhe year then ended is presented
below:

Weighted

Average
Number of Grant Date

Shares

Non-vested Restricted Shares (in thousands Fair Value
Non-vested—December 31, 2010 42 $ 1.2t
Granted 1,14 $ 1.7¢
Vested and issue — $ —
Forfeited (50 $ 1.7¢
Non-veste—December 31, 201 1,13¢ $ 1.6¢
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NOTE 24—SEGMENT REPORTING:

Operating segments are organized internally prigmbsi the type of services provided. The Company &ggregated similar operating segm
into six reportable segments: Electronic paymeatgssing, Managed technology solutions, Small legsifinance, All other, Corporate and
Capcos.

The Electronic payment processing segment is aegeme of credit card transactions, as well as &eter of credit card and check approval
services to the small- and mediwgized business market. Expenses include direct ¢osiuded in a separate line captioned electrpajonen
processing costs), professional fees, salariebandfits, and other general and administrativescaditof which are included in the respective
caption on the consolidated statements of operation

The Managed technology solutions segment condisid 8§, acquired in July 2004. NTS'’s revenues améved primarily from web hosting
services and consist of web hosting and set up ES generates expenses such as professionaptegs]l and benefits, and depreciation
amortization, which are included in the respectigption on the accompanying consolidated statenuérgerations, as well as licenses and
fees, rent, and general office expenses, all oElwhre included in other general and administratdgs in the respective caption on the
consolidated statements of operations.

The Small business finance segment consists ofI8uainess Lending, Inc., a lender that primariigmates, sells and services government
guaranteed SBA 7(a) loans to qualifying small besges through NSBF, its licensed SBA lender; th@3 & hitestone Group which manages
the Company’s Texas Capco; and NBC which provigesants receivable financing, billing and accourteivable maintenance services to
businesses. NSBF generates revenues from saleard, Iservicing income for those loans retainezbatracted to service by NSBF and
interest income earned on the loans themselveslefider generates expenses for interest, profeddiess, salaries and benefits, depreciation
and amortization, and provision for loan losselspfalvhich are included in the respective captiortie consolidated statements of operations.
NSBF also has expenses such as loan recovery egpdéoan processing costs, and other expensearthatl included in the other general ¢
administrative costs caption on the consolidatatestents of operations.

The All other segment includes revenues and exgagmémarily from qualified businesses that receiiragstments made through the
Company’s Capcos which cannot be aggregated wihtkr atperating segments. The two largest entitidésarsegment are Newtek Insurance
Agency, LLC, an insurance sales operation, andriggsi Connect, LLC, a provider of sales and procgss®rvices.

Corporate activities represent revenue and expernesiocated to our segments. Revenue includesdist income and management fees
earned from Capcos (and included in expenses iCédpeo segment). Expenses primarily include cotparperations related to broad-based
sales and marketing, legal, finance, informatiaht®logy, corporate development and additionalscassociated with administering the
Capcos.

The Capco segment, which consists of the twelvec@amenerates non-cash income from tax credteseist income and gains from
investments in qualified businesses which are geduin other income. Expenses primarily include-nash interest and insurance expense,
management fees paid to Newtek (and included ifCtrporate activities revenues), legal, and auglitees and losses from investments in
qualified businesses.

Management has considered the following charatiesihen making its determination of its operatamgl reportable segments:
. the nature of the product and servic

. the type or class of customer for their products$ services

. the methods used to distribute their products ovige their services; ar

. the nature of the regulatory environment (for exmbpanking, insurance, or public utilitie

The accounting policies of the segments are theesanthose described in the summary of signifiaaabunting policies.
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The following table presents the Company’s segritdatmation for the years ended December 31, 20010 and 2009 and total assets as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2011 2010 2009
Third Party Revenue
Electronic payment processi $ 82,48¢ $ 80,93¢ $ 69,68¢
Managed technology solutio 19,18« 19,16¢ 18,85¢
Small business financ 21,02t 9,371 7,30¢
All Other 1,70¢ 1,347 2,41
Corporate activitie 1,09z 2,257 3,21(
Capcos 1,497 2,44 7,98:
Total reportable segments 126,99: 115,52: 109,46(
Eliminations (1,659 (2,807) (3,749
Consolidated Total $ 125,33 $ 112,71¢ $ 105,71
Inter Segment Revenue
Electronic payment processi $ 1,15¢ $ 814 $ 204
Managed technology solutio 647 524 36€
Small business financ 81 65 89
All Other 1,13¢ 3,94z 562
Corporate activitie 1,72¢ 1,83¢ 1,85¢
Capca 80¢€ 1,332 1,87
Total reportable segments 5,55¢ 8,512 4,95
Eliminations (5,559 (8,517) (4,959
Consolidated Total $ — $ — L
Income (loss) before income taxe
Electronic payment processi $ 6,451 $ 5,71¢ $ 4,35:
Managed technology solutio 4,841 4,73( 3,92¢
Small business financ 4,13¢ 2,04t (2,295
All Other (862) (1,602 (36¢)
Corporate activitie (10,099 (6,81€) (5,940
Capca (2,197) (3,199 (3,6779)
Total reportable segments 2,272 877 (4,002)
Eliminations — — —
Totals $ 2,27 $ 877 $ (4,009
Depreciation and Amortization
Electronic payment processi $ 141¢ $ 1,63 $ 1,75¢
Managed technology solutio 1,38 1,82¢ 2,57¢
Small business financ 89¢ 79C 931
All Other 80 13E 13C
Corporate activitie 162 312 437
Capco 13 12 20
Totals $ 3,95t $  4,70¢ $ 584
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For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2011 2010 2009
Interest (income) expense, ne
Electronic payment processi $ (11 $ (12 $ (32
Managed technology solutio 10z 102 111
Small business financ (515) 16¢ (18)
All Other (20 (62) (50
Corporate activitie (22) (24) (32
Capca 1,24(C 2,401 8,63
Consolidated total $ 78€ $ 2,57¢ $ 8,61t
Identifiable assets
Electronic payment processi $ 10,72 $ 10,00¢
Managed technology solutio 10,83¢ 11,40:
Small business financ 80,791 95,171
All Other 2,87¢ 4,44
Corporate activitie 3,281 2,62¢
Capco 23,49¢ 41,35¢
Consolidated total $ 132,01( $ 165,01t

NOTE 25—QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED):

The following table sets forth certain unauditedsmlidated quarterly statement of operations data the eight quarters ended December 31,
2011. This information is unaudited, but in therdph of management, it has been prepared subdbpmtiathe same basis as the audited
consolidated financial statements appearing elsemihehis report, and all necessary adjustmewtssisting only of normal recurring
adjustments, have been included in the amounisdsketiow. In addition, the amounts below have bestated to reflect the results of
discontinued operations. The consolidated quartiata should be read in conjunction with the cureemlited consolidated statements and
notes thereto. The total of the quarterly EPS detg not equal to the full year results.

Three Months Ended
(In Thousands, except Per Share Data)

2011 3/31 6/30 9/30 12/31

Total Revenue $30,52: $32,32: $30,657 $31,831
Income before income tax $ 834 $ 13€ $ 33t $ 967
Net income (loss) available to common stockholi $ 50¢ $ (287 $ 88C $ 2,37¢
Income (loss) per she—Basic and dilutes $ 0.01 $ (0.0) $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢

Three Months Ended
(In Thousands, except Per Share Data)

201¢C 3/31 6/30 9/30 12/31

Total Revenus $25,85: $28,00¢ $29,20: $29,65¢
(Loss) income before income tay $ 879 $ 514 $ 24¢ $ 98¢
Net (loss) income available to common stockholi $ 467 $ 0931 $ (31§ $ 1,29:
(Loss) income per she—Basic and dilutes $ (0.0)) $ 0.0z $ (0.0)) $ 0.04
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Exhibit 21
NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC

SUBSIDIARIES
State of Incorporation/
Name of Company Organization
Automated Merchant Services, Ir Florida
Business Connect, LL Texas
CCC Real Estate Holdings Co., LI Delaware
CDS Business Services, Ir Delaware
CrystalTech Web Hosting, In New York
Exponential Business Development Co., | New York
First Bankcard Alliance of Alabama, LL Alabama
Fortress Data Management, LI Texas
Newtek Asset Backed Securities, LI Delaware
Newtek Insurance Agency, LL District of Columbia
Newtek Small Business Finance, | New York
PMTWorks Payroll, LLC New York
Secure CyberGateway Services, L Texas
Small Business Lending, In Delaware
Solar Processing Solutions, LL Wisconsin
Summit Systems and Design, LI Texas
The Texas Whitestone Group, LL Texas
Universal Processing Services of Wisconsin, L Wisconsin
Where Eagles Fly, LL( District of Columbia
The Whitestone Group, LL New York
Wilshire Alabama Partners, LL Alabama
Wilshire Colorado Partners, LL Colorado
Wilshire DC Partners, LL( District of Columbia
Wilshire Holdings I, Inc New York
Wilshire Holdings Il, Inc. New York
Wilshire Louisiana Bidco, LL(C Louisiana
Wilshire Louisiana Capital Management Fund, L Louisiana
Wilshire Louisiana Partners II, LL Louisiana
Wilshire Louisiana Partners Ill, LL Louisiana
Wilshire Louisiana Partners IV, LL Louisiana
Wilshire New York Advisers Il, LLC New York
Wilshire New York Partners Ill, LL( New York
Wilshire New York Partners IV, LL( New York
Wilshire New York Partners V, LLt¢ New York
Wilshire Partners, LL( Florida

Wilshire Texas Partners I, LL Texas



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We hereby consent to the incorporation by referemé®rm S-8 (No. 333-107504, 333-119191 and 33328} of Newtek Business Services,
Inc. and Subsidiaries of our report dated March2Dd,2 related to the consolidated financial stateémehich appear in the Annual Report to
Stockholders, which is included herein in this AahReport on Form 10-K.

/s/ J.H. Cohn LLF

Jericho, New Yor}
March 19, 201:



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Barry Sloane, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16filewtek Business Services, Inc. (the “registrant”

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report dogsaontain any untrue statement of a material dactimit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegettierally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadiisclosure controls and procedures and pres@ntas report our conclusions abr
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgualures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig’'s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weals®es in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ BARRY SLOANE

Barry Sloane
Principal Executive Officer

Date: March 19, 2012



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jennifer Eddelson, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16filewtek Business Services, Inc. (the “registrant”

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report dogsaontain any untrue statement of a material dactimit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegettierally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadiisclosure controls and procedures and pres@ntas report our conclusions abr
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgualures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig’'s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weals®es in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/ s/ JENNIFER EDDELSO?

Jennifer Eddelson
Principal Financial Officer

Date: March 19, 2012



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fiNewtek Business Services, Inc. (the “Companigd),the year ended December
2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @a@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, BaéBtgane, Chief Executive Officer of the

Company, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, aschldg Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@88gify that, to the best of our
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of the operations of the
Company.

/s/ BARRY SLOANE

Barry Sloane,
Principal Executive Officer

March 19, 2012



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fiNewtek Business Services, Inc. (the “Companigd),the year ended December
2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @a@sion on the date hereof (the “Report;)}Jennifer Eddelson, Chief Accounting Officel
the Company, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1358dded by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley ARDOR, certify that, to the best of our
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExageAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of the operations of the
Company.

/ s/ JENNIFER EDDELSON

Jennifer Eddelson,
Principal Financial Officer

March 19, 201:



